IPSWICH
~ Depo - Daniel Clasby



Jones Reporting Company, Inc.

Invoice

Please visit our website at www.jonesreporters.com

Two Oliver Street, Suite 804

AR B A
Boston, MA 02109 Monday, October 31, 2011 32585FR
Phone: (617) 451-8900 Fax: (617) 451-3535
Stephen M. Perry
Casner & Edwards
303 Congress Street
Boston, MA 02210
Phone: Fax:
Witness: Daniel Clasby, pp 1-76 -
Case: Mulholland vs. Attorney General of MA o i i
Venue: B - o
Case#:
Date: 10/25/2011
Start Time: 10:00 AM
End Time: 12:16 PM
Reporter: *Lauren Mitchell
Claim #:
File #: 28977FR
|
Item Description Each = Quan Total
OE Original Transcript $3.50 76 $266.00
CTCA Condensed Transcript/Media Package $0.00 1 $0.00
DE Delivery $12.00 1 $12.00
Sub Total $278.00
Payments $0.00
$278.00

Balance Due

Fed. I.D. # 86-1100261
1% interest accued monthly on all balances over 30 days.



Need ASAP[_] YES [X]NO Submission Date 11/3/11
If yes, time of day

CASNER & EDWARDS, LLP

REBILLABLE CLIENT EXPENDITURES

Client/Matter No. 7428 - 0 - Client Name Ipswich
Requesting Person’s Initials SMP Expense Code 60
Amount $278.00 Cash[] Check[] Invoice

Payable To: Jones Reporting Company, Inc.

Billing Description (REQUIRED):deposition transcript of Daniel Clasby taken on 10/25/11

* * * Please check expense category and enter expense code number above * * *
Codes Codes

66 Patent

67 Printing

68 Professional Services

69 Reserve Corporate Name
70 Service of Process

71 Title Examination

72 Witness Fee

73 Publication of Citation

74 Certificate of Appointment
75 Probate Filing Fees

76 Estate Tax Filing Fees

77 Guardian ad litem

78 Expert Witness/Consultant Fee
79 Private Investigator’s Fee
80 Removal Bond - Federal
81 Removal Bond — State

02 Photocopying ~ in house

03 Telephone

04 Postage

05 Closing Adjustment

42 Fax Transmissions

43 Federal Express

45 Rush Messenger Delivery

46 UPS Delivery

48 Medical Records

49 CSC (f/k/a Prentice-Hall)

51 PACER on-line search

52 Certs. of good Standing/Legal Existence
53 West CD_ROM Legal Research
54 Mediation

55 Filing Fees

56 Recording Fees

57 Secretarial Overtime 82 LEXIS
58 Delivery/Messenger Service 83 W.R. Grace Photocopy Project
59 Office Manager 84 Travel

85 Photocopying — outside

86 Certified Copies

90 Westlaw Research

91 Secretary of State Searches
92 THOMSON & THOMSON
97 Miscellaneous

60 Stenographer/Transcript
61 Bond

62 CT Corporation

63 Computax

64 Corporate Seal

65 Newspaper Advertising

O
I O

TO BE COMPLETED BY BOOKKEEPING DEPT.

Bookkeeper Initials Date Check No.

2000.0/324462.1



Reporting

October 31, 2011

William H. Sheehan, lll, Esq.
Maclean Holloway, et al

8 Essex Center Drive
Peabody, MA 01960

Re:  Mulholland vs. A.G. of Massachusetts
Deposition of Daniel E. Clasby

Dear Attorney Sheehan,

Enclosed please find your copy of the deposition of Daniel E. Clasby taken October
25, 2011 in the above-reference matter. Kindly have the witness read the transcript,
noting any corrections on the errata/signature sheet enclosed herewith. No
corrections should be made on the transcript itself.

Once this has been completed, please return the executed signature pages to
Stephen M. Perry, Esq. at the address noted on the appearance page of the
transcript.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please do not hesitate to contact our
office at 617-451-8900.

Sincerely,

Jones Reporting Company

cc.  Stephen M. Perry, Esq.

Two Oliver Street www.JonesReporters.com T: 617.451.8900
Boston, MA 02109 F: 617.451.3535
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COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

Essex, ss. Probate & Family Court

Docket No. ES09E0094QC

ALEXANDER B.C. MULHOLLAND, JR., et )
al., )

Plaintiffs )
v. )

ATTORNEY GENERAL OF THE COMMONWEALTH )
OF MASSACHUSETTS, et al., )
Defendants )

DEPOSITION OF DANIEL E. CLASBY
Tuesday, October 25, 2011

10:08 a.m. - 12:16 p.m.

MacLean Holloway Doherty Ardiff & Morse, P.C.

8 Essex Center Drive

Peabody, Massachusetts 01960
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Reporter: Lauren M. Mitchell, CSR, RPR, CRR
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APPEARANCES :
MacLean Holloway Doherty Ardiff & Morse,
William H. Sheehan, III, Esq.
8 Essex Center Drive
Peabody, Massachusetts 01960
(978) 774-7123
wsheehan@mhdpc .com

Counsel for the Plaintiff

Casner & Edwards, LLP

Stephen M. Perry, Esq.

303 Congress Street

Boston, Massachusetts 02210

(617) 426-5900
perry@casneredwards.com

Counsel for School Committee of the
Town of Ipswich and Richard Korb,

Superintendent

P.C.
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WITNESS

DANIEL E. CLASBY
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income statement, year ended
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7/01/08
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subschedule of numbers
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Daniel E. Clasby

PROCEEDINGS
DANIEL E. CLASBY
appears before us today for his deposition and has
been sworn by this Notary Public.

This witness does not at present have
adequate documentation attesting to his identity
that satisfies the standards required by the State
of Massachusetts for Notaries Public in
administering oaths.

The parties in this action, therefore,
agree to hold harmless this Notary Public if this
witness is later discovered to have falsified his
identity.

EXAMINATION BY MR. PERRY:

Q. State your name, please.

A. Daniel E. Clasby.

Q. What's your residential address?

A. 4 Mill Road, Ipswich, Mass.

Q. How long have you been a resident of
Ipswich?

A. 55 years.

Q. What's your date of birth?

A. 11/5/55.

Q. Sounds like you spent a couple of years

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900
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somewhere else.

A. Well college, I mean. I'll be 56. T live
in the same house I was born in.

Q. Which part of Ipswich is 4 Mill Road in?

A. TIt's about, I'd say it's about one and a
half miles from the railroad tracks in the center of
town, out toward Topsfield. And Mill Road is a road
that goes to Hamilton and Wenham.

Q. Did you go to Ipswich High School?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And what year did you graduate?

A. 1973.

Q. Were you in high school with any of the
Feoffees?

A, No.

Q. How does Jim Foley compare to you in his
age?

A. Offhand, I don't know his age.

Q. What kind of schooling did you have after
you graduated from high school?

A. Four years of undergraduate school at Boston
College, and a master's degree in taxation at
Bentley University.

Q. What year did you graduate from BC?

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900
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6
A. 1977.
Q. What was your degree?
A. Bachelor of science in accounting.
Q. When did you get your master's at Bentley?
A. I can't remember what year it was, to be
honest. I don't recall the yvear. 19 -- I'm not

sure of the exact year. It was in the early '80s,
'81, '82, somewhere in there.

Q. Could you summarize your occupational
history after graduating from BC?

A. Sure. I was hired by the firm Weyland,
Coughlin & Company in 1977.

Q. What firm?

A. Weyland, W-e-y-l-a-n-d, Coughlin,
C-o-u-g-h-1-i-n, & Company.

Q. Where are they?

A. At that time, they were in Lynn,
Massachusetts.

Q. What year did you say?

A. 1977.

Q. Okay. Go on.

A. I worked for them. In 1987, Mr. Weyland
retired. I took over his practice. And the firm's

name was called Coughlin & Clasby.

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900
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Daniel E. Clasby

Q. Okay. You can go on.

A. 1998, Mr. Coughlin passed away. And I
became a sole proprietor, the name of the company
now, Dan Clasby & Company.

Q. So you've really been, in a sense, at the
same place your entire career?

A. That's correct.

Q. When you joined Weyland, Coughlin & Company,
how many accountants were there?

A. It varied. At the time, there could have
been five accountants. I don't recall offhand,
approximately.

Q. Approximately five?

A. Approximately five, besides the partners.

Q. How many partners were there?

A. There were two, Weyland and Coughlin.

Q. They were CPAs?

A. That's correct. Weyland was an attorney as
well.

Q. Did you sit for your CPA exam?

A. Yes.

Q. When did you do that?

A. In the early 1980s.

Q. And when did you pass it?

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900
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Daniel E. Clasby

A. Same time, the early 1980s.

Q. Did you take it once or more than once?

A. I took it more than once. You're allowed to
-- the parts carry over.

Q. Do you know how many times you took it?

A. I don't recall.

Q. What type of practice have you had working
first for Weyland, Coughlin & Company, then for
Coughlin & Clasby, and now for Daniel Clasby?

A. I'm not sure I understand.

Q. Will you describe what kind of accounting
practice you've carried out?

What kind of work do you do as an
accountant?

A. We handle taxes for closely-held
corporations and their shareholders. And we perform
audit engagements and other attestation engagements.

Q. I just didn't catch your words there.

You say, "And other"...?

A. Attestations, such as compilation and review
engagements.

Q. How many people work for Daniel Clasby &
Company?

A. We have, at the present time, we have two

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900
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CPAs. We have two support staff. And during tax
season, we usually hire one to two per diem.

Q. Are you one of the two CPAs?

A, No.

Q. So you have two CPAs in addition to
yourself?

A. That's correct.

Q. Are they full-time?

A. 30 hours to 37 hours a week, depending on
the time of year.

Q. What percentage of your revenues would you
estimate are derived from audit engagements?

A. I'd say 15 to 20 percent.

Q. How many audits do you do in a typical year?

A. In a typical year, I'd say about, between 10
and 12 would be fair.

Q. Are you a member of any professional
associations?

A. Presently, at the Mass. Society of Certified
Public Accountants.

Q. Have you ever been a member of any other
professional associations?

A, Yes.

Q. Which ones?

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900
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A. The American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Q. During what period of time were you a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants?

A. From the time I passed the CPA exam and had
met the experience requirements through 2007, I
believe. I'm not sure of the exact time.

Q. And what led to your no longer being a
member of the AICPA?

A. My membership was terminated for a period of
one year.

Q. And you chose not to rejoin?

A. Correct. At the present time.

Q. And what was the event that caused your
membership to be terminated?

A. I had performed an audit of a small public
company in the early 2000s. I issued an opinion on
the June 30, 2004 statements of this company. And I
had not registered on a timely basis with the PCAOB.

Q. Public Accounting --

A. Public Company Accounting Oversight Board.

Q. Which is a requirement of the SEC?

A. That is correct.

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900
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Q. Are you currently registered with the PCAOB?

A. I am not.

Q. Have you ever been registered with the
PCAOB?

A. I have not.

Q. What does it require to become registered
with the PCAOB?

A. You would go through their normal peer
review procedures.

Q. What does that mean?

A. That means that you would -- they would
review your f£irm and review certain workpapers.
It's a process.

Q. Have you ever applied to be approved by the
PCAOB?

A. I have not.

Q. When you did your public company audit in
2004, were you aware of the requirement that you
register with the PCAOB?

A. I was aware of the requirement as of a
certain date. And the date was incorrect.

Q. If you could just explain that, because I
didn't understand what you meant by that.

A. To issue --

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900
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Q. If you could be a little more concrete about
it.

A. Yes. I mean, at the time, we issued an
opinion on statements, financial statements as of
June 30, 2004.

Q. Right.

A. And it was my understanding that because
they were an unlisted company, that the effective
date of Sarbanes-Oxley and the registration process
was for audits performed for December 31, 2004, not
June 30.

Q. All right. So you were aware that there was
a requirement, but you didn't think it applied to
you under the circumstances of the case?

A. That is correct.

Q. Was there any problem found with the audit
itself?

A. Not that I'm aware of.

Q. There was no restatement of the financials?

A. There was not.

Q. Was the company required to have their books
audited by a second accountant?

A. They decided not to pursue that.

Q. "They" being?

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900
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A. The company.

Q. When did you first become engaged by the
Feoffees?

A. My recollection is in the area of 1998.

Q. As of 1998, did you know any of the
so~called life Feoffees?

Do you know what I mean by the --

A. I don't understand -- I understand what a
life Feoffee is, but I don't understand what you
mean by, did you know them.

Q. Were you personally acquainted with Don
Whiston before you became engaged by the Feoffees in
19987

A. I knew who he was.

Q. Had you had any dealings with him?

A. No.

Q. Were you personally acquainted with Jim
Foley in 19987

A. No, I was not.

Q. Were you personally acquainted with Peter
Foote?

A. I knew who he was.

Q. But you hadn't had any personal dealings

with him?

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900
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A. No.

Q. What about Alex Mulholland?

A. Again, I knew who he was.

Q. So you knew who all these individuals were,
but you weren't friends with any of them, correct,
at the time?

MR. SHEEHAN: Objection.

A. I was not friends with any of them, no.

Q. And you hadn't had any dealings with any of
them?

A. At that time, no.

Q. Okay. So who was it that brought you in to
work with the Feoffees?

A. Don Whiston.

Q. Do you know how he came to engage you as
opposed to somebody else?

A. I'm not aware.

Q. Had you done work with the attorney for the
Feoffees, Mr. Greenough?

A. Periodically.

Q. Who did you succeed as the Feoffees'
accountant, if anyone?

A. I'm not ~- I'm not aware of anyone before

me L]

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900
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Q. When you became the Feoffees' accountant,
did you learn that there hadn't been a regular
accountant for the Feoffees before Your engagement?

A, Yes.

Q. Who had been keeping the books and records
of the Feoffees before you became its accountant?

A. Well could I --

Q. Yes.

A. When you say "accountant,” I'm not the
accountant. I'm the auditor, not accountant.

So there's a difference.

Q. What's the difference between an auditor and
an accountant?

A. Depends on the -~ that is a very broad
question.

Q. An audit is a procedure in which you give
your opinion about the books -- the financial
statements of an audit client, correct?

A. Of a client, yes.

Q. In other words, an auditor is independent of
the client, right?

A. That is correct.

Q. Or required to be, correct?

A. That's correct.

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900
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Q. And the client prepares certain financial
statements, correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. And then the auditor is required to provide
his professional opinion based on certain tests and
procedures about the fairness of the financial
statements, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Did you do audit work for the Feoffees?

A. Did I or have I?

Q. Have you?

A. Yes.

Q. For what period of time did you prepare --
did you do audit work for the Feoffees?

A. I believe the first year was 1998, June.

Q. So you've been an auditor to the Feoffees
since 1998?

A, Yes.

Q. Now at the time you first audited the
Feoffees, did they have financial statements?

A. Mr. Whiston prepared financial statements.

Q. Had there been any accountant or auditor
before you in 1998, that you were aware of?

A. No.

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900
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Q. And was it your understanding that there
hadn't been any accountant or auditor for the
Feoffees on a regular basis before you were engaged?

A. No auditor.

Q. Had there been an accountant to the Feoffees
before you were engaged?

A. I don't know.

Q. Between 1998 and the present, have the
Feoffees prepared -- have you prepared other
documents for the Feoffees other than audit opinions
between 1998 and the present?

A, Yes.

Q. What types of other documents have you
prepared?

A. Form PC, which is filed with the Attorney
General.

Q. Okay. What else?

Have you assisted the -- do the Feoffees
file Form 990s?

A. No, they do not.

Q. What is a Form 990?

A. It is a tax return of a tax-exempt entity,
organization.

MR. PERRY: Let's mark for

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900
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identification as Exhibits 1 through 4 documents
that have been provided to us in this litigation.
And on the first page of each of these documents, it
says Form PC for a particular year. And then I'll
ask you some particular questions.

(Marked, Exhibit 1, Form PC, 7/01/05
through 6/30/06.)

(Marked, Exhibit 2, Form PC, 7/01/06
through 6/30/07.)

(Marked, Exhibit 3, Form PC, 7/01/07
through 06/30/08.)

(Marked, Exhibit 4, Form PC, 7/01/08
through 06/30/09.)

MR. SHEEHAN: Could you give me the
yvears, Steve, of the various exhibits?

MR. PERRY: Yes. Exhibit 1 is for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2006. And each one
after that goes up one.

MR. SHEEHAN: Okay. Thanks.

MR. PERRY: You're welcome.

Off the record.

(Discussion off the record.)

Q. The first thing I'd like to do, Mr. Clasby,

is to identify what we have here.

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900
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MR. SHEEHAN: Off the record.
(Discussion off the record.)
(Brief recess.)

Q. I've placed in front of you documents that
start out with the Form PC.

A. Yes.

Q. But after that, there's also a Form 990.

A. That is correct.

Q. The first qQuestion I want to ask you is
whether that Form 990, is that in any way part of or
an attachment to the Form PC?

A. That is correct.

Q. Okay. So what we have here as Exhibit 1 is
really just a Form PC?

A. That's correct.

Q. With all the attachments?

A. That's correct.

Q. And did you prepare on behalf of the
Feoffees this Form PC?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Is there a place in this document where it
states that, where it makes reference to the
attached Form 9907?

A. 1It's just a requirement of the filing of the

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900
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PC. It's not -- I don't believe it's -- I'm not
aware of it being in the actual document.
Q. Okay. And if you turn to the sixth page of
the document, Page 6 of the Form PC, there's a
signature line. And then there's the name Dan
Clasby & Company. The copy we've been provided
doesn't include any signatures.
Do you know who signed this?
A. I can't recall at the time.
Q. One of the Feoffees?
A. One of the Feoffees, yes.
Q. Did you have a discussion -- strike that.
Am I to understand from your testimony
that you prepared this Form 990 as an attachment to
the Form PC, but, in fact, it was never, to your
understanding, filed?
A. You'll have to clarify what you mean by
"filed."
Q. Yes. Thank you.
If we look at the attachment, the Form
990 that is attached to this Form PC --
A, Yes.
Q. -- did this Form 990 ever get filed with the

IRS?

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900
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A. No.

Q. And Form 990s, are they normally filed with
the IRS?

A. For tax-exempt organizations that fit under
one of the categories of the, 501 of the Code.

Q. Does that include public -- is there a
category for charities that are for the benefit of
the -- of a state, a public fief trust, do you know?

MR. SHEEHAN: Objection to the form.

Q. Do you know whether there's a tax-exempt
category for charities that are regarded as public
entities?

A. I think you'd have to be more -- a charity
isn't a public entity.

Q. What categories of exemptions are you aware
of under Section 501 that you referenced?

A. I'm not sure of how many categories. There
are approximately 25 that I am aware -- that I
recall. I don't know the exact number offhand.

Q. When you were engaged in 1998 to do work for
the Feoffees, did you discuss with anybody there
what the scope of your engagement would be?

A. I would say ves.

Q. With whom did you have those discussions?

Jones Reporting Company
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A. I don't recall. Certainly Mr. Whiston was
involved.

Q. And did you learn at the time you had those
discussions that the Feoffees had never filed a Form
PC?

A. Eventually, I did, yes.

Q. Did you agree as part of your services to
make a determination of what filings the
organization needed to make to bring itself in
compliance?

A. I did not.

Q. Did you investigate any time between 1998
and the present whether the Feoffees were supposed
to file any kind of federal tax return?

A. I was not hired to do so.

Q. I didm't ask you that.

My question was, did you investigate at
any time between 1998 and the present whether the
Feoffees were required to file any kind of federal
tax return?

A. Did I personally investigate?

Q. Did you look into it?

A. At some point.

Q. All right. When did you look into it?

Jones Reporting Company
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A. I don't recall the exact dates.

Q. Was it in the last five years?

A. I don't recall, honestly.

Q. What did you do to look into that issue?

A. We examined the facts of the makeup of the
Feoffees and the history of the organization.

Q. Okay. And what else did you do?

A. We reviewed the Code sections that would be
applicable to certain types of organizations based
on how they were considered or what they were
considered.

Q. Okay.

A. And no final determination was made.

Q. Well based on your review of the facts and
the history of the organization and your review of
the Code sections, what was your conciusion about
whether the Feoffees were supposed to file federal
tax returns?

A. I never issued a written opinion to anyone
on that.

Q. What was your conclusion that you did not
place in writing?

A. It was a matter to be determined later.

Q. Why to be determined later?
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A. It depended on how they were going to be
classified, as a public or private entity, and
whether they fit into the Code section that was in
there.

Q. All right. So whether the returns were
filed depended in part on whether they were
classified as a public entity or a private entity?

A. Could have been.

Q. Okay. So explain to me what would be the
implications if the Feoffees were classified as a

public entity for purposes of the tax return.

A. Essentially, the Feoffees were formed before

the Internal Revenue Code was put into place. And

they did not fit neatly into one of the definitions.

Q. I understand that. What I'm asking you is
this.

You said that whether the Feoffees were
required to file tax returns could turn on whether
they classified as a private entity --

A. I would take that back. That is not

correct.

Q. Is there any kind of a rule that would allow

an organization that was classified as a public

entity not to file tax returns?
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A. No, not that I'm aware of.

Q. Well, for example, the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts does not file tax returns?

A. Right.

Q. Federal tax returns, correct?

A. I have never prepared one for them.

Q. The Town of Ipswich, does that have to file
federal tax returns?

A. I'm not aware.

Q. As far as you know, it doesn't, right?

A. Correct.

Q. So there's some sort of exemption that
public entities don't have to file federal tax
returns, do they?

A. Could be, yes.

Q. So if the Feoffees were a public entity in
the same way that the Town of Ipswich is a public
entity, it wouldn't have to file a federal tax
return, correct?

A. I can't say.

Q. Are you aware of any exemptions that would
allow the Feoffees not to file tax returns if they
were a private entity?

A. Not specifically referenced by the Code.
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Q. Did you provide the Feoffees with this
information that there was no exemption in the Code
for filing tax returns if the Feoffees were a
private organization?

A. I've had discussions with counsel only.

Q. Counsel only?

Which counsel have you had those
discussions with?

A. The law firm of MacLean Holloway.

Q. Okay. Look at Exhibit 1. It starts out
with your Form PC. And if you look at Page 2, it
shows revenue in this fiscal year of 759,000 and
program services of 588, 000.

And that would be the amount paid to the
school committee, right?

A. I'd have to look. I don't recall if that is
it or not.

Q. All right. In the interests of time --

A. It's certainly part of it.

Q. -- that would be where you would put the
gift to the school committee, wouldn't it?

A. Yes, it would.

Q. Okay. And you're not aware, as we sit here,

of any other component of the 588,000 in that line,
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are you?

A. I would have to research. I'd have to look
at my records.

Q. As you sit here today, you're not aware of
anything other than --

A. I can't say that. Without looking at my
records, I can't say that.

Q. And then after that, there's a listing of
expenses of $65,431, right?

A. That's correct.

Q. So is it fair to say that there was some
revenue in excess of expenditures and program
services in this fiscal year?

A, Yes.

Q. And that was accumulated as part of the
principal of the trust, right?

A. That is correct.

Yes, the 588 was the gift to the Town
that year. 1It's stated in the financial statements,
which are attached to this document.

Q. Okay. Thank you.

On Page 3, you have a name and telephone
number of a contact person. You list that as Peter

Foote.
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Had he been the contact person after Don
Whiston ceased to serve in that role?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you file a Form PC for years earlier
than 2005?

A. Yes.

Q. When did you make those filings?

A. I believe 1998 was the initial filing.

Q. So you filed each of those Form PCs in a
timely fashion starting in 1998?

A. To the best of my recollection.

Q. Did you have any discussions with the
Feoffees about their failure to file those for
earlier years?

MR. SHEEHAN: Objection.

Q. Years earlier than 1998.

A. I don't recall.

Q. Did you have any discussions with anybody at
the Attorney General's office about the failure to
file Form PCs for earlier years?

MR. SHEEHAN: Objection.
A. I did not.
Q. Am I correct that when you prepare a Form PC

for a client, that's an accounting function, not an
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auditing function?

A. I would say that's correct.

Q. So wouldn't it be fair to say that since
1998, you've provided both accounting and auditing
services to the Feoffees?

A. I've provided preparation of tax returns
plus audits.

Q. Did you prepare pro formas for the Feoffees?

A. I assisted in the preparation of pro formas.

Q. And is that an accounting function rather
than an auditing function?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. So you've been an accountant to the Feoffees
in addition to an auditor?

A. I've assisted with accounting functioms.

Q. Are you trying to -- is the reason you're
wording it that way because as an auditor you need
to maintain your independence?

A. No. We are allowed to work on pro formas
and that sort...

Q. Okay. As an independent auditor, you're
allowed to do tax preparation, and you're allowed to
do pro formas, right?

A. That's correct.
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Q. You're just not allowed to be the one
preparing the books and records of the organization
which you'ré auditing?

A. That's correct.

Q. 2among other things?

A, Yes.

Q. If you go to Page 5, there's a question
about whether the organization leased assets to or
leased assets from a related party. And there's a
ves checked off.

Do you know why that was checked off?

A. It may have been incorrect.

Q. For some of the period of time during which
you've audited the Feoffees, was it your
understanding that Jim Foley and/or his family owned
a cottage at Little Neck for some period of time?
Correct?

A. I would say that's correct.

Q. All right.

A. I don't -~

Q. In fact, that cottage was owned by Mr. Foley
and/or his family when you started providing
services, is that correct?

A. I'm not sure.
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Q. Is it your understanding at some point it
may have been sold?

A. I'm not aware.

Q. If Mr. Whiston's parents or his daughter
owned a cottage, would you be required to check yves
next to Box C?

A. Could you restate that?

Q. Yes. Let me restate it.

I didn't mean to reference Box C on Page
5. I meant to reference 24B. Okay?

24B asks whether the organization leased
assets to or leased assets from a related party,
right?

A. That's the question, yes.

Q. Okay. And this answer would have to be
answered yes if the Feoffees leased real estate to a
Feoffee, right?

A. I would say that's correct.

Q. Does this box also have to be checked yes if
the Feoffees leased real estate to a Feoffee's
spouse?

A. I would say that would probably fall under
the definition of a related party in some sort.

Q. And the same is true, isn't it, for parents
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and children, as far as you know?

A. As far as I know.

Q. Did you indicate anywhere on this Exhibit 1
that the Form 990 that's attached to the Form PC was
not actually filed with the IRS?

A. Could you restate that, please?

MR. PERRY: Could you read that back,
please?

(Last question read back by Reporter.)

THE WITNESS: Could you read it one more
time?

(Last question read back by Reporter.)

A. I did not indicate.

Q. If you go to Page 7 of the 990, you'll see
Question 83A, "Did the organization comply with the
public inspection requirements for returns and
exemption applications?"®

Do you know what is being referred to in
that line where it refers to public inspection
requirements for returns?

A. I believe public inspection requirements for
the Form PC that was filed.

Q. You don't think it refers to public

inspection requirements for Form 990s?
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A. TI do not.

Q. If you go to Page -- the page that contains
Statement 5, Statement 6, Statement 7, Statement 8
on the 990, at the beginning of the year, the land
is shown at 15,419,000, right?

A. TUh-huh.

Q. End of the year, you're showing it at =zero,
is that right?

A, Yes.

Q. Is that because under generally accepted
accounting principles, the land is supposed to be
accounted for a cost?

A. That's correct.

Q. Was this the year in which that adjustment
was made?

A. That's correct.

Q. Had you provided any audited financial
statements for any years before 2005?

A. Yes.

Q. And on the years prior to 2005, were you
showing the land at this assessed value?

A. It was shown that way.

Q. And was that an incorrect way to include it

on the audited financial statements?
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A. No.

Q. Did the rules change?

A. No.

Q. Well are you saying that you concluded that
either way is correct?

A. If you read the opinion for those years, it
was stated that that was a departure from generally
accepted accounting principles, which was stated in
the opinion.

Q. Okay. If you go to Exhibit B of your
audited financial statement, Page 3, you have a
statement of activities?

A. Yes.

Q. Does that differ in any way from what
normally would be called an income statement?

A. That's correct. There's no difference.

Q. Why here is it called a statement of
activities rather than income statement?

A. That's the nomenclature for a non-profit
organization.

Q. Okay. Thank you. So if we look at change
in net assets, that would be for a different kind of
organization, that would be what would be called

income?
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A. No, that's not correct.
Change in net assets, is that the
question?
Q. Yes.

A. Change in net assets. Excuse me. I thought

you said net assets.

Q. No. The line that says change in net
assets --

A. It would be similar to net income for a
profit corporation, a for-profit entity.

Q. Thank you. What does the column "board
designated"” mean?

A. That is where members of the governing body
can designate funds for future purposes, which was
done in prior years and eventually was reversed.

Q. Explain to me about what was éventually
reversed.

A. Well, eventually, it was combined as part of
the undesignated. 1It's the same thing as far as net
assets are concerned. They're unrestricted.

Q. If you were -- your audited financial
statement doesn't indicate that there's any taxes
due to the federal government, correct?

A. That is correct.

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Daniel E. Clasby

36

Q. And you've given an opinion that that's --
the statements are fair and accurate in all material
respects, correct?

A. They're fairly stated.

Q. And that means that it's your opinion that
the Feoffeeé do not, in fact, owe any federal taxes,
right?

A. We didn't state that they did.

(Discussion off the record.)

Q. Let's go to Exhibit 2. And if we look at
the Form PC attachments, we still have this
disclosure of the renting of a lot to the Foley
Family Trust.

And I think you've told me that you
don't know whether that was accurate or not when
this was done?

A. That's correct. I think sometimes what
happens is people, the same as last year, type in --
it could have been an oversight.

Q. Well I understand. Obviously, when you
prepare financial statements such as these that have
disclosures, your starting point is to copy the same
document from the year before because, typically,

the accounting doesn't change and so forth, but the
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question I was going to ask you is, if you were the
auditor for the organization --

A. Yes.

Q. -- and as somebody signing these for the
organization, isn't there supposed to be a process
where people make sure that the information in this
document is accurate?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. So whose responsibility was it with
respect to this return to make sure that any
disclosures about Feoffees renting to Feoffees was
accurate?

A. I would say whoever signed the return.

Q. Well were you also required to ask the
question each year?

A. Yes.

Q. So it would be a joint responsibility of you
and the person signing the return?

A. Correct.

Q. And that would be Mr. Foote in these yvears?

A. That's correct.

Q. TIf you go to Exhibit 1 again, and turn to
the statement of activities, which is toward the

back of the package --
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A. Going back to Exhibit 1?

Q. Yes, please.

A. Okay.

Q. ~- you'll see that there are legal fees of
$3,673 for the year, is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And that's for the year ending June 30,
20067

A. That is correct.

Q. And for the years up through 2006, would you
say that was a fairly typical amount that was spent
on legal fees?

A. I mean, the statements are available. I
don't recall what the numbers are.

Q. And in 2007, on Exhibit 2, you'll see that
the legal fees were $251,714.

And do you remember an event taking
Place that led to this increase in legal fees?

A. I would say it was the -- I'm not sure of
the dates, but it would probably relate to the suit
by the tenants.

Q. Okay. Are there requirements under
generally accepted accounting principles to make

disclosures concerning contingencies in litigations?
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A. Yes.

Q. And do you know what those rules are, what
kind of disclosure needs to be made?

A. Depends on the circumstances.

Q. Suppose there's some material litigation.

What is the requirement for the detail

of the description that needs to be given under
generally accepted auditing principles?

A. Well it would be accounting principles, not
auditing. Auditing standards.

Q. Okay. Under auditing standards and GAAP.

A. It would be under accounting principles.
You would disclose material litigation, but you
can't -- there's no estimates that are made without
validity.

Q. You don't make estimates.

Are you required -- I see what you said,

"There is pending litigation regarding alleged right
of occupancy of certain tenants located at Little
Neck in Ipswich, Massachusetts."

A. Right.

Q. TIs that a sufficient disclosure under
generally accepted accounting principles?

A. Well generally accepted accounting
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principles don't describe -- I mean, in certain
instances, they give examples of disclosures, and
that was similar to other examples.

Q. Do you know whether any claims were being
asserted by the Feoffees against the tenants --
strike that.

Do you know whether at the time you
prepared Exhibits 1 through 4 the Feoffees were
seeking to recover additional funds from the tenants
beyond the amounts that they had collected?

A. Yes.

Q. And what is your understanding in that
regard as to what funds the Feoffees were seeking to
collect from the tenants?

A. I'm not sure what you mean by "funds."

Q. I asked you whether you were aware that the
tenants were -- I asked you whether you were aware
that the Feoffees were seeking to collect additiomnal
amounts from the tenants. And you said vyes.

A. Yes.

Q. What is your understanding concerning
additional amounts that the Feoffees were seeking to
recover from the tenants?

A. Additional -- an increase in rental income.
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Q. And was that -- so that was potentially an
asset of the Feoffees, correct?

A. Potentially.

Q. Are there any requirements under generally
accepted accounting principles that you discuss
contingent recoveries?

A. It was unknown at the time what the result
would be.

Q. Are you required to disclose, in order for
the financial statements to be fair, that the
Feoffees are seeking to recover additional amounts?

A. Whatever I disclosed is what I disclosed.

Q. I'm asking whether you were required to make
a greater disclosure than you made.

A. I disclosed -- whatever I disclosed, I
disclosed.

Q. You're not going to answer my question?

A. I mean, I have.

Q. And do you know whether the tenants were
seeking to recover anything from the Feoffees in the
litigation?

A. I'm not aware of amounts. I was aware there
was litigation.

Q. Did you review any documents to understand
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what was involved in the litigation?

A. Certain documents.

Q. I assume you had a letter from counsel for
the Feoffees describing the litigation?

A. I've had correspondence from them.

Q. Did you have so-called audit response
letters?

A. Not in every yvear.

Q. Why not?

A. We had management rep letters that were
covering what we believed was necessary.

Q. Did you have an audit response letter in any
of the years from counsel for the Feoffees
concerning the tenant litigation?

A. Not that I'm aware of.

Q. Were you supposed to write to the lawyers
and get audit response letters?

A. I discussed with counsel orally.

Q. You discussed that with Mr. Sheehan?

A. With the Feoffees' counsel, yes.

Q. Which counsel are you referring to?

A. Mr. Sheehan.

Q. About whether you should submit --

A. Just the nature of the ongoing litigation.
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Q. Isn't there a requirement under audit
standards that you're supposed to write, or have the
client write to the lawyers concerning any pending
litigation and get an audit response letter which
you then review as part of your audit?

A. Yes. Some audit procedures use that. T did
it orally, not in writing.

Q. Don't generally accepted standards require
that you do it in writing?

A. We went through the management rep letter.

Q. I'm asking a different question.

If I were to go research this issue with
the AICPA, were you supposed to have sent a letter
or have the client send a letter to Mr. Sheehan's
firm to get a written report concerning this
litigation?

A. Yes. Possibly.

Q. Any reason you didn't do that?

A, No.

Q. Are there any rules that require that any
compensation paid to a related party be reasonable?
A. From Internal Revenue Service standards?

Q. And/or state law.

A. State law, I'm not -- I'm not aware of state
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law.

Q. Under Intermnal Revenue standards, there
would be such a requirement if the Internal Revenue
Code applied to this organization?

A. Could be.

Q. Was it any part of your function as auditor
to pass upon the reasonableness of the compensation?

A. No.

Q. Do you know what Mr. Foley was doing to earn
the compensation that was provided to him in fiscal
vyears 2008 and 20097

A. In general terms only.

Q. In general terms, what is your
understanding?

A. He was managing the organization at the
time.

Q. Are you aware of any escrow arrangement
being established in connection with amounts that
the Feoffees were attempting to collect from the
tenants for additional rent?

A. Yes.

Q. And what was your understanding about this
escrow account?

A. It was an escrow account established under
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both entities. The tenants and the Feoffees were on
the account.

Q. All right. And if you take a look at your
-- let's take a look at Exhibit 4, which covers
fiscal year June 30, 2009.

And if you look at the financial
statements for that year, is it your understanding
this escrow account was still in existence at that
time?

A. At June 30, 2009, ves.

Q. Okay. Did you make any disclosure about
this escrow account in the financial statements?

A. In the footnotes.

Q. Can you show me where?

A. The very last page, Page 7.

Q. True. So as of June 30, 2009, the amount in
the escrow account was 1,120,077, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And as you say in that note, there's no
disclosure anywhere else in the financial statements
of any amount claimed in rent by the Feoffees over
and above what they have been paid, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Was it your determination that these Form
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PCs were required to be filed with the Attorney

General's office between 1998 and

the present?

A. It was not my determination.

Q. Whose determination was it?

A. The Attorney General.

Q. And how did you learn of that determination?

A. I don't recall.

Q. Is it your recollection that somebody

complained to the Attorney General's office about

the fact that these hadn't been filed?

A. Could be, yves.

Q. And is that what led you to start filing

them?

A. When the Attorney General
Feoffees file them, yes.

Q. Did that happen before or
an accountant or service provider

A. I don't recall.

Q. Had you done any work for
before 1998?

A. I did not.

requested that the

after you became

for the Feoffees?

the Feoffees

Q. When you did do work for the Feoffees

starting in 1998, did you prepare

engagement letter?

any kind of
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A. I would assume I did.

Q. How frequently after 1998 did you prepare
any engagement letters?

A. Annually.

Q. And generally speaking, what do those
engagement letters say is the scope of services
you're providing?

A. I will prepare the audited financial
statements and the filing of Form PC.

Q. How do you bill the Feoffees for extra
services such as pro formas?

A. On an hourly basis.

Q. What's the rate?

A. $150 per hour.

Q. If a determination were made by the Internal

Revenue Service that the tax returns were required
to be filed by the Feoffees, what would be the
consequences?
What would be the risks involved?

A. Well that's going to take a while to answer
probably.

Q. 1In general, there could be some exposure to
taxes, penalties and interests?

A. All profits were returned, typically, to a
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charitable beneficiary, so that there was no net
assets accruing to the benefit of the...

Q. Were you engaged to perform any work in
connection with the, any of the litigation between
the Feoffees and the tenants or between the Feoffees
and the school committee?

A. No.

Q. Well did you do ~--

A. I did some work on the pro formas, yes.

Q. And did you understand that to be in
connection with pending litigation?

A. Yes.

Q. Who engaged you to do that work?

A, Attorney Sheehan.

Q. And who provided you with factual
information for purposes of your performing that
work?

A. Attorney Sheehan.

Q. So you weren't dealing directly with any of
the Feoffees in that engagement?

A. That is correct.

Q. What was your role as to determining whether
any of the assumptions in the pro formas was valid?

A. Use of judgment on my part.
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Q. All right. Well let's go over them. And
You can tell me whether any of the assumptions that
were made were your assumptions or whether they were
things you were instructed to do.

Fair enough?

A. Fair.

MR. PERRY: Bill, off the record.

(Discussion off the record.)

MR. PERRY: Let's mark the income
statement as our next exhibit.

(Marked, Exhibit 5, income statement,
yYear ended October 31.)

Q. I've put in front of you the document that's
entitled "Pro Forma Income Statement For Years Ended
October 31."

Is this a pro forma income statement
that you prepared at the request of counsel for the
Feoffees?

A. Yes.

Q. And am I correct that this document shows
six different scenarios?

A. That is correct.

Q. All right. And the first three scenarios

are projections of what the income statements would
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look like if no sale was permitted, and then the
next three are projections that are based on a sale
being permitted, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Okay. Let me start with your first
alternative and ask you some questions.

In the first row, you have listed a
figure for tenant and leaseholder rents, right?

A. Correct.

Q. And that figure that you list is $1,075,536?

A. Correct.

Q. Ahd that is a figure based on the amount
that would be paid -- is that the sum of the amounts
being paid under the existing leases, plus the
amounts that the tenants are agreeing to pay?

A. Correct.

Q. It doesn't account for additional amounts
that the tenants had been paying into escrow before
the settlement agreement?

A. That is correct.

Q. And it doesn't account for any claims by the
Feoffees for additiomnal rent, true?

A. That is correct.

Q. You're aware that the tenants are paying
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less in rent than the Feoffees claim is a fair
market rental value of the property, correct?

A. I'm aware what they are paying in rent, yes.

Q. Are you also aware that the Feoffees are of
the opinion that the tenants are paying insufficient
amounts in rent?

A. In contrast to the leaseholders.

Q. Yes.

A. Yes.

Q. You understand that the Feoffees claim that
the tenants should be paying at least what the
leaseholders are paying?

A. Yes.

Q. Is it your assumption in this scenario that
the Feoffees will never recover any rent beyond that
amount that the tenants are currentlyvpaying?

A. We just assumed that the rents would remain
steady through the litigation process.

Q. And how long are you assuming that the
litigation process will last?

A. Through the year 2015.

Q. And as a matter of accounting practice,
wouldn't there be a contingent asset growing during

these years if the tenants are paying less than the
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fair market rent of the property?

A. I don't -- where would that be disclosed?

Q. Is this a cash-based analysis?

A. Yes.

Q. And do you have an opinion as to whether the
litigation, if there were no sale, would be resolved
before 20157

A. I do not have an opinion on that.

Q. So the assumption you're making when you do
these pro formas is, one, that there would be no
settlement or resolution of the litigation through
2015, correct?

A. On this pro forma, ves.

Q. And second, that there would be no ability
by the Feoffees between now and 2015 to collect any
additional rent even if the tenants ought to be
paying it?

A. On this pro forma.

Q. And you acknowledge that under this
particular pro forma, there is an amount not shown,
which is a growing claim in the millions of dollars
by the Feoffees for additional rent, right?

A. Yes.

Q. And you've said that that's just not shown
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here because you don't have a place to show it?

A. Correct.

Q. Let me show you --

MR. SHEEHAN: Can we go off the record
for a minute?

MR. PERRY: Yes.

(Discussion off the record.)

Q. Mr. Clasby, I was going to ask you about
your balance sheet, but let's just continue on with
Exhibit 5.

A. Exhibit 5, ves.

Q. The Institution For Savings note, when you
did the pro forma, are those all interest amounts on
that line?

A. Correct. That is correct.

Q. And that was based on the interest rate that
was in effect at the time you did these pro formas?

A. That is correct.

Q. Did you know that it had adjusted down?

A. It has adjusted down since these pro formas
were completed.

Q. So that's not shown here, right?

A. That's correct.

Q. In addition, this assumes no ability to
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refinance that note at lower amounts, correct?

A. The way it's shown, yes. It's not saying no
ability. It's just the way it's shown.

Q. Right. And in fact, would you agree that in
the event the litigation is resolved and the
Feoffees are successful in entering into long-term
leases, that would also open up new financing
opportunities, wouldn't it?

A. Correct.

Q. And if they had a critical mass of leases --
it wouldn't even have to be all of them -- they
would have some secure income that could be pledged
to support a borrowing?

A. Right.

Q. And then they could get rates that were much
closer to prime than the current rates, right?

A. Market rates.

Q. And market rates would be substantially
lower than what they're currently paying even with
the adjustment?

A. Could be.

Q. Okay. Do you know how many years the
principal is amortized over, is that a 30-year

amortization?
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A. I believe it's 20.

Q. The line for erosion note, that's a
hypothetical borrowing to pay for erosion control?

A. That is correct.

Q. And that's the interest there that you're
showing?

A. That is correct.

Q. There's a line for legal fees.

Did you make any independent
determination as to whether in a no-sale context,
$120,000 a year for non-litigation legal fees is
appropriate?

A. In discussion with counsel, that was the
figure that we arrived at.

Q. Is that essentially a figure that you
assumed based on instructions from counsel?

A. Yes.

Q. So you're not vouching for that figure?

A. Correct.

Q. Certainly it's high compared to historical
expenditures of legal fees by this trust outside of
a litigation context, isn't it?

A. The term "general"” might be as kind of a

catchall for all sorts, not just the Superior Court
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litigation.

Q. Well you have two lines. You have legal
fees general, and legal fees Superior Court.

A. Right, right.

Q. So I'm assuming that the first line --

A. Well there are legal fees to be generated
outside the Superior Court litigation.

Q. Okay.

A. Again, this is with no sale permitted, you
know, it's...

Q. I've asked you whether those are high
compared to the level of fees that had been incurred
historically for non-litigation purposes.

A. Again, you know, there's been fees that have
been generated in recent history that isn't --

Q. I see what you're saying.

But those fees in recent history, what
do those relate to?

A. I mean...

Q. They arise out of the controversy with the
tenants, don't they?

A. Generally speaking, yes.

Q. You show the Superior Court litigation fees

going on for two and a half years, is that right?
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A. That's the way it is showing.

Q. So this actually is assuming the litigation
would end after two and a half yYyears, correct?

A. As far as legal fees being generated, yes.

Q. And then even after the litigation is
concluded, you did not make any adjustment to rent,
right?

A. That is the way it is shown.

Q. Omn your repairs and maintenance line, do you
know what that covers?

A. That would be anticipated expenses to the
system, annual repairs that could come up.

Q. Are the tenants or leaseholders, were they
paying any amounts that were supposed to cover
repairs and maintenance to the wastewater system?

A. Currently, there's a monthly charge for
overhead and maintenance.

Q. 1Is that the $40 a month that's being
charged?

A. Right.

Q. Why would that not be sufficient --

A. These are expenses --

Q. Let me finish the question.

A. Sure. I'm sorry.

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Daniel E. Clasby

58

Q. Were you opining in these pro formas that
the $40 a month that was being paid was insufficient
to cover repairs and maintenance?

A. I'm opining that these figures are above the
reimbursement of those numbers, yes.

Q. In other words, the $40 a month, that's
supposed to be adequate to cover the cost of the
system, right?

A. I'm not one to make an opinion on that.

Q. 1It's approximately $80,000 a year, right?

A, If you say so. I don't have the numbers off
my head.

Q. The quick math is $480 per cottage, which we
round to $500, with 160-something cottages, right?

So it's in the ballpark of $80,000 a
year, right?

A. Well they pay $500 a year.

Q. Right.

A. Times 160, that's 8,000.

Q. I think it's 80,000.

A. 80,0007

Q. 160 times a thousand is 160,000 --

A. Sorxy.

Q. That's okay. I didn't give you a
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calculator.

A. I shouldn't need it. I'm usually pretty
good at math.

Q. Not when you're having to have the stress of
a deposition. So you get special allowance.

A. Thank you.

Q. But it's around $80,000 a year.

Do you know why there's projected to be
repairs and maintenance each year of another 40,000
or so?

A. No, I don't have a clue.

Q. The depreciation and amortization item,
that's a non-cash item that you add back on in your
cash flow analysis, right?

A. Yes.

Q. Now this Alternative 1A is sort of the
worst-case scenario in the sense that this is no
sale permitted --

THE WITNESS: Can I ask a procedure
question?

MR. SHEEHAN: Why don't we take a break.
Come on out.

(Witness confers with counsel.)

MR. SHEEHAN: The witness just wanted to
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expand upon one of his previous answers, Steve.

Q. Did you want to add anything to one of your
prior answers?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Why don't you do that.

A. On the repairs and maintenance expense, that
also includes expenses for road repairs, things like
that, that are not covered by the monthly
assessment.

Q. Do you know how that breaks down?

A. I don't.

Q. If the Feoffees were charging a sufficient
amount through the monthly charge to cover the
wastewater system repairs and maintenance, then the
figure you've listed for repair and maintenance
would be reduced by an amount that's currently
unknown to you?

A. Correct.

MR. PERRY: I'm going to mark as Exhibit
6 your pro forma for the -- I don't know if this is
your additional schedule or cash flow. We'll have
it marked as Exhibit 6, and you can tell me.

(Marked, Exhibit 6, subschedule of

numbers.)
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Q. Could you tell us, please, what we've just
marked as Exhibit 67?

A. These are subschedules that relate to where
some of the numbers come from in the balance sheet
and income statement.

Q. Okay. I was hoping you could walk me
through this so I can understand it.

So we start out with an opening balance
of 25,000, which I assume is some kind of cash
balance?

A. That's correct.

Q. Assuming you would start with.

A. Yes.

Q. Was that an actual cash balance, or was that
a projected cash balance?

A. That was projected because it's not the
normal year end for the Feoffees.

Q. So you don't know if that's the corfect
figure or not?

A. Back at that time, it was just --

Q. Projected?

A. -- projected.

Q. Do you know what the Feoffees actual

approximate cash balance was on October 31, 20117
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A. We're not there yet.

Back in '10, October 31, 2010, I could
get you that. I don't know offhand.

Q. Do you know what its current cash balance
is?

A. No.

Q. All right. And you added in to this figure
the net income before depreciation.

That's like a cash adjustment, right?

A. That's the -- yes.
Q. Cash flow type adjustment?

- A. Sure. Yes. All we're doing is showing how
we came up with the cash balance that was presented
on the pro forma balance sheet each year.

So you see the ending balance. That
would tie out to what was shown on the balance
sheet.

Q. Well let me just get there.

A. Sure.

Q. So then the erosion note -- the next item is
erosion note proceeds?

A. Yes.

Q. And why is that a positive figure?

A. It's cash that would come in from a note.

Jones Reporting Company
617-451-8900




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Daniel E. Clasby

63

And you see it was deducted down below when they
performed the remediation.

Q. Maybe I'm just not following the column
right.

The 13,302 figure is the net income?

A. Correct.

Q. Okay. Then you show the $900,000 coming in
from the note?

A. Right.

Q. Then you show a change in accounts payable?

A. Correct.

Q. What does that mean?

A. That would mean that accounts payable
increased from the beginning of the vyear to the end
of the year. So it reduced net income but had no
affect on cash.

So I added that back.

Q. Then you show the note being paid, right?

A. Correct -- no, not the note being paid.
That shows the disbursement --

Q. The erosion being paid for?

A, Yes.

Q. The erosion being fixed?

A. Yes,
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are

Q. Then you show some principal payments that

being made on one of the notes that aren't shown

on your income statement because that only shows the

interest?

A. Correct.

Q. You show some principal payback on the

erosion note?

A. Yes.

Q. And the depreciation add-back, do you do

that on a separate schedule?

A. What I did was, instead of taking net

income, Steve, I just took net income before

depreciation and amortization.

pro

the

and

Q. Oh, I see. You already backed it out?

A. Yes. That's right.

Q. Have you done any updating of any of YOur
forma work?

A. No.

Q. Have you done any work in connection with
litigation after you prepared these pro formas
before today?

A. No.

Q. Do you know whether the Feoffees would be

able to refinance their existing debt to lower rates
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at this time without mortgaging the property?

A. In my opinion?

Q. Well I'm really asking you factually.

Do you have any information as to their
ability to refinance existing debt?

A. I don't.

Q. Now your Alternative 1B is the same as 1a,
except for now you're refinancing that existing
loan, right?

A. Yes. That's correct.

Q. Based on an assumed mortgage of the
property?

A. Yes. That's correct.

Q. And this is showing, if we just look at the
last two lines, a positive cash flow, right?

A. Which line? I'm sorry.

Q. Well comparing the amount of depreciation
and amortization to the net income.

A. I'm not sure what page you're on.

Q. Alternative 1B of Exhibit 5.

A. Oh, I was on Exhibit 6. All right.

So we're back to Exhibit 5. Okay.
Q. Alternative 1B, would you agree that, just

doing a quick comparison of the depreciation and
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amortization of non-cash items to the net income,
that if you were under Alternative 1B and all your
assumptions were the same, the cash flow becomes
positive?

A. Cash flow before any payments to the bank on
pPrincipal, yes.

Q. Okay. So this doesn't show any of the
principal payments?

A. We should have a cash flow similar. If you
went to your Exhibit 6, Page 2, that would relate to
this schedule.

Q. And what is this showing as far as cash
flow?

A. Ultimately, it shows there's no cash --
there's a negative cash flow.

Q. Which line are you looking at?

A. Under cash, the ending balance of cash is
less than what the beginning balance was. I mean,
it's pretty immaterial.

Q. Now this is based on spending $420,000 in
legal fees, right?

A. That is correct.

Q. Per year, for two years?

A. For two years.
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Q. Under your various alternatives where you
are dealing with the sale of the units, you've
assumed that the tenants would finance their
purchases through the Feoffees at different levels,
right?

A. That's correct.

Q. So one you assumed 90 percent of them or 90
percent of the cash is through financing?

A. Yes.

Q. And the second assumption is 70 percent, and
the third assumption is 50 percent?

A. That's correct.

Q. And at this time, the financing offered by
the Feoffees is significantly higher at six percent
than tenants would be able to obtain in the market
if they were able to get equity financing on their
homes or mortgage financing, right?

A. Equity financing on their homes, I would
say, ves. It's not their principal residence.
Rates are usually different for...

Q. And if they were able to get wvacation home
financing, do you know what rates are for that at
this time?

A. I don't know.
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Q. Are they lower than six percent?

A. I don't know.

Q. You don't know whether these percentages of
90 percent, 70 percent or 50 percent are reasonable
assumptions, correct?

A. They were what counsel had asked us to do.

Q. Right. Under your sale scenarios, do you
show distributions to the Ipswich schools?

Maybe it's not on the ones I gave you.

A. Okay.

MR. SHEEHAN: It's on what's going to be
either Exhibit 7 or 8, Steve, I think.

MR. PERRY: Let's have marked as Exhibit
7 a copy of your schedule showing the balance
available for distribution.

(Marked, Exhibit 7, schedule showing
balance available for distribution.)

Q. On Exhibit 7, if you go to the last three
pages, these show the amounts that are shown as
available for distribution to the schools under each
of your scenarios, right?

A. That is correct.

Q. Now in some of your -- in your pro formas,

you generally were assuming a three-percent
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inflation rate?

A. I would say that's on the -- yes.

Q. On your expenses?

A. Probably. Expenses were five percent, I
believe.

Q. Okay. So you assume that there would be
inflation of as much as five percent per year?

A. Could be. It's not just inflation but just
a contingency that expenses might increase.
Circumstances change.

Q. Okay. These pro formas showing amounts
available for the schools are based on an assumption
of the entire net income being distributed, right?

A. Net income less the principal payments to
the banks.

Q. The entire net cash flow being distributed?

A. Yes.

Q. If the trust were every year to distribute
the entire net cash flow available, then wouldn't it
over time see the corpus reduced if one takes into
account inflation?

A. You say the principal amount of the corpus
wouldn't be worth as much?

Q. Yes. That's really what I was asking.
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A. You're never going to dip into the corpus to
pay principal.

Q. Let me try it a different way.

Would you agree if one were trying to go
with a sale, then the goal would be to maintain the
corpus, the purchasing power of the corpus, right?

A. That is correct.

Q. So you wouldn't want to have the corpus stay
at a steady level such that over time it became
worthless in purchasing power?

A. Right. You would hope that the investment
managers would take that into consideration. That's
what we relied on.

Q. But for the first five years, you are
showing all of the cash flow coming out to the
schools without any increase in the corpus, aren't
you?

A. That's just the income. We're not showing
increase in principal. We're just showing that the
income that was generated, just as if you owned a
trust and you had to pay out all the income, that's
what is assumed here.

Q. Well let's look at Alternative 2A.

A. Sure.
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Q. In Alternative 2A, 90 percent of the assets
of the trust consist of promissory notes from
tenants?

A. Okay.

Q. Right? Fair characterization?

A. Yes.

Q. There's no corpus being invested to speak
of, right?

A. Not significant, right.

Q. So under this scenario, at the end of the
five years, when the tenants pay back those balloon
notes, right --

A. Okay. Yes.

Q. -- the corpus will be the same in size in
2015, more or less, as it was in 2011, right?

A. It might be good. If you look at Merrill
Lynch now, you want your money there?

Q. Well under your pro forma, at the end of the
five-year period, the corpus would be approximately
the same size --

A. We have not made any projections on the
corpus.

Q. Let me just finish the question.

A. I'm sorry.
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Q. Under your Alternative 2A, because virtually
all the assets are just being invested in the form
of promissory notes to tenants on a balloon payment
basis, isn't it true that at the end of the five
Years, you would expect the corpus to be essentially
the same size as it was at the beginning of the five
years?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And if there were any inflation
during those five years, the real value of the
corpus would have diminished?

A. You could possibly say that, argue that.

Q. So that would probably not be the most wise
distribution policy?

A. I can't comment on that. I don't think --
as I said, if you look at your investments now...

Q. You think right now, if you had a lot of
cash to invest and you were to invest it in the
market, that would be something that would be very
chancy, correct?

A. Professional money managers would say -- I
can't make an assumption on that.

Q. Well you did state it.

A. Well I 4didn't state it but...
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Q. I mean, for example, if this property had

been sold on a cash basis in 2007 -- right?
A. Yes.
Q. -- it would probably have less money now

than it had in 2007?
MR. SHEEHAN: Objection.

Q. lOr certainly wouldn't have kept up with
rises in the consumer price index?

MR. SHEEHAN: Objection.

A. I can't speculate on that.

Q. Do you have any clients in the real estate
industry?

A. Yes.

Q. Are you familiar with the concept of net
leases?

A. Generally -- in general terms, yves.

Q. What do you understand net leases to be?

A. I'm not -- where are you coming at?

Q. Are you familiar with leases where the
tenants pay a certain amount of rent, and in
addition, they pay expenses associated with the
property?

A. Yes.

Q. Is that a common form of leasing?
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A. Uh-huh.

Q. And your assumptions in your pro formas are
that the tenants will be paying a designated rent on
a gross basis and the expenses would be the
responsibility of the Feoffees?

A. That is the way it's presented, ves.

Q. There are also scenarios where the Feoffees
could rent the premises under triple net leases?

A. Sure.

Q. And that would be a fairly common form of
rental for a ground lease, wouldn't it?

A. Could be.

MR. PERRY: All right. wWith the
admonitions from Mr. Sheehan, I'm going to conclude
the deposition.

Let's go off the record.

(12:16 p.m.)
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ERRATA SHEET
I, DANIEL E. CLASBY, do hereby certify that I
have read the foregoing transcript of my testimony,
and further certify that it is a true and accurate
record of my testimony (with the exception of the
corrections listed below):

Page Line Correction/Reason

Signed under the pains and penalties of perjury this

day of , 2011.

DANIEL E. CLASBY
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Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
Suffolk, ss. )

I, Lauren M. Mitchell, Registered
Professional Reporter and Notary Public in and
for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, do hereby
certify that DANIEL E. CLASBY came before me on
Tuesday, October 25, 2011, the deponent herein, who
was duly sworn; the examination was reduced to
printing under my direction and control; and the
within transcript is a true record of the testimony
given at said deposition.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am neither attorney
or counsel for, nor related to or employvyed by any of
the parties to the action in which this deposition
is taken; and, further, that I am not a relative or
employee of any attorney or counsel employed by the
parties hereto, or financially interested in the
outcome of the action.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my

hand this 27th day of October, 2011, at Boston.

WW.W

Lauren M. Mitchell, Notary Public

My Commission expires: 6/2/2017
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Mulholland v.

Daniel E. Clasby

Attorney General of Massachusetts October 25, 2011
Page 2 Page 4
L APPEARANCES: 1 PROCEEDINGS
2 MacLean Holloway Doherty Ardiff & Morse, P.C. 2 DANIEL E. CLASBY
3 William X. Sheehan, III, Esq. 3 appears before us today for his deposition and has
4 8 Essex Center Drive 4 been sworn by this Notary Public.
5 Peabody, Massachusetts 01960 5  This witness does not at present have
6 (978) 774-7123 6 adequate documentation attesting to his identity
7 wsheehanémhdpc. com 7 that satisfies the standards required by the State
8 Counsel for the Plaintiff 8 of Massachusetts for Notaries Public in
9 9 administering oaths.
10 Casner & Edwards, LLP 10  The parties in this action, therefore,
11 Stephen M. Perry, Esq. 11 agree to hold harmless this Notary Public if this
12 303 Congress Street 12 witness is later discovered to have falsified his
13 Boston, Massachusetts 02210 13 identity.
14 (617) 426-5900 14 EXAMINATION BY MR. PERRY:
15 perry@casneredwards.com 15 Q State your name, please.
16 Counsel for School Committee of the 16 A. Daniel E. C]asby_
17 Town of Ipswich and Richard Korb, 17 Q. What's your residential address?
18 Superintendent 18 A. 4 Mill Road, Ipswich, Mass.
19 19 Q. How long have you been a resident of
20 20 Ipswich?
21 21 A. 55 years.
22 22 Q. What's your date of birth?
23 23 A. 11/5/55.
24 24 Q. Sounds like you spent a couple of years
Page 3 Page 6
1 INDEZX
1 somewhere else.
2 2 A. Well college, I mean. I'll be 56. I live
3 WITNESS PAGE 3 in the same house I was born in.
4 DANIEL E. CLASBY 4 Q. Which part of Ipswich is 4 Mill Road in?
3 BY MR. PERRY: 4 5 A. It's about, I'd say it's about one and a
6 6 half miles from the railroad tracks in the center of
7 EXHRIBITS 7 town, out toward Topsfield. And Mill Road is a road
8  Exhibit 1, Form FC, 7/01/05 through 18 8 that goes to Hamilton and Wenham.
9 6/30/06 9 Q. Did you go to Ipswich High School?
10 Exhibit 2, Form PC, 7/01/06 through 18 10 A. Yes, 1 did.
11 6/30/07 11 Q. And what year did you graduate?
12 Exhibit 3, Form PC, 7/01/07 through 18 12 A. 1973.
13 06/30/08 13 Q. Were you in high school with any of the
14 Exhibit 4, Form PC, 7/01/08 through 18 14 Feoffees?
15 06730709 15 A. No.
16 Exhibit 5, income statement, year ended 49 16 Q. How does Jim Foley compare to you in his
17 October 31 17 age?
18 Exhibit 6, subschedule of numbers 60 18 A. Offhand, I don't know his age.
19  Exhibit 7, schedule showing balance 68 19 Q. What kind of schooling did you have after
20 available for distribution 20 you graduated from high school?
21 21 A. Four years of undergraduate school at Boston
22 22 College, and a master's degree in taxation at
23 ***EXHIBITS MARKED DURING THIS DEPOSITION 23 Bentley University.
24 WERE RETAINED BY ATTORNEY PERRY. 24 Q. What year did you graduate from BC?
Min-U-Script@® Jones Reporting Company (1) Pages2-S
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Mulholland v.
Attorney General of Massachusetts

Page 6

1977.

What was your degree?

Bachelor of science in accounting.

When did you get your master's at Bentley?

I can't remember what year it was, to be
honest 1 don't recall the year. 19 -- I'm not
sure of the exact year. It was in the early '80s,
'81, '82, somewhere in there.

Q. Could you summarize your occupational
history after graduating from BC?

A. Sure. I was hired by the firm Weyland,

POPOP
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[T
Bk o

Page 8

1 A. Same time, the early 1980s.
2 Q. Did you take it once or more than once?
3 A. Itook it more than once. You're allowed to
4 -- the parts carry over.
5 Q. Do you know how many times you took it?
6 A. Idon't recall
7 Q. What type of practice have you had working
8 first for Weyland, Coughlin & Company, then for
9 Coughlin & Clasby, and now for Daniel Clasby?
10 A. I'm not sure I understand.
11 Q. Will you describe what kind of accounting

12 Coughlin & Company in 1977. 12 practice you've carried out?
13 Q. What firm? 13 What kind of work do you do as an
14 A. Weyland, W-e-y-l-a-n-d, Coughlin, 14 accountant?
15 C-0-u-g-h-l-i-n, & Company. 15 A. We handle taxes for closely-held
16 Q. Where are they? 16 corporations and their shareholders. And we perform
17 A. At that time, they were in Lynn, 17 audit engagements and other attestation engagements.
18 Massachusetts. 18 Q. Ijust didn't catch your words there.
19 Q. What year did you say? 19 You say, "And other"...?
20 A. 1977. 20 A. Attestations, such as compilation and review
21 Q. Okay. Goon. 21 engagements.
22 A. Iworked for them. In 1987, Mr. Weyland 22 Q. How many people work for Daniel Clasby &
23 retired. Itook over his practice. And the firm's |23 Company?
24 name was called Coughlin & Clasby. 24 A. We have, at the present time, we have two
Page 7 Page 9
1 Q. Okay. Youcan go on. 1 CPAs. We have two support staff. And during tax
2 A. 1998, Mr. Coughlin passed away. And I 2 season, we usually hire one to two per diem.
3 became a sole proprietor, the name of the company | 3 Q. Are you one of the two CPAs?
4 now, Dan Clasby & Company. 4 A. No.
5 Q. So you've really been, in a sense, at the 5 Q. So you have two CPAs in addition to
6 same place your entire career? 6 yourself?
7 A. That's correct. 7 A. That's correct.
8 Q. When you joined Weyland, Coughlin & Company, | 8 Q. Are they full-time?
9 how many accountants were there? 9 A. 30 hours to 37 hours a week, depending on
10 A. Itvaried. At the time, there could have 10 the time of year.
11 been five accountants. I don't recall offhand, 11 Q. What percentage of your revenues would you
12 approximately. 12 estimate are derived from audit engagements?
13 Q. Approximately five? 13 A. I'dsay 15 to 20 percent.
14 A. Approximately five, besides the partners. 14 Q. How many audits do you do in a typical year?
15 Q. How many partners were there? 15 A. In a typical year, I'd say about, between 10
16 A. There were two, Weyland and Coughlin. 16 and 12 would be fair.
17 Q. They were CPAs? 17 Q. Are you a member of any professional
18 A. That's correct. Weyland was an attorney as |18 associations?
19 well 19 A. Presently, at the Mass. Society of Certified
20 Q. Did you sit for your CPA exam? 20 Public Accountants.
21 A. Yes. 21 Q. Have you ever been a member of any other
22 Q. When did you do that? 22 professional associations?
23 A. In the early 1980s. 23 A. Yes.
24 Q. And when did you pass it? 24 Q. Which ones?

Pages 6 -9 (2)
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Page 10

A. The American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Q. During what period of time were you a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants?

A. From the time I passed the CPA exam and had
met the experience requirements through 2007, I
believe. I'm not sure of the exact time.

Q. And what led to your no longer being a

10 member of the AICPA?

11 A. My membership was terminated for a period of

12 one year.

13 Q. And you chose not to rejoin?

14 A. Correct. At the present time.

15 Q. And what was the event that caused your

16 membership to be terminated?

17 A. Ihad performed an audit of a small public

18 company in the early 2000s. I issued an opinion on

W © N O U W NP

19 the June 30, 2004 statements of this company. And I
20 had not registered on a timely basis with the PCAOB.
21 Q. Public Accounting --

22 A. Public Company Accounting Oversight Board.
23 Q. Which is a requirement of the SEC?

24 A. That is correct.

Page 12

1 Q.
it.

A. Yes. I mean, at the time, we issued an
opinion on statements, financial statements as of
June 30, 2004.

Q. Right.

A. And it was my understanding that because
they were an unlisted company, that the effective

If you could be a little more concrete about

W N oUW

9 date of Sarbanes-Oxley and the registration process
10 was for audits performed for December 31, 2004, not
11 June 30.

12 Q. Allright. So you were aware that there was
13 arequirement, but you didn't think it applied to
14 you under the circumstances of the case?

15 A. That is correct.

16 Q. Was there any problem found with the audit
17 itself?

18 A. Not that I'm aware of.

19 Q. There was no restatement of the financials?
20 A. There was not.

21 Q. Was the company required to have their books
22 audited by a second accountant?

23 A. They decided not to pursue that.

24 Q. "They" being?

Page 11

Q.

A.

Q. Have you ever been registered with the
PCAOB?

1 Are you currently registered with the PCAOB?
2
3
4
5 A. Ihave not.
6
7
8
9

I am not.

Q. What does it require to become registered
with the PCAOB?

A. You would go through their normal peer
review procedures.

Q. What does that mean?

A. That means that you would -- they would

10
11

12 review your firm and review certain workpapers.
13 It's a process.

14 Q. Have you ever applied to be approved by the

15 PCAOB?

16 A. I have not.

17 Q. When you did your public company audit in
18 2004, were you aware of the requirement that you
19 register with the PCAOB?

20 A. I'was aware of the requirement as of a

21 certain date. And the date was incorrect.
22 Q. Ifyou could just explain that, because I
23 didn't understand what you meant by that.

24 A. Toissue -

Page 13

A. The company.

Q. When did you first become engaged by the
Feoffees?

A. My recollection is in the area of 1998.

Q. Asof 1998, did you know any of the
so-called life Feoffees?

Do you know what I mean by the --

A. Idon't understand -- I understand what a
life Feoffee is, but I don't understand what you

10 mean by, did you know them.

11 Q. Were you personally acquainted with Don

12 Whiston before you became engaged by the Feoffees in

13 19987

14 A. I knew who he was.

15 Q. Had you had any dealings with him?

16 A. No.

17 Q. Were you personally acquainted with Jim

18 Foley in 1998?

19 A. No, I was not.

20 Q. Were you personally acquainted with Peter

21 Foote?

22 A. Iknew who he was.

23 Q. But you hadn't had any personal dealings

24 with him?

0 N oUW N R

0
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Page 14 Page 16
1 A. No. 1 Q. And the client prepares certain financial
2 Q. What about Alex Mulholland? 2 statements, correct?
3 A. Again, I knew who he was. 3 A. Thatis correct.
4 Q. So you knew who all these individuals were, 4 Q. And then the auditor is required to provide
5 but you weren't friends with any of them, correct, 5 his professional opinion based on certain tests and
6 at the time? 6 procedures about the fairness of the financial
7 MR. SHEEHAN: Objection. 7 statements, correct?
8 A. I was not friends with any of them, no. 8 A. Correct.
9 Q. And you hadn't had any dealings with any of 9 Q. Did you do audit work for the Feoffees?
10 them? 10 A. DidIor have I?
11 A. At that time, no. 11 Q. Have you?
12 Q. Okay. So who was it that brought you in to 12 A. Yes.
13 work with the Feoffees? 13 Q. For what period of time did you prepare --
14 A. Don Whiston, 14 did you do audit work for the Feoffees?
15 Q. Do you know how he came to engage you as 15 A. Ibelieve the first year was 1998, June.
16 opposed to somebody else? 16 Q. So you've been an auditor to the Feoffees
17 A. I'm not aware. 17 since 19987
18 Q. Had you done work with the attorney for the 18 A. Yes.
19 Feoffees, Mr. Greenough? 19 Q. Now at the time you first audited the
20 A. Periodically. 20 Feoffees, did they have financial statements?
21 Q. Who did you succeed as the Feoffees' 21 A. Mr. Whiston prepared financial statements.
22 accountant, if anyone? 22 Q. Had there been any accountant or auditor
23 A. I'm not -- I'm not aware of anyone before 23 before you in 1998, that you were aware of?
24 me. 24 A. No.

Page 15

Q. When you became the Feoffees' accountant,
did you learn that there hadn't been a regular
accountant for the Feoffees before your engagement?

A. Yes.

Q. Who had been keeping the books and records
of the Feoffees before you became its accountant?

A. Well could I --

Q. Yes.

A. When you say "accountant,”" I'm not the
accountant. I'm the auditor, not accountant.

So there's a difference.

Q. What's the difference between an auditor and
an accountant?

A. Depends on the -- that is a very broad

15 question.

16 Q. An audit is a procedure in which you give

17 your opinion about the books -- the financial

18 statements of an audit client, correct?

19 A. Of a client, yes.

20 Q. In other words, an auditor is independent of

21 the client, right?

22 A. That is correct.

W 0o N U & Ww N R
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Page 17

Q. And was it your understanding that there
hadn't been any accountant or auditor for the
Feoffees on a regular basis before you were engaged?

A. No auditor.

Q. Had there been an accountant to the Feoffees
before you were engaged?

A. Idon't know.

Q. Between 1998 and the present, have the
Feoffees prepared -- have you prepared other
documents for the Feoffees other than audit opinions
between 1998 and the present?

A. Yes.

Q. What types of other documents have you
prepared?

A. Form PC, which is filed with the Attorney
General.

Q. Okay. What else?

Have you assisted the -- do the Feoffees
file Form 990s?

A. No, they do not.

Q. What is a Form 9907

A. Itis a tax return of a tax-exempt entity,

23 Q. Or required to be, correct? 23 organization.
24 A. That's correct. 24 MR. PERRY: Let's mark for
Pages 14 - 17 (4) Jones Reporting Company Min-U-Script®
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Page 18 Page 20
1 identification as Exhibits 1 through 4 documents 1 PC. It's not -- I don't believe it's -- I'm not
2 that have been provided to us in this litigation. 2 aware of it being in the actual document.
3 And on the first page of each of these documents, it | 3 Q. Okay. And if you turn to the sixth page of
4 says Form PC for a particular year. And then I'll 4 the document, Page 6 of the Form PC, there's a
5 ask you some particular questions. 5 signature line. And then there's the name Dan
6 (Marked, Exhibit 1, Form PC, 7/01/05 6 Clasby & Company. The copy we've been provided
7 through 6/30/06.) 7 doesn't include any signatures.
8 (Marked, Exhibit 2, Form PC, 7/01/06 8 Do you know who signed this?
9 through 6/30/07.) 9 A. Ican'trecall at the time.
10 (Marked, Exhibit 3, Form PC, 7/01/07 10 Q. One of the Feoffees?
11 through 06/30/08.) 11 A. One of the Feoffees, yes.
12 (Marked, Exhibit 4, Form PC, 7/01/08 12 Q. Did you have a discussion -- strike that.
13 through 06/30/09.) 13 Am I to understand from your testimony
14 MR. SHEEHAN: Could you give me the 14 that you prepared this Form 990 as an attachment to
15 years, Steve, of the various exhibits? 15 the Form PC, but, in fact, it was never, to your
16 MR. PERRY: Yes. Exhibit 1 is for the 16 understanding, filed?
17 fiscal year ending June 30, 2006. And each one 17 A. You'll have to clarify what you mean by
18 after that goes up one. 18 "filed.”
19 MR. SHEEHAN: Okay. Thanks. 19 Q. Yes. Thank you.
20 MR. PERRY: You're welcome. 20 If we look at the attachment, the Form
21 Off the record. 21 990 that is attached to this Form PC --
22 (Discussion off the record.) 22 A. Yes.
23 Q. The first thing I'd like to do, Mr. Clasby, 23 Q. --did this Form 990 ever get filed with the
24 isto identify what we have here. 24 [IRS?
Page 19 Page 21
1 MR. SHEEHAN: Off the record. 1 A. No.
2 (Discussion off the record.) 2 Q. And Form 990s, are they normally filed with
3 (Brief recess.) 3 the IRS?
4 Q. TI'veplaced in front of you documents that 4 A. For tax-exempt organizations that fit under
5 start out with the Form PC. 5 one of the categories of the, 501 of the Code.
6 A. Yes. 6 Q. Does that include public -- is there a
7 Q. But after that, there's also a Form 990. 7 category for charities that are for the benefit of
8 A. That is correct. 8 the -- of a state, a public fief trust, do you know?
9 Q. The first question I want to ask you is 9 MR. SHEEHAN: Objection to the form.
10 whether that Form 990, is that in any way part of or {10 Q. Do you know whether there's a tax-exempt
11 an attachment to the Form PC? 11 category for charities that are regarded as public
12 A. Thatis correct. 12 entities?
13 Q. Okay. So what we have here as Exhibit 1 is 13 A. Ithink you'd have to be more -- a charity
14 really just a Form PC? 14 isn't a public entity.
15 A. That's correct. 15 Q. What categories of exemptions are you aware
16 Q. With all the attachments? 16 of under Section 501 that you referenced?
17 A. That's correct. 17 A. I'm not sure of how many categories. There
18 Q. And did you prepare on behalf of the 18 are approximately 25 that I am aware -~ that I
19 Feoffees this Form PC? 19 recall. I don't know the exact number offhand.
20 A. Yes, Idid. 20 Q. When you were engaged in 1998 to do work for
21 Q. Is there a place in this document where it 21 the Feoffees, did you discuss with anybody there
22 states that, where it makes reference to the 22 what the scope of your engagement would be?
23 attached Form 990? 23 A. I would say yes.
24 A. It's just a requirement of the filing of the 24 Q. With whom did you have those discussions?
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Page 22 Page 24

1 A. Idon'trecall. Certainly Mr. Whiston was

2 involved.

3 Q. And did you learn at the time you had those

4 discussions that the Feoffees had never filed a Form

5 PC?

6 A. Eventually, I did, yes.

7 Q. Did you agree as part of your services to

8 make a determination of what filings the

9 organization needed to make to bring itself in
compliance?

A. 1 did not.

Q. Did you investigate any time between 1998

10
11
12

1 A. It depended on how they were going to be
classified, as a public or private entity, and
whether they fit into the Code section that was in
there.

Q. Allright. So whether the returns were
filed depended in part on whether they were
classified as a public entity or a private entity?

A. Could have been.

Q. Okay. So explain to me what would be the
implications if the Feoffees were classified as a
public entity for purposes of the tax return.

A. Essentially, the Feoffees were formed before

VW © N U W N
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11
12

14 Q. Well based on your review of the facts and

15 the history of the organization and your review of
16 the Code sections, what was your conclusion about
17 whether the Feoffees were supposed to file federal
18 tax returns?

19 A. I never issued a written opinion to anyone

20 on that.

21 Q. What was your conclusion that you did not
22 place in writing?

23 A. It was a matter to be determined later.
24 Q. Why to be determined later?

13 and the present whether the Feoffees were supposed |13 the Internal Revenue Code was put into place. And
14 to file any kind of federal tax return? 14 they did not fit neatly into one of the definitions.
15 A. I was not hired to do so. 15 Q. Iunderstand that. What I'm asking you is
16 Q. Ididn't ask you that. 16 this.
17 My question was, did you investigate at 17 You said that whether the Feoffees were
18 any time between 1998 and the present whether the |18 required to file tax returns could turn on whether
19 Feoffees were required to file any kind of federal 19 they classified as a private entity --
20 tax return? 20 A. I would take that back. That is not
21 A. Did I personally investigate? 21 correct.
22 Q. Did you look into it? 22 Q. Isthere any kind of a rule that would allow
23 A. At some point. 23 an organization that was classified as a public
24 Q. Allright. When did you look into it? 24 entity not to file tax returns?
Page 23 Page 25
1 A. Idon't recall the exact dates. 1 A. No, not that I'm aware of.
2 Q. Was it in the last five years? 2 Q. Well, for example, the Commonwealth of
3 A. Idon't recall, honestly. 3 Massachusetts does not file tax returns?
4 Q. What did you do to look into that issue? 4 A. Right.
5 A. We examined the facts of the makeup of the 5 Q. Federal tax returns, correct?
6 Keoffees and the history of the organization. 6 A. Ihave never prepared one for them.
7 Q. Okay. And what else did you do? 7 Q. The Town of Ipswich, does that have to file
8 A. Wereviewed the Code sections that would be | 8 federal tax returns?
9 applicable to certain types of organizations based | 9 A. I'm not aware.
10 on how they were considered or what they were |10 Q. As far as you know, it doesn't, right?
11 considered. 11 A. Correct.
12 Q. Okay. 12 Q. So there's some sort of exemption that
13 A. And no final determination was made. 13 public entities don't have to file federal tax

14 returns, do they?

15 A. Could be, yes.

16 Q. So ifthe Feoffees were a public entity in

17 the same way that the Town of Ipswich is a public
18 entity, it wouldn't have to file a federal tax

19 return, correct?

20 A. Ican'tsay.

21 Q. Are you aware of any exemptions that would
22 allow the Feoffees not to file tax returns if they
23 were a private entity?

24 A. Not specifically referenced by the Code.
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Page 26 Page 28
1 Q. Did you provide the Feoffees with this 1 Had he been the contact person after Don
2 information that there was no exemption in the Code | 2 Whiston ceased to serve in that role?
3 for filing tax returns if the Feoffees were a 3 A. Yes.
4 private organization? 4 Q. Did you file a Form PC for years earlier
5 A. I've had discussions with counsel only. 5 than 2005?
6 Q. Counsel only? 6 A. Yes.
7 Which counsel have you had those 7 Q. When did you make those filings?
8 discussions with? 8 A. Ibelieve 1998 was the initial filing.
9 A. The law firm of MacLean Holloway. 9 Q. So you filed each of those Form PCs in a
10 Q. Okay. Look at Exhibit 1. It starts out 10 timely fashion starting in 19982
11 with your Form PC. And if you look at Page 2, it |11 A. To the best of my recollection.
12 shows revenue in this fiscal year of 759,000 and 12 Q. Did you have any discussions with the
13 program services of 588,000. 13 Feoffees about their failure to file those for
14 And that would be the amount paid to the 14 earlier years?
15 school committee, right? 15 MR. SHEEHAN: Objection.
16 A. I'd have to look. I don't recall if that is 16 Q. Years earlier than 1998.
17 it or not. 17 A. Idon't recall.
18 Q. Allright. In the interests of time -- 18 Q. Did you have any discussions with anybody at
19 A. It's certainly part of it. 19 the Attorney General's office about the failure to
20 Q. --that would be where you would put the 20 file Form PCs for earlier years?
21 gift to the school committee, wouldn't it? 21 MR. SHEEHAN: Objection.
22 A. Yes, it would. 22 A. Idid not.
23 Q. Okay. And you're not aware, as we sit here, 23 Q. Am I correct that when you prepare a Form PC

24 of any other component of the 588,000 in that line, |24 fora client, that's an accounting function, not an

Page 27 Page 29
1 are you? 1 auditing function?
2 A. I'would have to research. I'd have to look 2 A. Iwould say that's correct.
3 at my records. 3 Q. So wouldn't it be fair to say that since
4 Q. As youssit here today, you're not aware of 4 1998, you've provided both accounting and auditing
5 anything other than -- 5 services to the Feoffees?
6 A. Ican'tsay that. Without looking at my 6 A. I've provided preparation of tax returns
7 records, I can't say that, 7 plus audits.
8 Q. And then after that, there's a listing of 8 Q. Did you prepare pro formas for the Feoffees?
9 expenses of $65,431, right? 9 A. Iassisted in the preparation of pro formas.
10 A. That's correct. 10 Q. And is that an accounting function rather
11 Q. Sois it fair to say that there was some 11 than an auditing function?
12 revenue in excess of expenditures and program 12 A. Yes,itis.
13 services in this fiscal year? 13 Q. So you've been an accountant to the Feoffees
14 A. Yes. 14 in addition to an auditor?
15 Q. And that was accumulated as part of the 15 A. I've assisted with accounting functions.
16 principal of the trust, right? 16 Q. Are you trying to -- is the reason you're
17 A. That is correct. 17 wording it that way because as an auditor you need
18 Yes, the 588 was the gift to the Town 18 to maintain your independence?
19 that year. It's stated in the financial statements, (19 A. No. We are allowed to work on pro formas
20 which are attached to this document. 20 and that sort...
21 Q. Okay. Thank you. 21 Q. Okay. As an independent auditor, you're
22 On Page 3, you have a name and telephone 22  allowed to do tax preparation, and you're allowed to
23 number of a contact person. You list that as Peter |23 do pro formas, right?
24 Foote. 24 A. That's correct.
Min-U-Script® Jones Reporting Company (7) Pages 26 - 29
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1 Q. You're just not allowed to be the one

2
3 which you're auditing?
4 A. That's correct.

5 Q. Among other things?
6 A. Yes.

7

8

9

10 yes checked off.

12 A. It may have been incorrect.

14 you've audited the Feoffees, was it your
16 a cottage at Little Neck for some period
17 Correct?

18 A. Iwould say that's correct.

19 Q. Allright.
20 A. Idon't--

23 services, is that correct?

Page 30

preparing the books and records of the organization

Q. If you go to Page 5, there's a question
about whether the organization leased assets to or
leased assets from a related party. And there's a
11 Do you know why that was checked off?

13 Q. For some of the period of time during which

15 understanding that Jim Foley and/or his family owned

of time?

21 Q. Infact, that cottage was owned by Mr. Foley
22 and/or his family when you started providing

W 0O N U kW N R

PR
N B o

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

and children, as far as you know?
A. As far as I know.

Q. Did you indicate anywhere on this Exhibit 1

that the Form 990 that's attached to the
not actually filed with the IRS?
A. Could you restate that, please?
MR. PERRY: Could you read that
please?

(Last question read back by Reporter.)
THE WITNESS: Could you read it one more

time?

(Last question read back by Reporter.)

A. Idid not indicate.

Q. Ifyou go to Page 7 of the 990, you'll see
Question 83A, "Did the organization comply with the
public inspection requirements for returns and

exemption applications?"

Do you know what is being referred to in
that line where it refers to public inspection

requirements for returns?

A. I believe public inspection requirements for

the Form PC that was filed.
Q. You don't think it refers to public

Page 32

Form PC was

back,

[y
[+)]

answered yes if the Feoffees leased real
Feoffee, right?
A. 1would say that's correct.

NN P R PR
P o w o

spouse?

N NN
W N

estate to a

Q. Does this box also have to be checked yes if
the Feoffees leased real estate to a Feoffee's

A. Iwould say that would probably fall under
the definition of a related party in some sort.
Q. And the same is true, isn't it, for parents

16

17 Q. Had you provided any audited financial

18
19
20
21
22
23
24

24 A. I'm not sure. 24 inspection requirements for Form 990s?
Page 31 Page 33
1 Q. Isit your understanding at some point it 1 A. Idonot.
2 may have been sold? 2 Q. Ifyou go to Page -- the page that contains
3 A. I'm not aware. 3 Statement 5, Statement 6, Statement 7, Statement 8
4 Q. If Mr. Whiston's parents or his daughter 4 onthe 990, at the beginning of the year, the land
5 owned a cottage, would you be required to check yes | 5 is shown at 15,419,000, right?
6 nextto Box C? 6 A. Uh-huh. ,
7 A. Could you restate that? 7 Q. End of the year, you're showing it at zero,
8 Q. Yes. Let me restate it. 8 isthat right?
9 I didn't mean to reference Box C on Page 9 A. Yes.
10 5. Imeant to reference 24B. Okay? 10 Q. Is that because under generally accepted
11 24B asks whether the organization leased 11 accounting principles, the land is supposed to be
12 assets to or leased assets from a related party, 12 accounted for a cost?
13 right? 13 A. That's correct.
14 A. That's the question, yes. 14 Q. Was this the year in which that adjustment
15 Q. Okay. And this answer would have to be 15 was made?

A. That's correct.

statements for any years before 2005?
A. Yes.

Q. And on the years prior to 2005, were you
showing the land at this assessed value?

A. It was shown that way.

Q. And was that an incorrect way to include it

on the audited financial statements?

Pages 30 - 33 (8)
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1 A. No. 1 Q. And you've given an opinion that that's --
2 Q. Did the rules change? 2 the statements are fair and accurate in all material
3 A. No. 3 respects, correct?
4 Q. Well are you saying that you concluded that 4 A. They're fairly stated.
5 either way is correct? 5 Q. And that means that it's your opinion that
6 A. If you read the opinion for those years, it 6 the Feoffees do not, in fact, owe any federal taxes,
7 was stated that that was a departure from generally | 7 right?
8 accepted accounting principles, which was statedin | 8 A. We didn't state that they did.
9 the opinion. 9 (Discussion off the record.)
10 Q. Okay. If you go to Exhibit B of your 10 Q. Let's go to Exhibit 2. And if we look at
11 audited financial statement, Page 3, you have a 11 the Form PC attachments, we still have this
12 statement of activities? 12 disclosure of the renting of a lot to the Foley
13 A. Yes. 13 Family Trust.
14 Q. Does that differ in any way from what 14 And I think you've told me that you
15 normally would be called an income statement? 15 don't know whether that was accurate or not when
16 A. That's correct. There's no difference. 16 this was done?
17 Q. Why here is it called a statement of 17 A. That's correct. I think sometimes what
18 activities rather than income statement? 18 happens is people, the same as last year, type in -
19 A. That's the nomenclature for a non-profit 19 it could have been an oversight.
20 organization. 20 Q. Well Iunderstand. Obviously, when you
21 Q. Okay. Thank you. So if we look at change 21 prepare financial statements such as these that have
22  innet assets, that would be for a different kind of |22 disclosures, your starting point is to copy the same
23 organization, that would be what would be called |23 document from the year before because, typically,
24 income? 24 the accounting doesn't change and so forth, but the
Page 35 Page 37
1 A. No, that's not correct. 1 question I was going to ask you is, if you were the
2 Change in net assets, is that the 2 auditor for the organization --
3 (question? 3 A. Yes.
4 Q. Yes. 4 Q. --and as somebody signing these for the
5 A. Change in net assets. Excuse me. I thought 5 organization, isn't there supposed to be a process
6 you said net assets. 6 where people make sure that the information in this
7 Q. No. The line that says change in net 7 document is accurate?
8 assets -- 8 A. That's correct.
9 A. It would be similar to net income for a 9 Q. Okay. So whose responsibility was it with
10 profit corporation, a for-profit entity. 10 respect to this return to make sure that any
11 Q. Thank you. What does the column "board 11 disclosures about Feoffees renting to Feoffees was
12 designated" mean? 12 accurate?
13 A. Thatis where members of the governing body (13 A. I would say whoever signed the return.
14 can designate funds for future purposes, which was (14 Q. Well were you also required to ask the
15 done in prior years and eventually was reversed. |15 question each year?
16 Q. Explain to me about what was eventually 16 A. Yes.
17 reversed. 17 Q. So it would be a joint responsibility of you
18 A. Well, eventually, it was combined as part of (18 and the person signing the return?
19 the undesignated. It's the same thing as far as net {19 A. Correct.
20 assets are concerned. They're unrestricted. 20 Q. And that would be Mr. Foote in these years?
21 Q. If you were -- your audited financial 21 A. That's correct.
22 statement doesn't indicate that there's any taxes 22 Q. Ifyou go to Exhibit 1 again, and turn to
23 due to the federal government, correct? 23 the statement of activities, which is toward the
24 A. Thatis correct. 24 back of the package --
Min-U-Script® Jones Reporting Company (9) Pages 34 - 37
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Page 38 Page 40

Going back to Exhibit 1?

Yes, please.

Okay.

-- you'll see that there are legal fees of

1 principles don't describe -- I mean, in certain
2

3

4

5 $3 673 for the year, is that correct?

6

7

8

9

instances, they give examples of disclosures, and
that was similar to other examples.

Q. Do you know whether any claims were being
asserted by the Feoffees against the tenants --
strike that.

Do you know whether at the time you
prepared Exhibits 1 through 4 the Feoffees were
A. That is correct. seeking to recover additiona} funds from the tenants
10 Q. And for the years up through 2006, would you |10 beyond the amounts that they had collected?
11 say that was a fairly typical amount that was spent |11 A. Yes.

gt

A. Yes
Q. And that's for the year ending June 30,
20067

W O 6 U & W N K

[~

12 on legal fees? 12 Q. And what is your understanding in that

13 A. I mean, the statements are available. 1 13 regard as to what funds the Feoffees were seeking to
14 don't recall what the numbers are. 14 collect from the tenants?

15 Q. And in 2007, on Exhibit 2, you'll see that 15 A. I'm not sure what you mean by "funds."

16 the legal fees were $251,714. 16 Q. Iasked you whether you were aware that the

17 And do you remember an event taking 17 tenants were -- I asked you whether you were aware
18 place that led to this increase in legal fees? 18 that the Feoffees were seeking to collect additional
19 A. I would say it was the -- I'm not sure of 19 amounts from the tenants. And you said yes.

20 the dates, but it would probably relate to the suit |20 A. Yes.

21 by the tenants. 21 Q. What is your understanding concerning

22 Q. Okay. Are there requirements under 22 additional amounts that the Feoffees were seeking to

23 generally accepted accounting principles to make |23 recover from the tenants?
24 disclosures concerning contingencies in litigations? {24 A. Additional - an increase in rental income.

Page 39 ' Page 41
1 A. Yes. 1 Q. And was that -- so that was potentially an
2 Q. And do you know what those rules are, what 2 asset of the Feoffees, correct?
3 kind of disclosure needs to be made? 3 A. Potentially.
4 A. Depends on the circumstances. 4 Q. Are there any requirements under generally
5 Q. Suppose there's some material litigation. 5 accepted accounting principles that you discuss
6 What is the requirement for the detail 6 contingent recoveries? _
7 of the description that needs to be given under 7 A. It was unknown at the time what the result
8 generally accepted auditing principles? 8 would be.
9 A. Well it would be accounting principles, not 9 Q. Are yourequired to disclose, in order for

10 auditing. Auditing standards. 10 the financial statements to be fair, that the
11 Q. Okay. Under auditing standards and GAAP. 11 Feoffees are seeking to recover additional amounts?
12 A. It would be under accounting principles. 12 A. Whatever I disclosed is what I disclosed.

13 You would disclose material litigation, but you |13 Q. I'm asking whether you were required to make
14 can't-- there's no estimates that are made without (14 a greater disclosure than you made.

15 validity. 15 A. Idisclosed -- whatever I disclosed, I

16 Q. You don't make estimates. 16 disclosed.

17 Are you required -- I see what you said, 17 Q. You're not going to answer my question?

18 "There is pending litigation regarding alleged right (18 A. I mean, I have.

19 of occupancy of certain tenants located at Little 19 Q. And do you know whether the tenants were

20 Neck in Ipswich, Massachusetts." 20 secking to recover anything from the Feoffees in the
21 A. Right. 21 litigation?

22 Q. Isthat a sufficient disclosure under 22 A. I'm not aware of amounts. 1 was aware there
23 generally accepted accounting principles? 23 was litigation.

24 A. Well generally accepted accounting 24 Q. Did you review any documents to understand
Pages 38 - 41 (10) Jones Reporting Company Min-U-Script®
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1 what was involved in the litigation? 1 law,

2 A. Certain documents. 2 Q. Under Internal Revenue standards, there

3 Q. Iassume you had a letter from counsel for 3 would be such a requirement if the Internal Revenue

4 the Feoffees describing the litigation? 4 Code applied to this organization?

5 A. I've had correspondence from them. 5 A. Could be.

6 Q. Did you have so-called audit response 6 Q. Was it any part of your function as auditor

7 letters? 7 to pass upon the reasonableness of the compensation?

8 A. Not in every year. 8 A. No.

9 Q. Why not? 9 Q. Do you know what Mr. Foley was doing to earn
10 A. We had management rep letters that were 10 the compensation that was provided to him in fiscal
11 covering what we believed was necessary. 11 years 2008 and 2009?

12 Q. Did you have an audit response letter in any 12 A. In general terms only.

13 of the years from counsel for the Feoffees 13 Q. In general terms, what is your

14 concerning the tenant litigation? 14 understanding?

15 A. Not that I'm aware of. 15 A. He was managing the organization at the

16 Q. Were you supposed to write to the lawyers 16 time.

17 and get audit response letters? 17 Q. Are you aware of any escrow arrangement

18 A. Idiscussed with counsel orally. 18 being established in connection with amounts that

19 Q. You discussed that with Mr. Sheehan? 19 the Feoffees were attempting to collect from the

20 A. With the Feoffees' counsel, yes. 20 tenants for additional rent?

21 Q. Which counsel are you referring to? 21 A. Yes.

22 A. Mr. Sheehan. 22 Q. And what was your understanding about this

23 Q. About whether you should submit -- 23  escrow account?

24 A. Just the nature of the ongoing litigation. 24 A. It was an escrow account established under
Page 43 Page 45

1 Q. Isn't there a requirement under audit 1 both entities. The tenants and the Feoffees were on

2 standards that you're supposed to write, or havethe | 2 the account.

3 client write to the lawyers concerning any pending | 3 Q. All right. And if you take a look at your

4 litigation and get an audit response letter which 4 --let's take a look at Exhibit 4, which covers

5 you then review as part of your audit? 5 fiscal year June 30, 2009.

6 A. Yes. Some audit procedures use that. I did 6 And if you look at the financial

7 it orally, not in writing. 7 statements for that year, is it your understanding

8 Q. Don't generally accepted standards require 8 this escrow account was still in existence at that

9 that you do it in writing? 9 time?

10 A. We went through the management rep letter. |10 A. At June 30, 2009, yes.

11 Q. I'masking a different question. 11 Q. Okay. Did you make any disclosure about
12 If I were to go research this issue with 12 this escrow account in the financial statements?
13 the AICPA, were you supposed to have sent a letter |13 A. In the footnotes.

14 or have the client send a letter to Mr. Sheehan's 14 Q. Can you show me where?

15 firm to get a written report concerning this 15 A. The very last page, Page 7.

16 litigation? 16 Q. True. So as of June 30, 2009, the amount in
17 A. Yes. Possibly. 17 the escrow account was 1,120,077, correct?

18 Q. Any reason you didn't do that? 18 A. Correct.

19 A. No. 19 Q. And as you say in that note, there's no

20 Q. Are there any rules that require that any 20 disclosure anywhere else in the financial statements

21 compensation paid to a related party be reasonable? |21  of any amount claimed in rent by the Feoffees over
22 A. From Internal Revenue Service standards? 22  and above what they have been paid, correct?

23 Q. And/or state law. 23 A. Correct.
24 A. State law, I'm not -- I'm not aware of state 24 Q. Was it your determination that these Form
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1 PCs were required to be filed with the Attorney

General's office between 1998 and the present?

It was not my determination.

Whose determination was it?

The Attorney General.

And how did you learn of that determination?

I don't recall.

Is it your recollection that somebody
complamed to the Attorney General's office about
the fact that these hadn't been filed?

A. Could be, yes.

Q. And is that what led you to start filing
them?

14 A. When the Attorney General requested that the

15 Feoffees file them, yes.

16 Q. Did that happen before or after you became

17 an accountant or service provider for the Feoffees?

18 A. Idon't recall.

19 Q. Had you done any work for the Feoffees

20 before 1998?

21 A. 1did not.

CrOoPOP

o

10
11
12
13

22 Q. When you did do work for the Feoffees
23 starting in 1998, did you prepare any kind of
24 engagement letter?

Page 48

charitable beneficiary, so that there was no net
assets accruing to the benefit of the...

Q. Were you engaged to perform any work in
connection with the, any of the litigation between
the Feoffees and the tenants or between the Feoffees
6 and the school committee?

7 A. No.
8 Q. Welldid youdo --
9 A. Idid some work on the pro formas, yes.

10 Q. And did you understand that to be in

11 comnnection with pending litigation?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. Who engaged you to do that work?

14 A. Attorney Sheehan.

(S I U S

15 Q. And who provided you with factual
16 information for purposes of your performing that
17 work?

18 A. Attorney Sheehan.

Page 47

A. T would assume I did.

Q. How frequently after 1998 did you prepare
any engagement letters?

A. Annually.

Q. And generally speaking, what do those
engagement letters say is the scope of services
you're providing?

A. I will prepare the audited financial
9 statements and the filing of Form PC.

10 Q. How do you bill the Feoffees for extra

11 services such as pro formas?

12 A. On an hourly basis.

13 Q. What's the rate?

14 A. $150 per hour.

15 Q. If a determination were made by the Internal

16 Revenue Service that the tax returns were required

17 to be filed by the Feoffees, what would be the

18 consequences?

19 What would be the risks involved?

20 A. Well that's going to take a while to answer

21 probably.

22 Q. In general, there could be some exposure to

23 taxes, penalties and interests?

24 A. All profits were returned, typically, to a

0 N oUW N R

19 Q. So you weren't dealing directly with any of
20 the Feoffees in that engagement?
21 A. Thatis correct.
22 Q. What was your role as to determining whether
23 any of the assumptions in the pro formas was valid?
24 A. Use of judgment on my part.
Page 49
1 Q. Allright. Well let's go over them. And
2 you can tell me whether any of the assumptions that
3 were made were your assumptions or whether they were
4 things you were instructed to do.
5 Fair enough?
6 A. Fair. ,
7 MR. PERRY: Bill, off the record.
8 (Discussion off the record.)
9 MR. PERRY: Let's mark the income
1o statement as our next exhibit.
11 (Marked, Exhibit 5, income statement,
12 year ended October 31.)
13 Q. I've put in front of you the document that's
14 entitled "Pro Forma Income Statement For Years Ended
15 October 31."
16 Is this a pro forma income statement
17 that you prepared at the request of counsel for the
18 Feoffees?
19 A. Yes.

20 Q. Andam I correct that this document shows

21 six different scenarios?

22 A. Thatis correct.

23 Q. Allright. And the first three scenarios

24 are projections of what the income statements would

Pages 46 - 49 (12)
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1 look like if no sale was permitted, and then the 1 fair market rent of the property?
2 next three are projections that are based on a sale 2 A. Idon't-- where would that be disclosed?
3 being permiited, correct? 3 Q. Isthis a cash-based analysis?
4 A. Correct. 4 A. Yes.
5 Q. Okay. Let me start with your first 5 Q. And do you have an opinion as to whether the
6 alternative and ask you some questions. 6 litigation, if there were no sale, would be resolved
7 In the first row, you have listed a 7 before 20157
8 figure for tenant and leaseholder rents, right? 8 A. Ido not have an opinion on that.
9 A. Correct. 9 Q. So the assumption you're making when you do
10 Q. And that figure that you list is $1,075,5362 10 these pro formas is, one, that there would be no
11 A. Correct. 11 settlement or resolution of the litigation through
12 Q. And that is a figure based on the amount 12 2015, correct?
13 that would be paid -- is that the sum of the amounts |13 A. On this pro forma, yes.
14 being paid under the existing leases, plus the 14 Q. And second, that there would be no ability
15 amounts that the tenants are agreeing to pay? 15 by the Feoffees between now and 2015 to collect any
16 A. Correct. 16 additional rent even if the tenants ought to be
17 Q. It doesn't account for additional amounts 17 paying it?
18 that the tenants had been paying into escrow before |18 A. On this pro forma.
19 the settlement agreement? 19 Q. And you acknowledge that under this
20 A. That is correct. 20 particular pro forma, there is an amount not shown,
21 Q. And it doesn't account for any claims by the 21 which is a growing claim in the millions of dollars
22 Feoffees for additional rent, true? 22 by the Feoffees for additional rent, right?
23 A. That is correct. 23 A. Yes.
24 Q. You're aware that the tenants are paying 24 Q. And you've said that that's just not shown
Page 51 Page 53
1 less in rent than the Feoffees claim is a fair 1 here because you don't have a place to show it?
2 market rental value of the property, correct? 2 A. Correct.
3 A. I'm aware what they are paying in rent, yes. 3 Q. Let me show you --
4 Q. Are you also aware that the Feoffees are of 4 MR. SHEEHAN: Can we go off the record
5 the opinion that the tenants are paying insufficient 5 for a minute?
6 amounts in rent? 6 MR. PERRY: Yes.
7 A. In contrast to the leaseholders. 7 (Discussion off the record.)
8 Q. Yes. 8 Q. Mr. Clasby, I was going to ask you about
9 A. Yes. 9 your balance sheet, but let's just continue on with
10 Q. You understand that the Feoffees claim that 10 Exhibit S.
11 the tenants should be paying at least what the 11 A. Exhibit 5, yes.
12 leaseholders are paying? 12 Q. The Institution For Savings note, when you
13 A. Yes. 13 did the pro forma, are those all interest amounts on
14 Q. Isit your assumption in this scenario that 14 that line?
15 the Feoffees will never recover any rent beyond that |15 A. Correct. That is correct.
16 amount that the tenants are currently paying? 16 Q. And that was based on the interest rate that
17 A. We just assumed that the rents would remain (17 was in effect at the time you did these pro formas?
18 steady through the litigation process. 18 A. That is correct.
19 Q. And how long are you assuming that the 19 Q. Did you know that it had adjusted down?
20 litigation process will last? 20 A. It has adjusted down since these pro formas
21 A. Through the year 2015. 21  were completed.
22 Q. And as a matter of accounting practice, 22 Q. So that's not shown here, right?
23 wouldn't there be a contingent asset growing during |23 A. That's correct.
24 these years if the tenants are paying less than the 24 Q. In addition, this assumes no ability to
Min-U-Script® Jones Reporting Company (13) Pages 50 - 53
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1 refinance that note at lower amounts, correct? 1 litigation.
2 A. The way it's shown, yes. It's not saying no 2 Q. Well you have two lines. You have legal
3 ability. It's just the way it's shown. 3 fees general, and legal fees Superior Court.
4 Q. Right. And in fact, would you agree that in 4 A. Right, right.
5 the event the litigation is resolved and the 5 Q. So I'm assuming that the first line --
6 Feoffees are successful in entering into long-term 6 A. Well there are legal fees to be generated
7 leases, that would also open up new financing 7 outside the Superior Court litigation.
8 opportunities, wouldn't it? 8 Q. Okay.
9 A. Correct. 9 A. Again, this is with no sale permitted, you
10 Q. And ifthey had a critical mass of leases -- 10 Kknow, it's...
11 it wouldn't even have to be all of them -- they 11 Q. I've asked you whether those are high

13  to support a borrowing?
14 A. Right.

16 closer to prime than the current rates, right?
17 A. Market rates.
18 Q. And market rates would be substantially

20 the adjustment?

21 A. Could be.

22 Q. Okay. Do you know how many years the
23 principal is amortized over, is that a 30-year
24 amortization?

12 would have some secure income that could be pledged

15 Q. And then they could get rates that were much

19 lower than what they're currently paying even with

12 compared to the level of fees that had been incurred
13 historically for non-litigation purposes.

14 A. Again, you know, there's been fees that have
15 been generated in recent history that isn't --

16 Q. Isee what you're saying.

17 But those fees in recent history, what

18 do those relate to?
19 A. Imean...

20 Q. They arise out of the controversy with the

21 tenants, don't they?
22 A. Generally speaking, yes.

23 Q. You show the Superior Court litigation fees
24 going on for two and a half years, is that right?

A. Ibelieve it's 20,
Q. The line for erosion note, that's a

A. That is correct.
Q. And that's the interest there that you're
showing?
A. Thatis correct.
Q. There's a line for legal fees.
Did you make any independent

W N1 U ok W N

w

11 $120,000 a year for non-litigation legal fees i
12 appropriate?

13 A. In discussion with counsel, that was the
14 figure that we arrived at.

15 Q. Is that essentially a figure that you

16 assumed based on instructions from counsel?
17 A. Yes.

18 Q. So you're not vouching for that figure?

19 A. Correct.

20 Q. Certainly it's high compared to historical

Page 55

hypothetical borrowing to pay for erosion control?

10 determination as to whether in a no-sale context,

S

A. That's the way it is showing,

A. As far as legal fees being generat

right?
A. That is the way it is shown.

O N U W N R

w

10 know what that covers?

11 A. That would be anticipated expenses to the

12 system, annual repairs that could come up.

13 Q. Are the tenants or leaseholders, were they

14 paying any amounts that were supposed to cover
15 repairs and maintenance to the wastewater system?

16 A. Currently, there's a monthly cha
17 overhead and maintenance.

18 Q. Isthat the $40 a month that's being
19 charged?

20 A. Right.

Q. So this actually is assuming the litigation
would end after two and a half years, correct?

Q. And then even after the litigation is
concluded, you did not make any adjustment to rent,

Q. On your repairs and maintenance line, do you

Page 57

ed, yes.

rge for

21 expenditures of legal fees by this trust outside of 21 Q. Why would that not be sufficient --

22 a litigation context, isn't it? 22 A. These are expenses --

23 A. The term "general" might be as kind of a 23 Q. Let me finish the question.

24 catchall for all sorts, not just the Superior Court |24 A. Sure. I'm sorry.
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Q. Were you opining in these pro formas that
the $40 a month that was being paid was insufficient
to cover repairs and maintenance?

A. I'm opining that these figures are above the
reimbursement of those numbers, yes.

Q. In other words, the $40 a month, that's
supposed to be adequate to cover the cost of the
system, right?

A. I'm not one to make an opinion on that.

Q. It's approximately $80,000 a year, right?

W o N0 U b W N R

10

Page 60

1 expand upon one of his previous answers, Steve.

2 Q. Did you want to add anything to one of your

3 prior answers?

4 A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Why don't you do that.

A. On the repairs and maintenance expense, that
also includes expenses for road repairs, things like
that, that are not covered by the monthly
assessment.

Q. Do you know how that breaks down?

O o 3 v

10

11 A. If you say so. I don't have the numbers off 11 A. Idon't.
12 my head. 12 Q. Ifthe Feoffees were charging a sufficient
13 Q. The quick math is $480 per cottage, which we 13 amount through the monthly charge to cover the
14 round to $500, with 160-something cottages, right? |14 wastewater system repairs and maintenance, then the
15 So it's in the ballpark of $80,000 a 15 figure you've listed for repair and maintenance
16 Yyear, right? 16 would be reduced by an amount that's currently
17 A. Well they pay $500 a year. 17 unknown to you?
18 Q. Right. 18 A. Correct.
19 A. Times 160, that's 8,000. 19 MR. PERRY: I'm going to mark as Exhibit
20 Q. Ithink it's 80,000. 20 6 your pro forma for the -- I don't know if this is
21 A. 80,000? 21 your additional schedule or cash flow. We'll have
22 Q. 160 times a thousand is 160,000 -- 22 it marked as Exhibit 6, and you can tell me.
23 A. Sorry. 23 (Marked, Exhibit 6, subschedule of
24 Q. That's okay. Ididn't give you a 24 numbers.)
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1 calculator. 1 Q. Could you tell us, please, what we've just
2 A. Ishouldn't need it. I'm usually pretty 2 marked as Exhibit 67
3 good at math. 3 A. These are subschedules that relate to where
4 Q. Not when you're having to have the stress of 4 some of the numbers come from in the balance sheet
5 adeposition. So you get special allowance. 5 and income statement.
6 A. Thank you. 6 Q. Okay. I was hoping you could walk me
7 Q. Butit's around $80,000 a year. 7 through this so I can understand it.
8 Do you know why there's projected to be 8 So we start out with an opening balance
9 repairs and maintenance each year of another 40,000 | 9 of 25,000, which I assume is some kind of cash
10 or so? 10 balance?
11 A. No, I don't have a clue. 11 A. That's correct.
12 Q. The depreciation and amortization item, 12 Q. Assuming you would start with.
13 that's a non-cash item that you add back on in your |13 A. Yes.
14 cash flow analysis, right? 14 Q. Was that an actual cash balance, or was that
15 A. Yes. 15 aprojected cash balance?
16 Q. Now this Alternative 1A is sort of the 16 A. That was projected because it's not the
17 worst-case scenario in the sense that this is no 17 normal year end for the Feoffees.
18 sale permitted -- 18 Q. So you don't know if that's the correct
19 THE WITNESS: Can I ask a procedure 19 figure or not?
20 question? 20 A. Back at that time, it was just --
21 MR. SHEEHAN: Why don't we take a break. 21 Q. Projected?
22 Come on out. 22 A. --projected.
23 (Witness confers with counsel.) 23 Q. Do you know what the Feoffees actual
24 MR. SHEEHAN: The witness just wanted to 24 approximate cash balance was on October 31, 20112
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1 A. We're not there yet. 1 Q. Then you show some principal payments that
2 Back in '10, October 31, 2010, I could 2 are being made on one of the notes that aren't shown
3 get you that. I don't know offhand. 3 on your income statement because that only shows the
4 Q. Do you know what its current cash balance 4 interest?
5 is? 5 A. Correct.
6 A. No. 6 Q. You show some principal payback on the
7 Q. Allright. And you added in to this figure 7 erosion note?
8 the net income before depreciation. 8 A. Yes.
9 That's like a cash adjustment, right? 9 Q. And the depreciation add-back, do you do
10 A. That's the -- yes. 10 that on a separate schedule?
11 Q. Cash flow type adjustment? 11 A. What I did was, instead of taking net
12 A. Sure. Yes. All we're doing is showing how 12 income, Steve, I just took net income before
13 we came up with the cash balance that was presented |13 depreciation and amortization.
14 on the pro forma balance sheet each year. 14 Q. Oh,Isee. You already backed it out?
15 So you see the ending balance. That 15 A. Yes. That's right.
16 would tie out to what was shown on the balance |16 Q. Have you done any updating of any of your
17 sheet. 17 pro forma work?
18 Q. Well let me just get there. 18 A. No.
19 A. Sure. 19 Q. Have you done any work in connection with
20 Q. So then the erosion note -- the next item is 20 the litigation after you prepared these pro formas

21 erosion note proceeds? 21 and before today?
22 A. Yes. 22 A. No.
23 Q. And why is that a positive figure? 23 Q. Do you know whether the Feoffees would be
24 A. It's cash that would come in from a note. 24 able to refinance their existing debt to lower rates
Page 63 Page 65
1 And you see it was deducted down below when they | 1 at this time without mortgaging the property?
2 performed the remediation. 2 A. In my opinion?
3 Q. Maybe I'm just not following the column 3 Q. Well I'm really asking you factually.
4 right. 4 Do you have any information as to their
5 The 13,302 figure is the net income? 5 ability to refinance existing debt?
6 A. Correct. 6 A. Idon't.
7 Q. Okay. Then you show the $900,000 coming in 7 Q. Now your Alternative 1B is the same as 1A,
8 from the note? 8 except for now you're refinancing that existing
9 A. Right. 9 loan, right?
10 Q. Then you show a change in accounts payable? 10 A. Yes. That's correct.
11 A. Correct. 11 Q. Based on an assumed mortgage of the
12 Q. What does that mean? 12 property?
13 A. That would mean that accounts payable 13 A. Yes. That's correct.
14 increased from the beginning of the year to the end |14 Q. And this is showing, if we just look at the
15 of the year. So it reduced net income but had no {15 last two lines, a positive cash flow, right?
16 affect on cash. 16 A. Which line? I'm sorry.
17 So I added that back. 17 Q. Well comparing the amount of depreciation
18 Q. Then you show the note being paid, right? 18 and amortization to the net income.
19 A. Correct -- no, not the note being paid. 19 A. I'm not sure what page you're on.
20 That shows the disbursement -- 20 Q. Alternative 1B of Exhibit 5.
21 Q. The erosion being paid for? 21 A. Oh, I was on Exhibit 6. All right.
22 A. Yes. 22 So we're back to Exhibit 5. Okay.
23 Q. The erosion being fixed? 23 Q. Alternative 1B, would you agree that, just
24 A. Yes. 24 doing a quick comparison of the depreciation and
Pages 62 - 65 (16) Jones Reporting Company Min-U-Script®
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1 amortization of non-cash items to the net income, 1 Q. Are they lower than six percent?
2 that if you were under Alternative 1B and all your 2 A. Idon't know.
3 assumptions were the same, the cash flow becomes | 3 Q. You don't know whether these percentages of
4 positive? 4 90 percent, 70 percent or 50 percent are reasonable
5 A. Cash flow before any payments to the bank on | 5 assumptions, correct?
6 principal, yes. 6 A. They were what counsel had asked us to do.
7 Q. Okay. So this doesn't show any of the 7 Q. Right. Under your sale scenarios, do you
8 principal payments? 8 show distributions to the Ipswich schools?
9 A. We should have a cash flow similar. If you 9 Maybe it's not on the ones I gave you.
10 went to your Exhibit 6, Page 2, that would relate to |10 A. OkKkay.
11 this schedule. 11 MR. SHEEHAN: It's on what's going to be
12 Q. And what is this showing as far as cash 12 either Exhibit 7 or 8, Steve, I think.
13 flow? 13 MR. PERRY: Let's have marked as Exhibit
14 A. Ultimately, it shows there's no cash -- 14 7 a copy of your schedule showing the balance
15 there's a negative cash flow. 15 available for distribution.
16 Q. Which line are you looking at? 16 (Marked, Exhibit 7, schedule showing
17 A. Under cash, the ending balance of cash is 17 balance available for distribution.)
18 less than what the beginning balance was. I mean, 18 Q. On Exhibit 7, if you go to the last three
19 it's pretty immaterial. 19 pages, these show the amounts that are shown as
20 Q. Now this is based on spending $420,000 in 20 available for distribution to the schools under each
21 legal fees, right? 21 of your scenarios, right?
22 A. That s correct. 22 A. That is correct.
23 Q. Per year, for two years? 23 Q. Now in some of your -- in your pro formas,
24 A. For two years. 24 you generally were assuming a three-percent
Page 67 Page 69
1 Q. Under your various alternatives where you 1 inflation rate?
2 are dealing with the sale of the units, you've 2 A. I would say that's on the -- yes.
3 assumed that the tenants would finance their 3 Q. On your expenses?
4 purchases through the Feoffees at different levels, 4 A. Probably. Expenses were five percent, I
5 right? 5 believe.
6 A. That's correct. 6 Q. Okay. So you assume that there would be
7 Q. So one you assumed 90 percent of them or 90 7 inflation of as much as five percent per year?
8 percent of the cash is through financing? 8 A. Could be. It's not just inflation but just
9 A. Yes. 9 a contingency that expenses might increase.
10 Q. And the second assumption is 70 percent, and 10 Circumstances change.
11 the third assumption is 50 percent? 11 Q. Okay. These pro formas showing amounts
12 A. That's correct. 12 available for the schools are based on an assumption
13 Q. And at this time, the financing offered by 13 of the entire net income being distributed, right?
14 the Feoffees is significantly higher at six percent 14 A. Net income less the principal payments to
15 than tenants would be able to obtain in the market |15 the banks.
16 if they were able to get equity financing on their 16 Q. The entire net cash flow being distributed?
17 homes or mortgage financing, right? 17 A. Yes.
18 A. Equity financing on their homes, I would 18 Q. Ifthe trust were every year to distribute
19 say, yes. It's not their principal residence. 19 the entire net cash flow available, then wouldn't it
20 Rates are usually different for... 20 over time see the corpus reduced if one takes into
21 Q. And if they were able to get vacation home 21 account inflation?
22 financing, do you know what rates are for that at 22 A. You say the principal amount of the corpus
23 this time? 23  wouldn't be worth as much?
24 A. Idon't know. 24 Q. Yes. That's really what I was asking.
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1 A. You're never going to dip into the corpus to 1 Q. Under your Alternative 2A, because virtually
2 pay principal. 2 all the assets are just being invested in the form
3 Q. Letme try it a different way. 3 of promissory notes to tenants on a balloon payment
4 Would you agree if one were trying to go 4 basis, isn't it true that at the end of the five
5 with a sale, then the goal would be to maintain the 5 years, you would expect the corpus to be essentially
6 corpus, the purchasing power of the corpus, right? 6 the same size as it was at the beginning of the five
7 A. That is correct. 7 years?
8 Q. So you wouldn't want to have the corpus stay 8 A. Yes.
9 at a steady level such that over time it became 9 Q. Okay. And if there were any inflation
10 worthless in purchasing power? 10 during those five years, the real value of the
11 A. Right. You would hope that the investment |11 corpus would have diminished?
12 managers would take that into consideration. That's |12 A. You could possibly say that, argue that.
13  what we relied on. 13 Q. So that would probably not be the most wise
14 Q. But for the first five years, you are 14 distribution policy?
15 showing all of the cash flow coming out to the 15 A. Ican't comment on that. I don't think --
16 schools without any increase in the corpus, aren't 16 as I said, if you look at your investments now...
17  you? 17 Q. You think right now, if you had a lot of
18 A. That's just the income. We're not showing 18 cash to invest and you were to invest it in the
19 increase in principal. We're just showing that the |19 market, that would be something that would be very
20 income that was generated, just as if you owned a |20 chancy, correct?
21  trust and you had to pay out all the income, that's 21 A. Professional money managers would say -- I
22 what is assumed here. 22 can't make an assumption on that.
23 Q. Well let's look at Alternative 2A. 23 Q. Well you did state it.
24 A. Sure. 24 A. Well I didn't state it but...
Page 71 Page 73
1 Q. In Alternative 2A, 90 percent of the assets 1 Q. I'mean, for example, if this property had
2 of the trust consist of promissory notes from 2 been sold on a cash basis in 2007 -- right?
3 tenants? 3 A. Yes.
4 A. Okay. 4 Q. --it would probably have less money now
5 Q. Right? Fair characterization? 5 than it had in 2007?
6 A. Yes. 6 MR. SHEEHAN: Objection.
7 Q. There's no corpus being invested to speak 7 Q. Or certainly wouldn't have kept up with
8 of, right? 8 rises in the consumer price index?
9 A. Not significant, right. 9 MR. SHEEHAN: Objection.
10 Q. So under this scenario, at the end of the 10 A. Ican't speculate on that.
11 five years, when the tenants pay back those balloon (11 Q. Do you have any clients in the real estate
12 notes, right -- 12 industry?
13 A. Okay. Yes. 13 A. Yes.
14 Q. --the corpus will be the same in size in 14 Q. Are you familiar with the concept of net
15 2015, more or less, as it was in 2011, right? 15 leases?
16 A. It might be good. If you look at Merrill 16 A. Generally -- in general terms, yes.
17 Lynch now, you want your money there? 17 Q. What do you understand net leases to be?
18 Q. Well under your pro forma, at the end of the 18 A. I'm not -- where are you coming at?
19 five-year period, the corpus would be approximately (19 Q. Are you familiar with leases where the
20 the same size -- 20 tenants pay a certain amount of rent, and in
21 A. We have not made any projections on the 21 addition, they pay expenses associated with the
22 corpus. 22 property?
23 Q. Let me just finish the question. 23 A. Yes.
24 A. I'm sorry. 24 Q. Isthat a common form of leasing?
Pages 70 - 73 (18) Jones Reporting Company Min-U-Script®
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1 A, Uh-hllh. 1 commonwealth of Massachusetts)
2 Q. And your assumptions in your pro formas are 2 suffolk, ss. )
3 that the tenants will be paying a designated rent on 3 T, Lauren M. mitchell, Registered
4 2 gross basis and the expenses would be the 4 Professional Reporter and Notary Public in and
5 I'CSpOIlSibﬂity ofthe FCOffCCS? 5 for the Commonwealth of HMassachusetts, do hereby
6 A. That is the way it's presented, yes. 6 certify that DANIEL E. CLASBY came before me on
7 Q. There are also scenarios where the Feoffees 7 Tueaday, October 25, 2011, the depoment herein, who
8 could rent the premises under triple net leases? 8 was duly sworn; the examination was reduced to
9 A. Sure. 9 printing under my direction and control; and the
10 Q And that would be a fairly common form of 10 within transcript is a true record of the testimony
11 rental for a ground lease, wouldn't it? 11 given at said deposition.
12 A. Could be. 12 I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am neither attormey
13 MR. PERRY: All tht With the 13 or counsel for, nor related to or employed by any of
14 admonitions from Mr. Sheehan, I'm going to conclude |14 the parties to the action in which this deposition
15 the deposition. 15 is taken; and, further, that I am not a relative or
16 Let's go off the record. 16 employee of any attorney or counsel employed by the
17 (1216 pm) 17 parties hereto, or financially interested in the
18 18 outcome of the action.
19 19 IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my
20 20 hand this 27th day of October, 2011, at Boston.
21 21
22 22
23 23 Lauren M. Mitchell, Notary Public
24 24 My Commission expires: 6/2/2017
Page 75
1 ERRATA SHEET
2 I, DANIEL E. CLASBY, do hereby certify that I
3 have read the foregoing transcript of my testimony,
4 and further certify that it is a true and accurate
5 record of my testimony (with the exception of the
6 corrections listed below):
7 Page Line Correction/Reason
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20 signed under the pains and penalties of perjury this
21 __ day of , 2011,
22
23
24 DANIEL E. CLASBY
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Massachusetts Office of the Attorney General
Division of Public Charities

FORM PC

To be filed annually by all non-profit charitable organizations conducting business in the Commonwealth

Report for the Fiscal Period: Beginning _07_/ 01 / 05 Ending _06/ 30 / 06

Check all items attached: Form PC _X Schedule A1 Schedule AZ Schedule RO

AG Schedule B

Probate Account Copy of IRS Return _X__ Audited Financial Statements/Review _X__ Filing Fee X ___ Amended Articles/Bylaws

Name: FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL IN THE TOWN OF IPSWICH

Mailing Address: P.O. BOX 709, 2 DEPOT SQUARE

City: IPSWICH State:  MA zip: 01938
Phone: ( 978 )  356-1040 Fax. ( 978 ) 356-1042
E-Mail: N/A ‘ Web Site (ULR): http:/iwww.

Prior to dissolution Office Use Only

County (Table 1) 5 Organization Purpose Code 1 8
Type of Organization (Table 2) 2 Organization Pufpose Code 2
Please check box if final return Payment Received




FORM PC , ‘l
Page 2

All questions must be complleted in their entirety whether or not similar questions are answered
in an attached federal form. See instructions and definition section for guidance.

NOVEMBER 14, 1650 IPSWICH, MASSACHUSETTS

: it What Is the form.of the'organization?

Corporation Testamentary trust

Unincorporated association Inter Vivos trust

Other (please describe): VOTE OF TOWN MEETING ON 11/14/1650

4, Was your organization related to any other organization(s) during the reporting year (see definition of "Related Organization")?
Yes No___ X _ Ifyes, please complete the Schedule RO on pages 10 and 11.

/ of Financial'Data: :
A Contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received $ -
B | Gross Support and Revenue $ 759,097
C | Program services and similar amounts paid out 3 588,000
D | Fundraising expenses $ -
E | Management and general expenses $ 65,431
F Payments to affiliates 3 -
G | Total Expenses 3 653,431
H | Netassets or fund balances at the end of the year $ 933,929
6. List the total compensation you provided to your five highest paid employees.
1 DONALD F. WHISTON MANAGER AS NEEDED 0 0 0
2 |ALEXANDER MULHOLLAND CHAIRMAN AS NEEDED 12,180 0 0
3 JAMES FOLEY CLERK AS NEEDED 22,082 0 0
4 PETER FOQTE TREASURER AS NEEDED 12,180 0 0
5
7. Was any compensation provided to any other individuals listed in 6 above which was not quantified in your response to 67

Yes No X If yes, please provide explanation




FORM PC
Page 3

8. List the name, amount of compensation paid, and the nature of services rendered by each of the organization's FIVE highest paid
consultants providing professional services (e.g., attorneys, architects, accountants, management companies, investment
advisors professional solicitors, professional fundraising counsel.)

1 |LAND-VEST 9,035 |LAND APPRAISAL
2  |WATERLINE INDUSTRIES 1,258,191 SEWER UPGRADE
3 |RJV CONSTRUCTION 884,367 |SEWER UPGRADE
4 |LOMBARDO ASSOCIATES 817,187 {SEWER UPGRADE
5 JWESTON & SAMPSON 15,541 [ENGINEERING
8. Bank{s} In which the organization's funds are deposited (incl.ude bank address and phone number}):

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF IPSWICH 31 MARKET ST, IPSWICH, MA (800) 834-0046
10. What is the organization's accounting method: Cash _ X Accrual Other (specify)
11. If organization's mailing address is a P.O. Box Number, list the organization's full street address: N/A

Street Address:

2 DEPOT SQUARE IPSWICH, MA

12. Name address and telephone number of Contact Person:

PETER FOOTE 401 COLONIAL DR IPSWICH, MA 01938 (978) 356-1040

13. During the fiscal year reported here, did your organization solicit contributions or have funds solicited on

its behalf? Yes No X
14. At any time during the fiscal year following the year reported here, will your organization, or others acting on

its behalf, have solicited contributions? Yes No X

IF YOU ANSWERED "YES" IN RESPONSE TO QUESTION 13 OR 14, YOU MUST COMPLETE SCHEDULES A-1
AND/OR A-2 UNLESS YOU ARE EXEMPT FROM THE SOLICITATION CERTIFICATE REQUIREMENT.

15. If you are claiming an exemption from the solicitation certificate requirement, please indicate by pilacing an "X" in the box to the
right to identify which exemption applies to your organization,

a religious organization

an organization which (a) does not raise more than $5,000 during a calendar year OR does not receive contributions from more than ten
persons during a calendar year: AND (b) carries out ali of its activities, including fundraising, through unpaid volunteers. (The conditions at
both (a) and (b) must be met for your organization to qualify for this exemption




FORM PC

Page 4
16. Names, addresses (street & P.0.) and telephone numbers of other offices/chaptersibranches/affiliates (attach list). N/A
17. List the names, titles and addresses (street & P.0.) of officers, directors, trustees, and the principal salaried executives of

organization (attach separate sheet). SEE ATTACHED
18. Attach separate sheet listing names and addresses (street & P.O.) for all below;  SEE ATTACHED

Individual(s) responsible for custody of funds
Individual(s) responsible for distribution of funds
Individual(s) responsible for fund raising

Individual(s) responsible for custody of financial records
Individual{s) authorized to sign checks

19. Has this organization or any of its offlcers, directors, employees or fund raisers solicited funds in any
other state? Yes No__ X

If yes, attach list of states where solicitation was conducted, including registering agency, dates of registration, registration numbers, any
other names under which the organization wasfis registered, and the dates and type (mail, telephone, door to door, special events, etc) of the
solicitation conducted.

20, Has this organization or any of its officers, directors, employees:
If yes, please attach an explanation
(a) Been enjoined or otherwise prohibited by a govemnment agency/court from operating or
soliciting contributions? Yes No_ X
{b) Ever been refused registration or had its registration or tax exemption denied, suspended,
medified or revoked by a governmental agency? Yes No X
{c) Been the subject of a proceeding regarding any solicitation or registration? Yes No X
(d) Entered into a voluntary agreement of compliance or consent judgment with any )
govemment agency or in a case before a court or administrative agency? Yes No X
21, Have any restrictions been removed during the year from donor-restricted funds? Yes No X

If yes! please attach an explanation

22, Have donor-restricted funds been loaned to unrestricted funds? Yes No X
If yes, please attach an explanation

23. This question involves "Termination of Employment or Change of Control Compensatory Arrangements” with certaln ‘Related
Parties” (see instructions and definition sections). Report only if payments made or promised to any individual are In excess of
four months salary or $100,000, whichever doliar amount is less.

a) Did you make actual payments or otherwise transfer value under such an arrangement

to any individual described in Related Party definition, sections (a) or (b) which payments

are not reported in Question 6 or 7 above? Yes No X
(b} Do you have an agresment with any individual described in Related Party definition,

section (&) or (b), containing such an arrangement? Yes No X

If you answered “yes" for Question 23(a) or 23(b) above, please attach an explanation identifying the individual(s) involved, stating the amount
of any payments made or value transferred, and describing the terms of each agreement



FORM PC

Page §

24,

This question applies to related party transactions, which include transactions with officers, directors, trustees, certain employees,
relative, and organizations they own or control. Please consult the instructions and definition sections for the definition of a
"Related Party” and "indebtedness” before answering. Note that transitions involving reiated parties must be reported even

when there is no accounting recognition (e.g., in-kind gifts, waiver of interest not otherwise reported).

If the answer to any part of Question 24 is "Yes", attach a schedule stating the name and address of the refated party, the nature of the
transaction, the value or the amounts involved in the transaction, and the procedure followed in authorizing the transaction

Sold or transferred assets to or purchased assets from or exchanged assets with a related party? X

(a)
)] Leased assets to or leased assets from a related party?
(©) Been indebted to a related party?
(d) Allowed a related party to be indebted to it? X
(e) Made or held an investment in a related party? X
4} Furnished goods. services, or facilities {o a related party? X
() Acquired goods, services, or facilities from a related party who received compensation or other value in X
return?
(h) Paid or became obligated to pay wages, salary or other compensation to a related party? X
(i) Transferred income or assets to or for use by a related party? X
6] Was the organization a party to any transaction in which any of its officers, directors or trustees has a
material financial interest, or did any officer, director or trustee receive anything of value not reported as X
compensation? )
(k) Has the organization invested in any corporate stock in which any officer, director, or trustee owns more ) X
than 10% of the outstanding shares?
[0)] Is any property of the organization held in the name of or commingled with the property of any other
person or organization?
(m) Did the organization make a grant award or contribution to any organization in which any of its officers, : X

directors or trustees has a relationship?
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this report, including all attachments;’is tru€ and corre




FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL IN THE TOWN OF IPSWICH
FORM PC ATTACHMENTS
FED TD# (4-6001191
FYE 6/30/06

Q17&18

Alexander B C Mulholland Ir Chairman
PO Box 587
Ipswich, MA 01938

James Foley Clerk
39 River Road
Ipswich, Ma 01938

Donald F. Whiston Manager
31 Market Street
Ipswich, MA 01938 -

Peter Foote - Treasurer
401 Colonial Drive signs checks
Ipswich, MA 01938 custody of funds & financial records

distribution of funds

no fundraising



FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL IN THE TOWN OF IPSWICH
FORM PC ATTACHMENTS
FED ID# 04-6001191
FYE 6/30/06

Schedule 24(b)

One of the 167 lots of land at Little Neck, Ipswich, is rented to the Foley Family Trust, of
which James Foley, a Feoffee, is a beneficial owner. The annual rent for the lot is the same
as all 143 lots which are limited to seasonal occupancy.

Schedule 24(c)

The Organization was indebted to the Chairman of its Board of Managers, Alexander
Mulholland, Jr. in the amount of $964,638 at June 30, 2005. His address is P.O. Box 587,
Ipswich, MA 01938. A Board of Managers vote approved this transaction.

The Organization paid off this debt during September 2005.



09/13/2007 12:05 PM

Form 990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except black lung

OMB No. 1545-0047

E]?granr;xin}%g\t/gggées‘gg?csg i P The organization may havg?g %fsxgtguggpc;r&r tll‘{gt?e‘;g?r? tcci)aggtps)fy state reporting requirements. |
A For the 2005 calendar year, or tax year beginning 7/ 01 /05 , and ending 6/30/06
B Check if applicable:} P1235€ | C Name of organization D Employer identification no.
Address change | US2IRS FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-6001191
D Name change print or IN THE TOWN OF IPSWICH E Telephone number
D Initial retum féz: Number and street {or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Roonvsuite 978-356-1040
b spesid— 25 GREEN STREET F_ Accounting methodX] Cash
Final retum Instruc- City or town, state or country, and ZIP + 4 Accrual D Other (specify)
D Amended return tions. IPSWICH MA 01938 >
D Application pending = Section 501{c){3) organizations and 4947(a}{1) nonexempt charitaljleH and | are not applicable to section 527 organizations.
trusts must attach a completed Schedule A (Form 990 or 830-E2). | 1(a) s this a group return for affiliates? D Yes @ No
G Website: P N/A H(b) if"Yesenter number of affiiates® .
J Organization type H(c) Are all affiliates included? Yes No
(check only one) B [ ] 501(c) ( ) < (insertno) | | 4947t or [ | 527 (If "No," attach a list. See instr.)

K Checkhere P D if the organization's gross receipts are normally not more than $25,000. The
organization need not file a return with the IRS; but if the organization chooses to file a retumn, be
sure to file a complete return. Some states require a complete return.

H(d) Is this a separate return filed by an
organization covered by a group ruling? H Yes [—] No

| Group Exemption NumbeP

M Check P @ if the organization is not required

L. Gross receipts: Add lines 6b, 8b, 9b, and 10b to line 1 1,325,030 1o attach Sch. B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 890-PF).

H= Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances (See the ins

tructions.)

1 Contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received:
a Direct public support | 1a
b Indirect public support 1b
¢ Government contributions (grants) 1c
d Total (add lines 1a through 1c) (cash$ noncash $ 0
2 Program service revenue including government fees and contracts (from Part Vil line 83) .
3 Membership dues and assessments L
4 interest on savings and temporary cash investments 19,284
5  Dividends and interest from securities .. ... L. L
Sa Guossrents 6a| 1,305,746]
b Less:rentalexpenses ... . See Statement 1 |eb
¢ Net rental income or (loss) (subtract line 6b from line &a) 739,813
© 7 Other investment income (descrite )
g 8a Gross amount from sales of assets other (A) Securities
5 thaninventory ... Ba
T b Less: cost or other basis and sales expenses 8b
¢ Gainor (loss) (attach schedule) . ... .. 8c
d Net gain or (loss) (combine line 8¢, columns (Ayand (B)) . . ... .. .. .. .. ... ...
9 Special events and activities (attach schedule). If any amount is from gaming, check he@
a Gross revenue (not including of
contributions reported on fine 1a) | ... s
b Less: direct expenses other than fundraising expenses . .. . .. . L%
¢ Netincome or (loss) from special events (subtract line 9b from line 9a) . . . . ... .. ... ... ...
10a Gross sales of inventory, less returns-and allowances 10a
b Less:costofgoods sold ... ... .. ... 10b :
¢ Gross profit or (loss) from sales of inventory (attach schedule) (subtract line 10b from line 10a) | 10c
11 Other revenue (from Part VIL fine 103) ... 11
12 Total revenue (add lines 1d, 2, 3,4,5,6¢,7,8d,9c, 10c,and 1) . oo 12 759,097
» | 13 Program services (from fine 44, column (B)) | ... 13 588,000
$ | 14 Management and general (from fine 44, column (C)) . 14 65,431
8 | 15 ~Fundraising (from line 44, column (D)) | .. 15
& | 16 Payments to affiliates (attach schedule) 18
17__ Total expenses (add fines 16 and 44, column (A)) 17 653,431
21 18 Excess or (deficit) for the year (subtract ine 17 from line 12) . ... ... 18 105,666
ﬁ 19 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (from line 73, column (A)) . 18 16,202,339
% | 20 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (attach explanation) See Statement 2 | 20| -15,374 076
Z | 21 Net assets or fund balances at end of year (combine lines 18, 19, and 20) 21 933,929

For Privacri/ Acland Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate
S,

instructio
DAA

Form 990 (2005)
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05
Form 890 (2005)

FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL

04-6001191 Page 2

i Statement of All organizations must complete column (A). Columns (B), (C), and (D) are required for section 501(c)(3) and (4)
Functional Expenses organizations and section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trusts but optional for others. (See the instructions.)

Do not include amounts reported on line (B) Program (C) Management .
6b, 8b, 9b, 10b, or 16 of Part |, () Total sorvicos andgeneral | (D) Fundraising
22 Grants and allocations (attach schedule) -Stmt 3 e B e L i
(cash$ 588,000 ncggf-l $ )1 22 il ,_;.
If this amount includes foreign grants, check herd> |_| 588,000 588, 000z Bt
23 Specific assistance to individuals (attach
schedule) | ... [J ]2
24 Benefits paid to or for members (attach
sohedule) | 24
25 Compensation of officers, directors, etc. = 25
26 Othersalariesandwages . . . . ... .. ... .. 26
27 Pensionplan contributions 27
28 Other employee benefits 28
29 Payrolitaxes ... 29
30 Professional fundraisingfees . . ... ... .. 30
31 Accountingfees 31 3,000 3,000
32 Legalfees 32 3,673 3,673
33 Supplies 33 ‘
34 Telephone 34
35 Postage and shipping . ... 35
36 Ocoupancy 36
37 Equipmentrental and maintenance . 37
38 Printing and publications 38
39 Trave‘ ............................................ 39
40 Conferences, conventions, and meetings =~ 40
41 inferest 41
42 Depreciation, depletion, etc. (attach schedule) 42
43 Other expenses not covered above (itemize): .
a See Statement 4 ... . 43a 58,758 58,758
b ................................................... 43b
e 43c
d ................................................... 43d
L 439
f ................................................... 43f
L 439
44 Total functional expenses. Add lines 22
through 43. (Organizations completing
columns (B)-(D), carry these totals to lines
1318 44 - 653,431 588,000 65,431 0
Joint Costs. CheckP> |_| if you are following SOP 98-2.
Are any joint costs from a combined educational campaign and fundraising solicitation reported in (B) Program services? b D Yes @ No
If "Yes," enter (I} the aggregate amount of these joint cofts : {if) the amount allocated to Program service$ ;

{iti} the amount allocated to Management and genefal

: and (iv) the amount allocated to Fundraisir

DAA

Form 990 (2005)
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FOFm 990 (2005) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-6001191 Page 3
i 4 Statement of Program Service Accomplishments (See the instructions.)

Form 990 is available for public inspection and, for some people, serves as the primary or sole source of information about a

particular organization. How the public perceives an organization in such cases may be determined by the information presented

on its return. Therefore, please make sure the return is complete and accurate and fully describes, in Part lll, the organization's

programs and accomplishments.

3

What is the organization's primary exempt purpose? Program Service
> TO GRANT CASH GIFTS TO THE TOWN OF IPSWICH PUBLIC SCHOOLS Expenses
All organizations must describe their exempt purpose achievements in a clear and concise manner. State the number (Riq”‘re“ fgfgzécxsi &
of clients served, publications issued, etc. Discuss achievements that are not measurable. (Section 501(c)(3) and (4) (m);t;giut opnon(:!)r(oz
organizations and 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable frusts must also enter the amount of grants and allocations {o others.) ' others.)
a GIFT TO SCHOOL, TRANSFER TO TOWN OF IPSWICH SCHOOL . .
B O N T
(Grants and allocations $ 588,000 ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check herd> [ | 588,000
b
(Grants and allocations $ y If this amount includes foreign grants, check herd> [ |
c ..................................................................................................................
(Grants and allocations § y If this amount includes foreign grants. check here> | |
d ..................................................................................................................
(Grants and aliocations § Ty if this amount includes foreign grants. check herd> | |
e Other program services (attach schedule)
{Grants and allocations $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check herg> D
f Total of Program Service Expenses (should equal line 44, column (B), Program services) . .. ... . .. .. .. .. » 588,000

Form 990 (2005)

DAA
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0(2005) FEQFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-6001191 Page 4
V¢ Balance Sheets (See the instructions.)

F

Note: Where required, attached schedules and amounts within the description (A) (B)
column should be for end-of-year amounts only. Beginning of year End of year
45  Cash-non-interest-bearing ... 543,826 45 78,369
46  Savings and temporary cash investments 191,974
47¢ 72,434
48a Pledgesreceivable =~ 48a D;Eﬁg
b Less: allowance for doubtful accounts 48h 48¢
49 Grants receivable .......................................................... 49
50 Receivables from officers, directors, trustees, and key employees
(attach schedule) .
51a Other notes and loans receivable (attach
schedule) ... sta
% b Less: allowance for doubtful accounts 51b
Blse menorestorsaoruse T
53 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges . ...
54 Investments-securities 4 Cost FMV
55a Investments-land, buildings, and
equipment: basis 55a
b Less: accumulated depreciation (attach
schedule) . ... 550
56 Investments-other (attach schedule) . . . . See Stmt 5. 56,280 502,177
57a Land, buildings, and equipment: basis 57a 6,545,265
b Less: accumulated depreciation (attach
schedute) See Statement 6 |57 18,498,104 6,545,265
58  Otherassets (describe See Statement 7 ) 68,767
58 Total assets (must equal line 74). Add lines 45through 58. ... .. ... .. .. . 19,166,877 59 7,390,219
60 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 60 8,214
81 Grantspayable 61
62 DEfefred revenue .......................................................... 62
@ | 63 Loans from officers, directors, trustees, and key employees (attach i
S| sehedul) . 53
8 | 64a Tax-exempt bond liabilities (attach schedule) ... 64a
- b Mortgages and other notes payable (attach schedule) See Worksheet 64b 6,448,076
65 Other liabilities (describe® See Statement 8 = ) 2,964,638| &5
66 Total liabilities. Add lines 60 through 65 . .. .. ... .. .. ... ... .. .. ... ... 2,964,638 68 6,456,290
Organizations that follow SFAS 117, check hef® [%] and complete lines i
" 67 through 69 and lines 73 and 74.
8| 67 ‘Ummestricted 16,152,339| &7 883,929
5| 68 Temporarly restricted 50,000/ e8 50,000
8 | 69 Pemanentyyrestrotea || oo
2 | Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117, check her® |_| and l&%ﬁ;;ﬁ
2 complete lines 70 through 74. %!;%ﬂ
‘S 70 Capital stock, trust principal, or current funds 70
‘g’ 71 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, and equipmentfund 71
2172 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 72
% | 73 Total net assets or fund balances (add lines 67 through 68 or lines %
= 70 through 72; I gi
column (A) must equal line 19; column (B) must equal line21) 16,202,339| 73 933,929
74 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances. Add lines 66 and 73. .. 19,166,977 74 7,390,219

Form 990 (2005)

DAA
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Form 990 (2005) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOQOL

04-6001191

Page §

Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return (See the

o

instructions.)
a  Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 1,325,030
b Amounts included on line a but not on Part |, line 12:
1 Net unrealized gains oninvestments
2 Donated services and use of facilites
3 Recoveries of prioryeargrants .
L4 OMher (specify):
hddines b1 through ba 565,933
o Subactinebfiominea 759,097
d  Amounts included on Part !, line 12, but not on line a:
1 Investment expenses not included on Part !, line6b ... ...
20 OHer (SPECIY): e
Addiines d1and dz
e Totalrevenue (Part| line 12). Addlinescandd .. .. .. . . .. ... . oo iuiuniit i 759,097
ZPArtIVEBE Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return
a  Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1,219,364
Amounts included on line a but not Part |, line 17:
1 Donated services and use of facilities
2 Prior year adjustments reported on Part |, fine 20 oo
3 lossesreportedonPart | line 20 .
4 OMer (SPECHY): .\ e
Addimes b through ba 565,933
¢ Subtractlinebfromlnea 653,431
d  Amounts included on Part |, line 17, but not on line a:
1 Investment expenses notincluded on Part!, line6b ..
2 OtNer (SPECHY): ...\ i
Add “nes d1 and d2 ....................................................................................
e Total expenses (Part |, line 17). Add fines c and d .. ... ... .o oiitnr it e 653,431
ERartiVEAEE  Current Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees (List each person who was an officer, director, trustee,

or key employee at any time during the year even if they were not compensated.) (See the instructions.)

(A) Name and address Title and avera%e hours pe

(C) Compensation
(If not paid, entern

(D) Contrb. to
employee bene

(E} Expense

account and other
og'a"gn%gfmfen Sjani allowances

week devoted to posmon -0-.)

ALEXANDER B C MULHOLLAND, JR | CHAIRMAN

P.0. BOX 587 IPSWICH MA 01938 4 0 0 12,180
JAMES FOLEY - CLERK

39 RIVER RD IPSWICH MA 01938 2 0 0 22,082
. PETER FOOTE . ...l TREASURER

401 COLONIAL DR. IPSWICH MA 01938 | 4 0 0 12,180
. DONALD WHISTON . . ... ... ... ... _......| MANAGER

31 MARKET ST. IPSWICH MA 01938 3 0 0 0

DAA

Form 990 (2008)
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Form 990 (2005)

(20 FEQOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-6001191
A1 Current Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees (continued)

Enter the total number of officers, directors, and trustees permitted to vote on organizatlon businsss at board
meetings b

Are any officers, directors, trustees, or key employees listed in Form 990, Part V-A, or highest compensated
employees listed in Schedule A, Part |, or highest compensated professional and other independent
contractors listed in Schedule A, Part 1I-A or II-B, related to each other through family or business
refationships? If "Yes," attach a statement that identifies the individuals and explains the relationship(s)

Do any officers, directors, trustees, or key employees listed in Form 930, Part V-A, or highest compensated
employees listed in Schedule A, Part [, or highest compensated professional and other independent
contractors listed in Schedule A, Part Hl-A or 11-B, receive compensation from any other organizations, whether
tax exempt or taxable, that are related to this organization through common supervision or common control?
Note. Related organizations include section 503(a)(3) supporting organizations.

If "Yes," attach a statement that identifies the individuals, explains the relationship between this
organization and the other organization(s), and describes the compensation arrangements,
including amounts paid to each individual by each related organization.

Does the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? .. .. ... e

St

frem
e

Former Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees That Received Compensation or Other Benefits

(If any former officer, director, trustee, or key employee received compensation or other benefits (described below) during
the year, list that person below and enter the amount of compensation or other benefits in the appropriate column. See the

instructions.)

(A} Name and address (B) Loans and Advances| (C) Compensation

(D} Contrib, to em
benefit plans & de
compensation plans

?loye 3

T

erreq

(E) Expense
account and other
allowances

EPArtVIEE  Other Information (See the instructions.)

76  Did the organization engage in any activity not previously reported to the [RS? If "Yes," attach a detailed
description of each activity
77 Were any changes made in the organizing or governing documents but not reported to the IRS?
If "Yes," attach a conformed copy of the changes.
78a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year covered by this return?
b If"Yes" has it filed a tax return on Form 980-T forthisyear?
79 Was there a liquidation, dissolution, termination, or substantial contraction during the year? If "Yes," attach
a Statement ..........................................................................................................
80a Is the organization related (other than by association with a statewide or nationwide organization) through
common membership, governing bodies, trustees, officers, etc., to any other exempt or nonexempt organization?
b If "Yes"enter the name of the organizatio®
T OO UROUS U and check whether it is[_] exempt or [ ] nonexempt
81a Enter direct and indirect political expenditures. (See fine 81 instructions.) 81a
b Did the organization file Form 1120-POL for thisyear?
DAA Form 990 (2005)
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990 (2005) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-6001191 Page 7

Other Information (continued) Yes | No

83a

84a

85

Q@ 0 O 0

86

87

88

89a

90a

91a

82

Did the organization receive donated services or the use of materials, equipment, or facilities at no charge
or at substantially less than fair remtal value?
If "Yes," you may indicate the value of these items here. Do not include this

amount as revenue in Part | or as an expense in Part Il

(See nstructions in Partll) ... 820 |
Did the organization comply with the public inspection requirements for returns and exemption applications?
Did the organization comply with the disclosure requirements relating to quid pro quo contributions?
Did the organization solicit any contributions or gifts that were not tax deductible? . . ..
If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not tax deductible? |
501(c)(4), (5), or (B) organizations. a Were substantially all dues nondeductible by members?
Did the organization make 6nly in-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 orless? .. ... ... ... ... N
If "Yes" was answered to either 85a or 85b, do not complete 85¢ through 85h below unless the organization

received a waiver for proxy tax owed for the prior year.

Dues, assessments, and similar amounts from members 85¢
Section 162(e) lobbying and political expendltures 85d
Aggregate nondeductible amount of section 6033(e)(1)(A) dues notices 85e
Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenditures (line 85d less 85e) . . . . . .., 85f

Does the organization elect to pay the section 6033(e) tax on the amounton line 8562 . .. ... ... . . . N/&
If section 6033(e)(1)(A) dues notices were sent, does the organization agree to add the amount on fine 85f
to its reasonable estimate of dues allocable to nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures for the

"ne 12 ................................................................................. Bsa
Gross receipts, inciuded on line 12, for public use of club facilities ........................... 86b
501(c)(12) orgs. Enter: a Gross income from members or shareholders . . . . ... 87a
Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other

sources against amounts due or received fromthem.) 87b

At any time during the year, did the organization own a 50% or greater interest in a taxable corporation or
partnership, or an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations sections 301.7701-2

and 301.7701-37 if "Yes," complete Part IX
501(c)(3) organizations. Enter: Amount of tax imposed on the organization during the year under:
secton4g11®» ;section49i2 » ; section 4955 B>

501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) orgs. Did the organization engage in any section 4858 excess benefit transaction
during the year or did it become aware of an excess benefit transaction from a prior year? If “Yes," attach

sectlons 4912‘ 4955’ and 4958 ................................................................................ ’

Enter: Amount of tax on line 83c, above, reimbursed by the organization . . .. L 4

List the states with which a copy of this return is filele M

Number of employees employed in the pay period that includes March 12, 2005 (See

INSUUGHONS.) | | | oo e oo Y

The books are in care of  PETER FOOTE ... Telephone no. > 978-356-1040
401 COLONIAL DR.

Located at » IPSWICH, MA SRR zp+4» 01938 .

At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an Interest in or a signatuie ur other authority
over a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial
BOCOUMY?
11 Yes," enter the name of the foreign countly T
See the instructions for exceptions and filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22.1, Report of Foreign Bank
and Financial Accounts.

At any time during the calendar year, did the organization maintain an office outside of the United States?
If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign countr>

DAA

Form 990 (2005)
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Form 990 (2005)

FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL

04-6001191

Page 8

EPAtVIE

Analysis of Income-Producing Activities (See the instructions.)

Note: Enter gross amounts unless otherwis
indicated.
93 Program service revenue:

e

Unrelated business income

Excluded by sec. 512, 513, or 514

{A)
Business codg]

(8)

(C).
Amount Exclusion
code

An(wzmt

(E)
Related or
exempt function
income

Membership dues and assessments

95 Interest on savings and temporary cash investments

96 Dividends and interest from securities

97 Net rental income or (Joss) from real estate:

a debt-financed property

14

b notdebtfinanced property ... 16 739,813
98 Net rental income or (loss) from personal property
99 Otherinvestmentincome .
100 Gain or (loss) from sales of assets other than inventory
101 Netincome or (loss) from special events
102 Gross profit or (loss) from sales of inventory
103 Other revenue: a
b
c
d
e
104 Subtotal (add columns (B), (D), and (E)) 759,087 0
105 Total (add line 104, columns (B), (D), and (E)) | J 759,097

te: Lin

e 105 plus line 1d, Part |, should equal the amount on line 12, Part |

T E
AllES

Relationship of Activities to the Accomplishment of Exempt Purposes (See the instructions.)

Line No.

Explain how each activity for which income is reported in column (E) of Part ViI contributed importantly to the accomplishment
of the organization's exempt purposes (other than by providing funds for such purposes).

M
N/A

SPATEIXE

Information Regardin

(A
Name, address, and EIN of corporation,
partnership, or disregarded entity

(B)
Percentage of

ownership interest

Nature of activities

D

Total( in)come

Taxable Subsidiaries and Discregarded Entities (See the instructions.)

(E
End-of2 ear
assets

N/A %
Y
%
%
EParXse Information Regarding Transfers Associated with Personal Benefit Contracts (See the instructions.)

{a) Did the organization, during the year, receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract
{b) Did the organization, during the.year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract?

Note: If "Yes" to (b), file Form 8870 and Form 4720 (see instructions).

No
No

Yes
Yes

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge

and belief, it is true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.
Please
Sign } -
Here Signature of officer Date

PETER FOQOTE TREASURER
Type or print name and title.
; Preparer's SSN or PTIN
Paid P_reparer’s ’ . Date i g}ﬁ‘:k if (See Gen. Instr. W)
, | signature Daniel E. Clasby 9/13/07 employed b [X] | 029-36-~4753

Preparer's
Use Only | Firm's name (or yours Dan Clasby & Company EN b 04-3395132

if self-employed), 100 Cummings Center Suite 238C Phone

address, and ZIP + 4 Beverly, MA 01915 no. > 978-922-8900

DAA

Form 990 (2005)
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960 / 990-PF

Mortgages and Other Notes Payable

For calendar year 2005, or tax year beginning 7/01/05 | and ending 6/30/06

2005

Name

FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL
IN THE TOWN OF IPSWICH

Employer Identification Number

04-6001181

Form 990, Part IV, Line 64b - Additional Information

Name of lender

Relationship to disqualificd person

(1) IPSWICH COOPERATIVE BANK

Lo

i e
Original amount Maturity Interest
borrowed Date of loan date Repayment terms rate

) 3/07/06

2

(3

4

5} B}

()]

@

8

€]

R R e e S

Security provided by borrower Purpose of loan

e

Consideration furnished by lender beginning of year

Balance due at

end of year

6,448,076

(&)

04!

8

€

(0

Totals

6,448,076
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04-6001191 Federal Statements

Statement 1 - Form 990, Part |, Line 6b - Rental Expenses

Description Deduction
COTTAGES
REAL ESTATE 468,628
BEACH SAMPLING 666
POLICE DETAIL 6,075
INSURANCE 8,519
REPAIRS & UPKEEP 28,410
WASTEWATER REMOVAL 42,676
UTILITIES 6,984
DOCK REMOVAL & STORAGE 3,975
Total 565,933
Statement 2 - Form 990, Line 20 - Other Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances
Description Amount
ADOPTION OF GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTG PRINCIPLES $ -15374076
Total $ -15374076

1-2
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04-6001191 _ Federal Statements

Statement 3 - Form 990, Part ll, Line 22 - Grants, Allocations and Contributions

Name Relationship Class of
Address - to Org Activity
Date of Description of Cash - NonCash Book BV FMV
Gift Property Contrib Contrib Value Explantn Expintn
TOWN OF IPSWICH NONE EDUCATIONAL
$ 588,000 $ ’ $
Total $ 588,000 $ 0 $ 0
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04-6001191 Federal Statements

Statement 4 - Form 990, Part ll, Line 43 - Other Functional Expenses

Total Program Mgt & Fund-
Description “Expenses Service General Raising
$ 3 3 §
Expenses
COMM OF MASS FILING FEES 750 750
MEETINGS 358 358
OFFICE EXPS 1,923 1,923
LAND APPRAISAL 9,285 9,285
MANAGEMENT FEES 46,442 46,442
Total 5 58,758 § 0 3 58,758 $
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04-6001191 Federal Statements

Statement 5 - Form 990, Part IV, Line 56 - Other Investments

Beginning End of Basis of
Description of Year Year Valuation
SAVINGS RESERVE FOR CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS 56,280 502,177
Total S 56,280 $ 502,177

Statement 6 - Form 990, Part IV, Line 57 - Land, Buildings. and Equipment

Description
Beginning Accum End of Accum
of Year Deprec Year Deprec
LAND
$15,419,900 s $ $
SEWER IMPROVEMENTS
2,606,930
ELECTRICAL IMPROVEMENTS
471,274
SEWER CONSTRUCTION COST
5,608,268
SEWER SOFT COSTS
- 438,413
ELECTRIC BETTERMENTS
498,584
Total $18,498,104 3 0 $ 6,545,265 $ 0

Statement 7 - Form 990, Part IV, Line 58 - Other Assets

Beginning End of
Description of Year Year
INTANGIBLE ASSET $ 68,767 $
Total $ 68,767 $ 0

Statement 8 - Form 990, Part IV, Line 65 - Other Liabilities

Beginning £nd of
Description of Year Year
NOTES PAYABLE $ 2,964,638 5
Total $ 2,964,638 $ 0

5-8
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04-6001191 Federal Statements

Statement 9 - Form 990, Part IV-A - Other Revenue Included on Financial Statements

Description Amount
RENTAL EXPENSES NETTED AGAINST RENTAL REVENUE $ 565,933
Total $ 565,933

Statement 10 - Form 990, Part IV-B - Other Expenses Included on Financial Statements

Description Amount
RENTAL EXPENSES NETTED AGAINST RENTAL REVENUE $ 565,933
Total S 565,933

9-10
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DAN CLASBY & COMPANY
Certified Public Accountlants

-1-
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Managers
Feoffees of the Grammar School
Ipswich, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of the Feoffees of the
Grammar School (a non-profit organization) as of June 30, 2006, and the related statements of
activities and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Trust's managers. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. ‘l'hose standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Feoffees of the Grammar School as of June 30, 2006, and the results of

its activities and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

o lkyoCingary

January 9, 2007

100 Cummings Center, Suite 238C, Beverly, MA 01915 ¢ Telephonev 978-922-9900 ¢ Fax 978-922-3233
: email: ClasbyCo@msn.com



Exhibit A
-
FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL
Statement of Financial Position

As of June 30, 2006

Assets
Current assets:
Cash - operating $ 78369
Cash - savings 191,974
Cash - reserved for sewer project 502,177
Accounts receivable 72.434
Total current assets 844.954
Property and betterments:
Sewer betterments:
Construction costs 5,608,268
Soft costs 438.413
, 6,046,681
Electric betterments 498.584
6,545,265
Less accumulated amortization -
6,545,265
Land and buildings, Note 1 . -
Net property and betterments 6.545.265
Total Assets $7.390.219
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities:
Note payable - current portion $ 146,292
Accounts payable 8.214
Total current liabilities 154,506
Long term debt, net of current portion - 6.301,784
Total liabilities 6.456.290
Net assets:
Unrestricted - undesignated 883,929
Unrestricted - board designated 50.000
Total net assets 933,929
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $7390219

See Independent Auditors' Report and notes to the financial statements.
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Support and Revenue:
Rents
Buildings, home and land collections
Interest income

Total support and revenue

Expenses:
Gift to Town of Ipswich Public Schools
Real estate taxes
Management fees
Wastewater removal - May storm
Repairs and upkeep
Land appraisal
Insurance
Utilities
Police details
Dock removal and storage
Legal
Accounting
Office expense
State fees
Beach sampling
Mecetings

Total expenses
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginhing of year

Net assets, end of year

Undesignated

Board
Designated

$ 847,000
458,746
19.284

1.325.030

588,000
468,628
46,442
42,676
28,410
9,285
8,519
6,984
6,075
3,975
3,673
3,000
1,923
750

666

358

1.219.364
105,666

778.263

$ 883,929

$ -

50.000

$ _50.000

See Independent Auditors' Report and notes to the financial statements.

Exhibit B

Total

$ 847,000
458,746
19.284

1.325.030

588,000
468,628
46,442
42,676
28,410
9,285
8,519
6,984
6,075
3,975
3,673
3,000
1,923
750

666

358

1.219.364
105,666

828.263

$_933.929



Exhibit C

4.
FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets $ 105,666
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets '
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Increase in accounts receivable ( 25,004)
Increase in accounts payable 6.608
Net cash provided by operating activities __87.270
Cash flows from investing activities:
Betterments made (3.398.294)
Net cash used in investing activities (3.398.294)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from financing 6,483,000
Repayments on debt (2.999.562)
Net cash provided by financing activities ' 3.483.438
Net change in cash 172,414
Cash, beginning of year 600,106
Cash, end of year $ 772,520

Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid $ __346.241

See Independent Auditors' Report and notes to the financial statements.
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Nature of organization

Feoffees of the Grammar School (the “Trust”) was established by the Town of Ipswich
(the “Town”) by a vote of Town Meeting on November 14, 1650. The vote established a
four-member committee to hold land granted by the Town for the support of a “grammar
school”. The Trust came into possession of the real property currently held in 1660
through the bequest of William Paine, an original member of the 1650 commiittee.

The real property consists of a parcel of land of approximately thirty five (35) acres in
Ipswich, Massachusetts. On this land are situated one hundred sixty seven (167) cottages,
of which one hundred forty three (143) are seasonal and twenty four (24) are year round.
The seasonal cottages may only be occupied between April 1 and November 30 each year.
The Trust is assessed and pays to the Town the real estate taxes on the land and on such
structures owned by the Trust (a community center and a wharf); in addition they collect
for the Town and remit to the Town the real estate taxes assessed on the cottages.

Because the Trust designates its net earnings to be for the benefit of the children of the
Ipswich Public Schools, with no benefits accruing to its trustees, it has considered itselfto
be a tax-exempt organization. However until 1997 no federal or state tax returns were
filed by the Trust, as it was the position of the Trust that it was a “quasi-public trust” and
therefore was not technically required to file the tax returns.

The Trust is supported primarily through rent collections.

(b) Financial statement presentation

The Trust has adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117,
"Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations". Under SFAS No. 117, the Trust
is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to
three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and
permanently restricted net assets,

(c) Estimates -

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements

Continued
(d) Property and betterments

Sewer and electrical improvements are recorded at cost. Maintenance and repairs are
charged to expense as incurred. Betterments that extend the useful lives of assets are
capitalized. The improvements will be amortized using the straight-line method over
estimated useful lives 0f20 years. Amortization ofthe improvements will begin in fiscal
year June 2007.

The land on which the Feoffees operates was acquired in 1650. The land has no
determinable value and has not been recorded by the Trust. The community house used
by the tenants of the Trust also has no determinable value and has not been recorded by
the Trust.

Long-term debt
Long-term debt as of June 30, consist of the following:

On June 7, 2005 the Trust entered into a construction/permanent term loan with the Ipswich
Cooperative Bank to provide financing for the construction of sewer lines and a centralized
holding tank, pump-out facility and related infrastructure work. The maximum amount of the
loan was set at $6,483,000. $2,000,000 was advanced on June 7, 2005 for work performed
prior to the loan closing. During the construction period (nine months maximum) interest was
charged at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1% on a floating basis. On March 7, 2006
the construction loan converted into a permanent loan with a maturity date of March 7, 2026.
The loan is a five (5) year adjustable rate loan with fixed interest based on the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Boston Classic Advance Rate plus 2.75%, with a floor of 6.75%. The initial
rate on this loan is 7.61%. The note is collateralized by all leases and rents and betterment
fees on the Trust property. The current portion of this note at June 30, 2006 is $146,292.

Upon the conversion of the loan from a construction loan to a permanent loan on March 7,
2006 the Bank advanced $892,560 to the Trust in order to finance remaining construction
costs. The Board of Managers has designated funds set aside in a separate checking account
as an allocated reserve for the sole purpose of construction cost remittances. The balance in
this account at June 30, 2006 is $502,177.

Maturities of long-term debt at June 30, 2006 is as follows:

Year Amount
2007 $ 146,292
2008 157,822
2009 170,260
2010 183,679
2011 198,154
Thereafter 5.591.869

Total $6.448.076
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements

Note payable - related party

The Trust was indebted to the Chairman of its Board of Managers in the amount of $964,638
at June 30, 2005. The Chairman established a line of credit of $1,000,000 with the same
financial institution that is referred to in Note 2 above, as the bank could not lend the Feoffees
more than $2,000,000 pending the receipt of an order from the Essex Probate Court
authorizing those loans. The note carried interest at 6.2%, which was the identical rate
charged by the bank to the Chairman. This note was paid off during September 2005 with
proceeds from the Trust's construction loan.

Basis of accounting

Under Chapter 12, Section 8F of the Massachusetts General Laws, organizations which file
annual reports with the Division of Public Charities and have gross support and revenue in
excess of $100,000 for a year must prepare their financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and present them on the accrual basis of
accounting, effective for all current filings. In accordance with the mandate the Trust
changed to the accrual basis of accounting from the cash basis of accounting previously
reported. Generally accepted accounting principles also required the Trust to discontinue
carrying the land at its 1997 assessed value of $15,419,900. The effect of these changes was
to reduce net assets by $15,374,076 as of July 1, 2005.
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FORM PC
Page 1

Massachusetts Office of the Attorney General
Division of Public Charities

FORM PC

To be filed annually by all non-profil charitable organizations conducting business in the Commonwealth

Report for the Fiscal Period: Beginning _07 /01 / 06 Ending _06 / 30 [/ 07

Check all items attached: Form PC _X Schedule A1 Schedule A2 Schedule RO AG Schedule B

Probate Account Copy of IRS Return _X__ Audited Financial Statements/Review X__ Filing Fee _X Amended Articles/Bylaws

o ORGAN!ZAT!ON DATA

Name: FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL IN THE TOWN OF IPSWICH
Mailing Address:  P.O. BOX 708, 2 DEPOT SQUARE

City: IPSWICH State:  MA zip: 01838
Phone:{ 978 ) 356-1040 Fax ( 978 ) 356-1042
E-Mait: N/A Web Site (ULR): http://www.

In the section below please enter the appropnate codes from the correspondmg tables found on pages 12 and 13

Category : Enter ug to 2 codes from Tab!e 3 for your organlzahon s maln purpose(s) .v "
County (Table 1) 5 Organization Purpose Code 1 8
Type of Organization (Table 2) 2 Organization Purpose Code 2
Please check box if final return Payment Received
Prior to dissolution Office Use Only




04-6001181

FORMPC
Page 2

All questions must be completed in their entirety whether or not similar questions are answered
in an attached federal form. See instructions and definition section for guidance.

.1, -On‘'what date was the organization created?. here wa he organization.created?

NOVEMBER 14, 1650 IPSWICH, MASSACHUSETTS

3/ Wh'.z'at-ls tﬁé\.form-:of‘the organization?
Corporation Testamentary trust
Unincorporated association Inter Vivos trust
Other (please describe): VOTE OF TOWN MEETING ON 11/14/1650
4. Was your organization related to any other organization(s) during the reporting year (see definition of "Related Organization")?
Yes No X___lfyes, piease complete the Schedule RO on pages 10 and 11.

A Contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received $ -
B | Gross Support and Revenue 1% 120,520
Cc Program services and similar amounts paid out $ -
D Fundraising expenses $ -
E | Management and general expenses $ 336,816
F | Payments to affiliates $ -
G | Total Expenses $ 336,816
H Net assets or fund balances at the end of the year $ 717,633

8. List the total compensation you provided to your five highest paid employees.

"..ch"er:’ .
D i L A . B -Compensation
1 DONALD F. WHISTON MANAGER AS NEEDED 1440 0 0
2 |ALEXANDER MULHOI LAND  |CHAIRMAN AS NEEDED 5,060 0 0
3 [JAMES FOLEY CLERK AS NEEDED 53,000 0 0
4 PETER FOOTE TREASURER AS NEEDED 13,505 0 0
5
7. Was any compensation provided to any other individuals listed in 6 above which was not quantified in your response to 7

Yes No X if yes, please provide explanation




04-6001191

FORM PC
Page 3

8. List the name, amount of compensation paid, and the nature of services rendered by each of the organization's FIVE highest paid
consultants providing professional services {(e.g., attorneys, architects, accountants, management companies, investment
advisors professional solicitors, professional fundraising counsel.)

e :'A_mo"unt-Q‘f’_Compé__nytiqn’

1 RJV CONSTRUCTION 256,257 | SEWER UPGRADE
2 LOMBARDO ASSOCIATES 200,000| SEWER UPGRADE
3 MACLEAN, HOLLOWAY DOHERTY ET AL 136,675|LEGAL SERVICES
4 WATERLINE INDUSTRIES 77,419 | SEWER UPGRADE
5 WESTON & SAMPSON 32,312| ENGINEERING

9. Bank(s) in which the organization’s funds are deposited (include bank address and phone number):

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF IPSWICH 31 MARKET ST, IPSWICH, MA (800) 834-0046

10. What is the organization's accounting method: Cash __X Accrual Other {specify)

1. If organization’s mailing address is a P.O. Box Number, list the organization's full street address: N/A

IPSWICH, MA

2 DEPOT SQUARE

12 Name address and telephone number of Contact Person:

PETER FOOTE 401 COLONIAL DR IPSWICH, MA 01938 (978) 356-1040

13. During the fiscal year reported here, did your organization solicit contributions or have funds solicited on

its behalf? Yes No X
14. At any time during the fiscal year following the year reported here, will your organization, or others acting on

its behalf, have solicited contributions? Yes No X

IF YOU ANSWERED "YES” IN RESPONSE TO QUESTION 13 OR 14, YOU MUST COMPLETE SCHEDULES A-1
AND/OR A-2 UNLESS YOU ARE EXEMPT FROM THE SOLICITATION CERTIFICATE REQUIREMENT.

15. If you are claiming an exemption from the solicitation certificate requirement, please indicate by placing an "X" in the box to the
right to identify which exemption applies to your organization,

a religious organization

an organization which (a) does not raise more than $5,000 during a calendar year OR does not receive contributions from more than ten
persons during a calendar year: AND (b) carries out all of its activities, including fundraising, through unpaid volunteers. (The conditions at
both (a) and (b) must be me! for your organization to qualify for this exemption
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46, Names, addresses (street & P.0.) and telephone numbers of other officesichapters/branches/affiliates (attach list). N/A
17. List the names, titles and addresses (street & P.0.) of officers, directors, trustess, and the principal salaried executives of

organization (attach separate sheet).  SEE ATTACHED

18. Attach separate sheet listing names and addresses (street & P.0.) for all below:  SEE ATTACHED

individual(s) responsible for custody of funds
Individual(s) responsible for distribution of funds
Individual(s) responsibie for fund raising

Individual(s) responsible for custody of financial records
Individual(s) authorized to sign checks

18, Has this organization or any of its officers, directors, employees or fund raisers solicited funds in any
other state? Yes No__ X

If yes, attach list of states where solicitation was conducted, including registering agency, dates of registration, registration numbers, any

other names under which the organization was/is registered, and the dates and type (mail, telephone, door to door, special events, etc) of the

solicitation conducted. I

20. Has this organization or any of its officers, directors, employees:
If yes, please attach an explanation
(a) Been enjoined or otherwise prohibited by a government agency/court from opérating or
soliciting contributions? Yes No__ X
(b) Ever been refused registration or had its registration or tax exemption denied, suspended,
modified or revoked by a governmental agency? Yes No
(c) Been the subject of a proceeding regarding any solicitation or registration? Yes No X
(d) Entered into a voluntary agreement of compliance or consent judgment with any
government agency or in a case before a court or administrative agency? Yes No X
21, Have any restrictions been removed during the year from donor-restricted funds? Yes No X

if yes! please attach an explanation

22. Have donor-restricted funds been loaned to unrestricted funds? Yes No X

If yes, please attach an explanation

23, This question involves "Termination of Employment or Change of Control Compensafory Arrangements” with certain ‘Related
Parties” (see instructions and definition sections). Report only if payments made or promised to any individual are in excess of
four months salary or $100,000, whichever dollar amount is less.

a) Did you make actual payments or otherwise transfer value under such an arrangement

to any individual described in Related Party definition, sections (a) or (b) which payments

are not reported in Question 6 or 7 above? Yes No X
(b) Do you have an agreement with any individual described in Related Party definition,

section (a) or (b), containing such an arrangement? Yes No X

If you answered "yes" for Question 23(z) or 23(b) above, please attach an explanation identifying the individual{s) involved, stating the amount
of any payments made or value transferred, and describing the terms of each agreement



FORM PC
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24,

This quésﬁon applies to related party transactions, which include transactions with officers, directors, trustees, certain employees,

04-6001191

relative, and organizations they own or control. Please consult the instructions and definition sections for the definition of a
"Related Party” and "Indebtedness"” before answering. Note that transitions Involving related parties must be reported even

when there Is no accounting recognition (e.g., in-kind gifts, waiver of interest not otherwise reported).

If the answer fo any part of Question 24 is "Yes", attach a schedule stating the name and address of the relaled party, the nature of the
transaction, the value or the amounts involved in the transaction, and the procedure followed in authorizing the transaction

“Dufing .the'yéar,

‘has‘your organiz‘éﬂo

(a) Sold or transferred assets to or purchased assets from or exchanged assets with a related party? X

(b) Leased assets to or leased assets from a related party?

(c) Been indebted to a related party?

(d) Allowed a related party to be indebled to it? X

(e) Made or held an investment in a related party? X

) Furnished goods. services, or facilities to a related party? X

(9) Acquired goods, services, or facilities from a related party who received compensation or other value in X

- return?

(h) Paid or became obligated to pay wages, salary or other compensation to a related party? X

(i) Transferred income or assets to or for use by a related party? X

@) Was the organization a party to any transaction in which any of its officers, directors or trustees has a
material financial interest, or did any officer, director or trustee receive anything of value not reported as X
compensation? ’

(k) Has the organization invested in any corporate stock in which any officer, director, or trustee owns more X
than 10% of the outstanding shares?

[0} Is any property of the organization held in the name of or commingled with the property of any other X
person or organization?

(m) Did the organization make a grant award or contribution fo any organization in which any of its officers, X
directors or trustees has a relationship?
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Under penalty-of perjiry, I declare that atior furriished:in this report; including all-attachments, i true'and correct to the best of my -
Knowiedc




FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL IN THE TOWN OF IPSWICH
FORM PC ATTACHMENTS
FED ID# 04-6001191
FYE 6/30/07

Q17 & 18

Alexander B C Mulholland Jr Chairman
PO Box 587
Ipswich, MA 01938

James Foley Clerk
39 River Road
Ipswich, Ma 01938

Donald F. Whiston Manager
- 31 Market Street
Ipswich, MA 01938

Peter Foote Treasurer

401 Colonial Drive signs checks

Ipswich, MA 01938 custody of funds & financial records
distribution of funds

no fundraising



FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL IN THE TOWN OF IPSWICH
FORM PC ATTACHMENTS
FED ID# 04-6001191
FYE 6/30/07

Schedule 24(b)

One of the 167 lots of land at Little Neck, Ipswich, is rented to the Foley Family Trust, of
which James Foley, a Feoffee, is a beneficial owner. The annual rent for the lot is the same

as all 143 lots which are limited to seasonal occupancy.

Schedule 24(c)

The Organization was indebted to the Chairman of its Board of Managers, Alexander
Mulholland, Jr. in the amount of $964,638 at June 30, 2005. His address is P.O. Box 587,
Ipswich, MA 01938. A Board of Managers vote approved this transaction.

The Organization paid off this debt during September 2005.
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990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax OB No 15450047
Farm Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the internal Revenue Code {axcept black lung 2006
Department of the Treasury > o banefit trust o’r E‘pvato foundatpon) . 0 requi Gpon to BUREE Inspacion
Internal Revenue Service The organizalion may have lo use a copy of this relurn 1o sa isfy stale reporting reguirements. p : ¢
A Forthe 2006 calsndar year, or tax year beginning 7 /01/06  andending 6/30/07
B Check il applicable: Please | ¢ Name of organization D Employer identification number
(] mssresscrange |12 IRS]  FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-6001151
D ‘Name change print or IN THE TOWN OF IPSWICH E Telephone number
D nitial retum f)slpe. Number and street (or P.Q. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Roomisuite 978-356-1040
. . ::_iﬁg_ 25 GREEN STREET F_ Accounting method: E{J Cash
D Final retum [nztmc_ City or town, state or country, and ZIP « 4 D Accrual Other {specify)
[] Amendes rewm | tions. IPSWICH MA 01938 >
o~ ; e Section 501{c){3) organizations and 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable H and are no! applicable o seclion 527 organizations. |

D Application pending trusts must(agt(aéh agcompleked Schedule(A((F)orm 990 cfé%-EZ). H(a) Isthisa grpoup return for afl’dia(es?g D Yes No
G Website: » N/A H(b) 1 ~Yes” enter number of affiliates P e "
J Organization type H{c) Are ab affiliates included? D Yes No

(check only one) P [%] 501(¢) (3 ) «(nsertno) | | asa7ayy o [] 527 (11*No.” aitsch 2 sl See insucions.)
K Check here B> D if the organizatian is not a 508(a)(3) supporting orpanization and its gross H{d) Is ihis a separate retura filed by an

receipts ate normally not more than 525,000. A retum is not required, but if the organization chooses olganiza(i?n covered by 2 group ruling? H Yes H No

10 file 3 relurn, be sure 1o file a complete raturn, |__Group Exemption Number P>

M Check P if the organization is not required

L__Gross receipls: Add lines 6b, 8b, 8b, and 10b to fine 12 b 1,583,834 to aliach Sch. B (Form 890, 990-EZ, or 980-PF).

Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances (See the instructions.)

1 Contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received:
a Contribulions fo donoradvised funds ia
b . Direct public support (notincluded onfine 13) ... . L L. ib
¢ Indirect public support (notincludedonbine ta) .. .. ... L ic
d Govemnmen! contributions (grants) {not included onfine a) . . .. . . ... 1d
e Total (add lines 1a through 1d) (cash S noncash § ) 1e 0
2 Program service revenue including government fees and contracls (from Part Vil line 83) 2
3 Membership dues and asseSSMENIS L 3
4  Interes! on savings and temporary cash investments 4 11,817
5 Dividends and interest flom SECURLIES | .. .. .. ... .. i s 5
ﬁa Gmss rEﬂ!S .............................................................. Ga l ! 5 7 2 ! 117
Less:rentalexpenses .. ... See Statement 1 §b 1,463,414
Net rental income or (loss). Subtract fine Bb from line 8a 108,703
° 7 Other investment income (describe P ) . - e
x’; Ba (ross amount from sales of assets other {A) Securities (B} Other
tharinventory B2
m Less: cost or other basis and sales expenses | 8b
Gain or (loss) (allach schedule) . . . . . .. 8c
Net gain or (loss). Combine fine 8¢, columns {A) and (B) . e
] Special events and aclivilies (atiach schedule). If any amount is from gaming, check here P D
a Gross revenue (notincluding $ of
contributions reported online 1) L, 8a
b Less: direc! expenses other than fundraising expenses .. Sb
¢ Netincome or (loss) from special events. Sublract fine Bb fromline 8a . .. . . ...
10a Gross sales of inventory, less retums and allowances 10a
b lessicostofgoodssold 10b
¢ Gross profit or (ioss) from sales of invenlory (altach schedule). Subtract line 10b from line 103
11 Other revenue (from Par VI fine 103)
12 Total revenue. Add lines 1e, 2.3, 4.5.6¢. 7, 8d,9¢, 10c. and 11 e 12 120,520
13 Program services (from fine 44, column (B)) 13
§ 14 Management and general (from fine 44, colmn (1) o 14 336,816
§ | 15  Fundraising (from fine 44, column (D) | e 15
X1 16 Paymentsto affilisles {attach schedule) 16
17 Total expenses. Add lines 16 and 44, column {A) e B S 17 336,816
8148 Excess or (defici) for the year. Subtract line 17 fromline 12 18 -216,286
21 48 Net assets or fund balances al beginning of year (ffom fine 73, coumn(AY) 19 833,928
; 20 Ofther changes in net assels of fund balances (allach explanation) ~~ See Statement 2 | 20 0
Z | 21 Nelassels or fund balances al end of year. Combine lines 18, 18, and 20 ) N ) 21 717,633

Far Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate
g};{mctiagg P B Form 890 (2006)
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL

04-6001181

Paoge 2

Fo

Statement of
Functional Expenses

All organizations must complete column (A). Columns (B). (C). and (D) are required for section 501(c)(3) and (4)
organizations and section 4847(a)(1) nonexempl charitable trusts but oplional for others. (See the instruclions.)

Do not include amounts reported on line (B) Pmogram (C) Management
{A) Tetal : {D) Fundraising
6b, 8b, 8b, 10b, or 16 of Part |. services and general
22a Grants paid from donor advised funds (attach schedule)
{cash$ Cash § )
If this amoun includes foreign grants, check here ¥ D 223
22b Other grants and allocations (aftach schedule)
(cash §, 2% s )
If this amount includes foreign grants, check here P D 22b
23 Spedific assistance to individuals (attach
schedule) | 23
24 Benefils paid to or for members (attach
sehedule) 24
25a Compensation of current.officers, directors,
key employees, elc. listed in Part V-A (attach
schedule) See Statement 3 |25
b Compensation of former officers, directors,
key employees, elc. listed in Part V-B (attach
sehedule) | 25b
¢ Compensalion and other disiribulions, not included above, 1o
disqualified persons (as defined under section 4858(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) (atiach schedule} 25¢
26 Salaries and wages of employees not included
on lines 253' b’ andc 26
27 Pension plan contributions not included on
iines 253' b‘ and L 27
28 Employee benefits no! included on fines
253 - 27 ............................................ ZB
28 Payrolitaxes L 28
30 Professional fundraising fees ... .. 30
31 Accountingfees ... 31 8,000 8,000
32 Legal fees 32 251,714 251,714
33 Supplies 33
34 Telephone 34
35 Postage and shipping 35
36 Occupancy 36
37 Equipment rental and maintenance 37
38 Printing and publications 38
39 Trave' .............................................. 39
40 Conferences, conventions, and meetings .. 40
41 lnterest [ T T I I e R A N 61
42 Depreéialion, depletion, etc. (altach schedule) 42
43 Otlher expenses nol covered above (itemize):
a See Statement 4 43a 77,102 77,102
43b
43¢
43d
43e
43f
43g
44 Total functional expenses, Add iines 22a
through 43g. (Organizations completing
columns (B)-(D), carry these totals to lines
T395) e 44 336,816 0 336,816 0

Joint Costs. Check P U if you are following SOP 98-2.

Are any join! cests from a combined educalional campaign and fundraising soficitation reported in {B) Program services?

 “Yes.” enter {i) the aggregate amount of these joint costs 5

{iil) the amouni alocated to Management and general §

; and {iv} the amounl afiocated to Fundraising $

; (i) the amoun! aliocated 1o Program services S

>DYESDNO

DAA

Form 880 (200s)
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2006) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04 - 6001181 Page 3
- Statement of Program Service Accomplishments (See the instructions.)

Form 990 is available for public inspection and, for some people, serves as the primery or sole source of information about a

pariicular organization. How the public perceives an organization in such cases may be determined by the information presented

on its return, Therelore, please make sure the retum is complete and accurate and fully describes, in Part 11l the organization's

programs and accomplishments.
Whal is the organizalion's primary exempt purpose? Program Service
» TO GRANT CASH GIFTS TO THE TOWN OF IPSWICH PUBLIC SCHOOLS . | Expenses
All organizations must describe their exempt purpose achievements in a clear and concise manner. State the number (Tf;:: ':;i’;:;((?);‘;d
of clients served, publications issued, ete. Discuss achievements that are not measwable. (Section 501(c)(3) and (4) M,S:"bm oplional for
prganizations and 4947(a)(1) nonexampl charitable trusts must alsn enter the amount of grants and allocatlons lo olhers.) others )
{Granls and aliocations S ) if this amount includes foreign grants. check here B D
e Other program services (attach schedule)
(Grants and aliocations  § ) if this amoun! includes foreign grants, check here P D
f Total of Program Service Expenses (should equal line 44, column (B), Program services) . .. . . . . . . . . . ... ... ... > 0
Form 890 (2006)

DAA
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Form 890 (zoos) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-6001191 Page 4
i VY Balance Sheets {See the instructions.)
Note: Where required, attached schedules and amounts within the description (A) (B}
colurnn should be for end-of-year amounts only. Beginning of year End of year
45  Cash-non-interest-bearing L 270,343} 45 420,798
46  Savings and temporary cash investments L. ’
47a Accounts receivable 47a 112,907
b 72,434 41¢ 112,907
4Ba
b 48¢
49 Grants receivable .............................................................. 49
50a Receivables from cumrent and former officers, directors, trustees, and
key employees (attach schedule} . 50a
b Receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section 4858(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4858(c)(3)(B) (att. schedule)
542 Other notes and loans receivable (attach
schedule) ... s1a
g b Less: aliowance for doubtiul accounts 51b 51¢
& | 52 Invenloriesforsaleoruse ..l 52
53 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges ... ... i 53
B e > B Cost B FMY 542
g o o > L con [ e o4t
s5a Investments-land, buildings, and
equipment:basis | ... 553
b Less: accumnulated depreciation (attach
schedule) ... 55b
56 Investments-other (attach schedule) ... ... ... 502,177
57a Land, buidings, and equipment: basis . 57a 7,177,589 '
b Less: accumuiated depreciation (attach
schedule) See Statement 5 = |57b 237,374 6,545,265| 57¢ 6,940,225
58  Other assets, including program-related investments )
(describe B ) 58
59  Total assets (musl equal line 74). Add fines 45through 58 . ... . .. ...l 7,390,219 s8 7,473,830
80  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 8,214 s0 366,579
61 Granispayable
52 Deferedrevenue . ... See Statement 6 57,210
0 53  Loans from officers, directors, trustees, and key employees (attach
2 SCNEOUIE) | e
E B4a Tax-exemnpl bond fiabilities (attach schedule) 64a
- b Mortgages and other notes payable (attach schedule) . ... 64b
55 Other liabiities {describe » See Statement 7 ) 6,448,076 &5 6,332,508
86  Total liabilities, Add lines 60through 65 . . 6,456,250 6,756,297
Organizations that follow SFAS 117, check here P L}_{] and complete lines
67 through 68 and lines 73 and 74. E
w | 67 Unrestricted 883,929 667,633
2 | 68 Temporariyrestricled ... 50,000 50,000
B | 69 Permanentyrestricled ... ...
e Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117, check here and
T complete lines 70 through 74.
S | 70 Capital stock, trust principal, or curent funds o
‘3 71 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, and equipmentfund
2 72 Refained eamings, endowmenl. accumulated income, or otherfunds
% | 73 Total net assets or fund balances (add lines 67 through 62 or fines-
z 70 through 72. (Column (A) must equal fine 18 and column (B) must \
equal e 21) | 933,929 717,633
74  Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances. Add lines 66 and 73 7,380,219 7,473,930

DAA

Form 990 (2008)
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Form 990 (2008) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-6001181 Page §
IV:iA; Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return (See the
instructions.)
a  Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements
Amounts inciuded on line a but not on Par |, line 12:

120,520

Net unrealized gains on invesimenls

Donaled services and use of {acilities
Recoveries of prior year grants
Other (specify):

E N Y

120,520

Amounts included on Part |, line 12, but not on line a:
1 lnvestment expenses nolincluded on Partl fine6b . Lo
2 OMher (SPeTify)l e

Addlines d4an0 82 d
e Total revenue (Part |, ling 12). Add lines ¢ and d 8 120,520
il Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Retfurn
a  Tolal expenses and losses per audiled financial statements | a 99,442
Amounts included on line a but not Part |, fine 17:
Donated services and use of feciiies ...
Prior year adjustments reported or Part |, fine 20

Losses reporied on Part [, fine 20

R

99,442

§  Amounts included on Part{, line 17, but not on fine a:
1 Investmen! expenses nol included on Part |, ling 6b
2 Other (specify):

Addlines diandd2 d 237,374
e Total expenses (Part |, line 17). Add lines ¢ and d g 336,816

Current Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees (List each person who was an officer, director, truslee,
or key employee at any time during the year even if they were not compensated.) (See the instructions.)

{A} Name and address Tite and a & hours pet (((l:f) r&inp‘):;,sae‘:\c::r eréggyznmng}ﬁaﬁs & aész)unl and other
week devoted 1 posilion 0.} _W allowances

ALEXANDER B C MULHOLLAND, JR . . .. . IPSHICH ...l CEAIRMAN

P,0. BOX 587 MA 01938 0 0 0 5,060

JAMBS FOLEY IPSWICH ... CLERX

39 RIVER RD MA 01938 0 0 o 53,000

PETER FOOTE i IPSWICH ... TREASURER

401 COLONIAL DR. MA 01838 0 0 0 13,505

DONALD F. WINSTON .. ... IPSWICH ...l HANAGER

31 MARKET ST MA 01538 0 0 0 1,440

Form 930 (2008)

DAA
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Form 990 (2005) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-6001151 Page 6
3 Current Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees (continued) | Yes | No
75a  Ener the total number of officers, direclors, and trustees permitted to vote on prganization business at board

>

BN e e
b Are any officers, directors, trustees, or key empioyees listed in Form 990, Pari V-A, or highest compensated

employees listed in Schedule A, Pari |, or highest compensated professional and other independent
contractors listed in Scheduie A, Part 11-A or 1I-B, refated to each other through family or business
relationships? If "Yes," atlach a statement thal identifies the individuals and explains the relationship(s) . . . .. ... ...
¢ Do any officers, directors, fruslees, or key employees listed in Form 990, Part V-A, or highest

compensated employees listed in Schedule A, Part 1, or highest compensated professional and other

independent coniractors listed in Schedule A, Par 11-A or II-B, receive compensation from any other

organizations, whether tax exempt or taxable, that are relaled to the organization? See the instructions for

the definition of “related organizalion.” e e s

if “Yes,” attach 2 stalemenl! thal includes the information described in the instructions. S
d Does the organization have a written confliclof interestpolicy? | ............oooeoneeeeereeee i eeizenceazs 75d
PaTtV Former Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees That Received Compensation or Other Benefits
(If any former officer, direclor, trustee, or key employee received compensalion or other benefits (described below) during the year, list that

person below and enter the amount of compensalion or other benefits in the appropriate column. See the instructions.)
(C) Compensation {{D) Conlributions to employeel  {E) Expense

{A} Name and address {B} Loans and Atvances (i not paid, benefit plans & deferred  |account and other
enter -0-) compensalion plans allowances

X

Yes | No

I "Yes,” attach a conformed copy of the changes.
78a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year covered by
this retum? 782 X

b If"Yes has il filed & tax return on Form 980-T for this year? 78b

79  Was there a fiquidation, dissolution, termination, or substantial contraction duing ir;e ye.a.r.?. lf"Yesauach ........................
astatemenl e e

80ba s the organization retated (other than by association with a slalewide or nationwide organiza(ic}\j !hrough ...........................

common membership, governing bedies, trustees, officers, eic., {o any other exempl or nonexempl

B4a Enter direct and indirec! pofiical expenditures. (See line 81 instructions.) o B1a

b Did the organizalion file Form 1120-POL forthisyear? ... .. ... . o L L 81b X
) Form 990 (2005)

DAA
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Form 090 (2005) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-6001191 Page 7

“PartiVIF  Other Information (continued) Yes | No
82a Did the organizalion receive donated services or the use of materials, equipmenl, or faciliies al no charge

ar at substantially less than falr rental value?

b If "Yes," you may indicate the value of these items here. Do nol include this
arnouri! as revenue in Part | or as an expense in Pari Il.
{See instructions in Pari }L.) 1 82b l

B3a Did the organization comply with the public inspection requirements for returns and exemplion applications?

b Did the organization comply with the disclosure requirements relating to quid pro quo contributions?
84a Did the organization soficit any contributions or gifts that were not taxdeduclible?
b If*Yes,” did the organizafion include with every solicilation an express statement that such contributions or

gifts were nol 1ax SedUCtIbIE? | e N/A | 8ab
85  501(c)(4), (5), or (6) organizations. a Were substantially all dues nondeduclible by members? L. N/A 85a
b Did the organization make only in-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 erless? L N/A 85b

If "Yes” was answered to eilher 85a ar 85b, do not complete 85¢ through 85h below unless the arganization

received a waiver for proxy tax owed for the prior year.

¢ Dues, assessments, and similar amounts from members . 85¢c )
d Seciion 162(e) lobbying and political expendilures 85d
e Aggregate nondeductible amounl of section 6033{e)(1){A) dues notices 85e
f Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenditures (line 85d iess 85e) B5f
g Does the organization elect to pay the section 6033(e) tax on the amount on fine B5? L ALA
h  If section 6033(e)(1)(A) dues nolices were sent, does the organization agree to add the amount on fine 85f
) 10 ils reasonable estimate of dues aliocable to nondeductible lobbying and poltical expenditures for the
ollowing LaX YBAI? e N/A | ash
86  5D1(c)(7) orgs. Enter: a Iniliation fees and capital contributions included on fine 12 . B6a
b Gross receipts, included on fine 12, for public use of club facilities . ... 86b
87  50%(c)(12) orgs. Enter: a Gross income from members or shareholders B7a
b Gross income from other sources. (Do not nel amounts due or paid to other
sources againsl amounts due of received from them.) 87b

88a At any lime during the year, did the organization own a 50% or greater interestin a taxable corporalion or
parinership, or an entity disregarded as separate from the organizafion under Regulations sections
301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 If "Yes," complete Part IX 88a X

b At any lime during the year, did the organization, directly or indirectly, own a controlied entity within the
meaning of section 512(b)(13)7 If “Yes," complete Parl Xi
8%a 501(c)(3) organizations. Enter: Amount of tax imposed on the organization duiing the year under:
section4g1t b 0 :sectionagtz » 0 ;section4g55 P
b 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) orgs. Did the organization engage in any section 4956 excess benefit transaction
during the year of did it become aware of an excess benefil transaction from 2 prior year? If "Yes,” attach

a statemenl explaining each lransaction

g For supporting organizations and sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did the
supporling organization, or a fund maintained by a sponsoring organization, have excess business hoidings
at any time during the year?

apa List the states wilh which a copy of this retum is fled  » ~ MA
b Number of cmployees employed in the pay period thal Includes March 12, 2006 (See Ty
INSICHONS.) | B
91a The books are incare of P PETERFOOTE ............. Telephoneno b 978-356-1040
01 COLONLAL R s JEERIIEIR 20 2 B
‘Localedal P LPSWICH, MA zZip+4 b 01938

b Al any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an nlerest in or 2 signature or other authority
over a financial account in a foreign couniry {(such as a bank account, securities accounl, or other financial
BeC0UND?
If " Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country p o

See the instructions for exceplions and filing regquirements for Form TD F 80-22.1, Report of Foreign Bank
and Financial Accounts.

DAA Form 990 (zo08)
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Form 960 (2006) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-6001191 Page 8

rt VI Other information (continued) Yes | No
¢ Afany lime during the calendar year, did the organization maintain an office oulside of the United Stales? . . ... ... l 91c X
If Yes," enter the name of the foreign country >
92  Seclion 4947(a)(1) nonexempl charitable trusts fiing Form 890 in fieu of Form 1041- Check here .. ... . .. ... ... ..., | D
and enter the amount of tax-exemp! interest received or accrued during the taxyear . ...................o00eccs >] 82
Analysis of income-Producing Activities (See the instructions.)
Note: Enler gross amounts uniess otherwise Unrelaled business income Excluded by section 512, 513, o 514 “ l(lE)d
. .. elale.
indicated. Busin(eAsL code Anggl)mt Ex lﬂgion Arr!lro"lln\ exempal lun‘;icn
83 Program service revenue: code income
a
b
c
d
e
f Medicare/Medicaid paymenis ...
g Fees and contracts from govemnmen! agencies |
94
95 14 11,817
86
87
a
5 16 108,703
98
98
100
101
102
103 Other revenue: a
b
c
d
e
104 Subtotal (add columns (B), (D), and (E)) . .. ... ... .. ... 120,520 0
105 Total (add fine 104, columns (B), (D and (B ... ..., ...l i > 120,520

Note: Line 105 plus line 1e. Part |, should equal the amount on line 12, Part |.

*PEEVIH Relationship of Activities to the Accomplishment of Exempt Purposes (See the instructions.)
Line No. Explain how each activity for which income is reported in column (E) of Part VIl contribuled importantly to the accomplishment!
v of the organization's exemp! purposes {other than by providing funds for such purposes).
N/A

information Regarding Taxable Subsidiaries and Disregarded Entities {(See the instructions.)

(A) . {B) ©y D) 5
Name, address, and EIN of corporation, Percentage of Nature of activities Total income End-pf-year
parinership. or disregarded entity ownership interes! assels
N/a %
%l
%
&
X information Regarding Transfers Associated with Personal Benefit Contracts (See the instructions.)
(a) Did the organization, during the year, receive any funds, direclly or indirectly, lo pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? |~ Yos [X| No
{b) Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indireclly, on a personal benefit contract? . ... .. .. Yes No

Note: If "Yes" to {b), file Form 8870 and Form 4720 (see instructions).

Form 980 (2008)

DAA
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Form 890 (2005) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-6001181 Page 8
“Part:X[#  Information Regarding Transfers To and From Controlied Entltles. Complele only if the organization
is a controlling organization as defined in secfion 512(b)(13).

Yes | No
106 Did the reporting organization make any transfers to a controlled entity as dafined in section 512(b)(13) of
the Code? I "Yes,” complele Ihe schedule below for each controlied entity. X
{A) (B) () (D
Namao, address, of each Employer ID Description of )
controliod entity Number transfer Amount of transfer

Yes | No
107  Did the reporting organization receive any transfers from a controlied entity as defined in section
512(b){13) of the Code? If “Yes,” complele the schedule beiow for each conirolied entity. X
(A} (8 {C}) o
Nama, address, of each Employer ID Description of A { ),
controlied entity Number transfer mount of transfer

Yes | No
108 Did the organization have a binding written contract in effect on August 17, 2006, covering the interest,
rents. royalties, and annuities described in question 107 above?

Under panalties of perjury, | declars that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statoments, and to the best of my knowledge

and belief, il is true, comect, and complete, Declaration of preparer {other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowiedge.
Please
Sign } ) A
Here Signature of officer Date

PETER FOOTE TREASURER
Type or pnnt name and title

Paid Plreparer‘s } , Date S;;;:_Ck f fsrzzaéce? ii‘r:'c;r)PTlN
Preparer's signature Daniel E. Clasby empioyed b [i] 028-36-4753
Usepon|y Firm's name (or yours Dan ClaB}?y & Company - EIN > 04-3395132

it setf-amployed), 100 Cummings Center Suite 238C Phone

address, and ZIP + 4 Beverly, MA 019815 no. P 978-822-83800

Form 890 (2008)

DAA
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SCHEDULE A Organization Exempt Under Section 501(c){3) . OB No. 15450047
{Form 890 or 980-EZ) {Except Private Foundation) and Section 501(e), 501(f), 501{k), 501(n), )
or 4347(2)(1) Nonoxempt Charitable Trust
Supplementary information-{See separate instructions.) 2006
gfgriggﬂﬁg‘l,g;ézesfﬁ?;uw P MUST be completed by the above organizations and attached to their Form 330 or 990-EZ
Employer identification number

Name of the organization
FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL IN THE TOWN QF IPSWICH 04-6001191
art]i%.  Compensation of the Five Highest Paid Empioyees Other Than Officers, Directors, and Trustees

(See page 2 of the instructions. List each one. if there are none, enter "None.")

(b} Tille and average hours

{a) Name and address of each employee paid more
per week davoted 1o position

than $50,000

{d} Contrib. to | {e) Expense
{c} Comp, empl. ban, plans} accoun! & other
& deferred comp|  alfiowances

Total _r_uum_ber of other employees paid over $50,000

Compensation of the Five Highest Paid Independent Contractors for Professional Services
(See page 2 of the instructions. List each one (whether individuals or firms). If there are none, enter "None.")

{a) Name and address of each independent coniractor paid more than $50,000

(b) Type of service {c) Compensation

Total number of olhers receiving over $50,000 for

professional services .o

firms. If there are none, enter "None." See page 2 of the instructions.)

art . Compensation of the Five Highest Paid Independent Contractors for Other Services
(List each contractor who performed services other than professional services, whether individuals or

(a) Name and address of sach indepandent contractor paid more than $50,000

{b) Type of service {c) Compensation

Total number of other contractors receiving over

$50,000 for other services i

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, soe the instructions for Form 880 and Form 930-EZ

DAA

Schedule A {Form 830 or 830-EZ) 2006
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2006 FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-6001181 Page 2
$ Statements About Activities (See page 2 of the instructions.) Yes | No
1 During the year, has the organization attempled to influence nafional, siate, orlocal legisiation, including any
attemp! lo influence public opinion on a legislative matler or referendum? If "Yes,” enter the lotal expenses paid
or incurred in connection with the lobbying aclivilies > s {Must equal amounts on line 38,
PariVI-A, orfine Tof Part VB | e
Organizations that made an eleclion under section 501(h) by filing Form 5768 mus! complete Part VI-A. Other
organizations checking "Yes" mus! complete Part VI-B AND attach a stalement giving 8 delailed description of
the lobbying activities.
2. During the year, has the organizalion, either directly or indirectly, engaged in any of the following acts with any
substantial conlributors, trustees, directors, officers, creators, key employees, or members of their families, or
with any taxable organizalion with which any such person is affilialed as an officer, direclor, trustee, majority
owner, or principal beneficiary? {If the answer to any question is "Yes,* aftach a detailed stalement expiaining the
transactions.)
a  Sale, exchange, or leasing of ProPeMY? | e 2a X
b Lending of money or other extension of Gredit? e 2b X
¢ Fumishing of goods, services, or faclilies? e 2c X
d Payment of compensalion (or payment o reimbursement of expenses if more than $1,0000? S ee. Part V-A, . Form . 99 0 . 2d 1 X
e Transfer of any pant of its INCOME OF @SSBIST | i 2e p.S
3z Did the organization make grants for scholarships, fefiowships, student loans, etc.? (f "Yes,” attach an explanation
of how the organization determines that recipients qualify to receive payments.) . 3a X
b Did the organization have a seclion 403(b) annuity plan for its emMPlOYReS ? 3b X
¢ Did the organization receive or hold an easement for conservalion purposes, including easements to presecve 0pen
space, the environment, historic land areas or historic struclures? If "Yes,” atiach a detailed statement ic X
d Did the organizalion provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repatr, or debt negofiation services? 3d X
4a  Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds? If "Yes,” complele lines 4b through 4g. If "No," complete
limesafanddg PRSP 4a X
b Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section 49862 L 4b
¢ Did the organization make a distribution to a donar, donor advisor, o related person? L. 4c
d  Enler the total number of donor advised funds owned al the end of the taxyear b
e Enter the aggregate value of assets held in all donor advised funds owned at the end ol the tax year . |
f  Enter the total number of separate funds or accounts owned at the end of the tax year (excluding donor advised
funds included on fine 4d) where donors have the right to provide advice on ths distribution or investment of
amounts in SUCH funds OF BECOUNLS | e e > 0
g Enler the aggregate value of assets held in all funds or accounts included on line 41 al the end of the {ax year | o 0

Schedule A {(Form 990 or 880-EZ) 2006

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 980 o 990-E2) 2006 FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-6001191 Page 3

Reason for Non-Private Foundation Status (Sse pages 4 through 7 of the instructions.)

| certify that the organizalion is nol a private foundation because it is: {Please check only ONE applicable box.)
5 A church, convention of churches, or associalion of churches. Section 170(b){1)(A)(i).

s [ ] A school. Section 170(b)(1)(A)ii). (Also complete Pari V.)
7 D A hospital or a cooperalive hospital service organization. Section 170(b)(1)A) (.
8 D A federal, stale, ar local government or governmental unit. Section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

g D A medical research organizalion operated in conjunction with a hospital. Section 170(b)(1){A)(ii}). Enter the hospital's name, city,

and state ’ ..........................................................................................................................

10 D An arganization aperated for the benefit of a culleye or university owned or operated by a governmental unit. Section 170(b)(1){A)iv).
(Also complele the Support Schedule in Parl IV-A))

11a D An organization that normally receives a subsl;nlial par of its suppori from 3 governmental unit or from the general public. Section
170(b)(1){A){vi). (Also complete the Support Schedule in Part IV-A.)

11b D A community trusl, Section 170(b)(1){A}(vi). (Also complete the Support Scheduie in Part IV-A)

12 D An organizafion that normally receives: {1} more than 33 1/3% of ils support from contribulions, membership fees, and gross receipts
from activities relaled to ils charitable, etc., functions-subject o certain exceplions, and {Z) no more than 33 1/3% of its support
from gross investment income and unrefated business taxable income (less section 511 lax) from businesses acquired by the
organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Also complele the Support Scheduie in Pari IV-A}

13 D An organization thal is not controlied by any disqualified persans (other than foundafion managers) and otherwise meets the
requirements of section 509(a)(3). Check the box thal describes the type of supporiing organization:

D Type ! D Type 1l D Type lil-Functionally Intergrated D Type li-Other
Provide the following information about the supported organizations. (See page 7 of the inslructions )
(@) (b) (c) (d) (8)
Name(s) of supported organization{s) Employer Type of is the supported Amount of
idontification organization organization listed in support
number (EIN) | {described In lines the supporting
5 through 12 organization's
above or IRC governing documents?
section)
Yes No
M D U >

14 ﬂ An oraanization organized and operaled o tes! for public safety. Seclion 508(a)(4). {(See page 7 of the instructions.)
Schedule A (Form 990 or 890-EZ) 2006

DAA
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Page 4

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2006 FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-6001191
“PartIV-A . Support Schedule (Complete only if you checked a box on fine 10, 11, or 12.) Use cash mathod of accounting,
Note: You may use the workshee! in the instructions for conveding from the accrualfo the cash method of accounting.

Calendar yoar {or fiscal year beginning in) P {a) 2005 {b) 2004 {c) 2003 (d) 2002 {e) Total

15

Gitis, grants, and contributions received. (Do

nol indude unusual grants. See fine 28.)

16

Membership fees received

v

Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or furnishing of
facilities in any activity that is related to the

organization's charitable, etc., purpose ... ..

18

Gross income from interest, dividends,
amounts received from paymenls an securities
laans (section 512{(a)(5)}, rents, royallies, and
unrelated business laxable income {less
seclion 511 taxes) from businesses acquired
by the organization aller June 30, 1975

19

Net income from unrelated business

activities not included in line 18 . ., ... ... ..

20

Tax revenues levied for the organization’s
benefit and either paid to it or expended on
fisbehafl .. . ... ...

21

The value of services or facilllies furnished to
the organization by a govemnmental unit
without charge. Do not include the vaive of
servicas or faciliies generaBy fumished to the
public withoutcharge . ., . ... ....0. .00

22

Other income. Altach a schedule. Do not
incdlude gain or {ioss) from
sale of capital assets

23

Total ot lines 15through 22 . ., . ... ... ..

24

Line 23 minus line 17

25

Enter 1% of line23 = . . .

26

Organizations described on lines 10 or 41:  a Enter 2% of amoun{ in column (e), fine 24

Prepare a lisl for your records o show the name of and amount contributed by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly supported organization) whaose total gifts for 2002 through 2005 exceeded the
amoun! shown in fine 26a. Do not file this list with your return. Enter the total of all these excess amounts b | 26b

Tolal suppart for section 509(a)(1) test: Enter line 24, column (&) -3

Add: Amounts from column (e) for lines; 18 19
22 26b v P | 26d

Public support (ine 26¢ minus line 264 total) b | 280

Public support percentage (fine 26e {numerator) divided by fine 26c {denominator)} ............................ b | 26f %

27

oot o o

Organizations described on line 12: a For amounts included in lines 15, 16, and 17 that were received from a "disqualified

person,” prepare a list for your records to show the name of, and total amounts received in each year from, each "disqualified person.”

Do not file this list with your retum. Enter the sum of such amounts for each year: N/A

(008) ... @004) .. (2003 .. (2002 ..

For any amoun! included in line 17 thal was received from each person (other than “disqualified persons”), prepare a lisl for your records o

show the name of, and amount received for each year, that was more than the larger of (1) the amount on line 25 for the year or (2) $5,000.

(Inciude in the list organizations described in lines 5 through 11b, as well as individuals.) Do not file this list with your return. After computing

the difference between the amount received and the larger amount described in {1) or {2), enter the sum of these differences (the excess

amounts) for each year; N/A

@005) ... (2004) (003) .. (2002) .

Add: Amounts from column (e} for fines: 15 0o
17 20 2 b | 27c

Add: Line 27a total and ne 27btotal » |27d
P {270

Public support percentage {line 27e {(numerator) divided by line 27f (denominator)) P | 27g %
.............. B 127h %

28

Unusual Grants: For an organization describad in fine 10, 11, or 12 tha! received any unusual grants during 2002 through 2005,
prepare 3 lisl for your records o show, for each year, the name of the contributor, the dale and amount of the grant, and a brief
description of the nalure of the granl. Do not file this {ist with your raturn, Do notinclude these aranls in line 15,

DAA

Schedule A (Form 990 or 890-EZ) 2008
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 290-E7) 2006 FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-60011¢1 Page §

Private School Questionnaire (See page 9 of the instructions.)

{To be compieted ONLY by schools that checked the box on line 6 in Part 1V}

23 Does the organizalion have a racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students by statemen! in its charier, bylaws,
other governing instrument, or in a resolution of its governing body? .. . il

30 Does the organization include & statement of its raclally nondiscriminatory policy 1oward students in all its
brochures, calalogues, and ofher wrillen communications with the public dealing with student admissions,

programs, and SCholarships? e
31 Has the organization publicized ite racially nondisciiminalory policy through newspaper or broadcast media during
the period of solicitation for sludents, or during the registration period if it has no solicialion program, in a way
thal makes the policy known io all paris of the general commuriity it SBIVES?
If "Yes" please describe; if "No," please explain. (If you need more space, attach a separale statement.)

32 Does the organization maintain the following:

a Rocords indicating the racial composition of the student body, faculty, and administrative staff? . . L 32a

Records documenting that scholarships and other financial assistance are awarded on a racially nondiscriminatory

baSiS? .................................................................................................................. 32b
¢ Copies of all catalogues, brochures, announcements, and other writlen communications to the public dealing

with student admissions, programs, and scholarships? | L 32c
d Caopies of all materiat used by the organizalion or on ils behall to solicit contributions? 32d

33
a
b
c Employmenloffacultyoradministralivestaﬂ?___m'_‘”__”___m_”___.m_”_w“____.mmm_._‘_‘””m; .......... 33¢
d  Scholarships or other financial aSSISIANCET | L 33d .
e Educalional PONCIBST e e 338
f USe Of fad“tles’; .......................................................................................................... 33{
g AIOliG DrOg aIIS e e e 33g
h  Other extracurricular activities? 33h
34a Does the organization receive any financial aid or assistance from 3 governmental agency? 34a
b Has the organization's right to such aid ever been revoked or suspended? 34b
if you answered "Yes" to either 34a or b, please explain using an attached stalement.
35  Does lhe organization cerlify that it has complied wiih the applicable requirements of sections 4.01 through 4.05
of Rev. Proc. 75-50, 1975-2 C.B. 587, covering racial nondiscrimination? If "No " atiach an explanation . . .. . . .. .. 35 1

Scheduls A (Form 880 or 890-EZ) 2006

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 830-E7) 2006 FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-6001191 Page &
TPartVLA.  Lobbylng Expenditures by Electing Public Charities (See page 10 of the instructions.)
{To be completed ONLY by an eligible organization that filed Form 5768) N/A

Check P a ﬂ if the organizalion belongs to an affiliated group. Check P b ﬂ if you checked “a" and “limited conirol” provisions apply.
_ . . {a) (b)
Lirits on Lobbying Expenditures Affiliated group To be completed
. totals for all elecling

(The term “expenditures” means amounls paid or incutred.) arganizalions

36 Total lobbying expenditures lo influence public opinion (grassroots lobbying)
37 Tolal lobbying expenditures 1o influence a legislative body (direct lobbying)

38 Total lobbying expenditures (add lines 36 and 37)
3% Other exempl purpose expenditures

40 Total exemp! purpose expenditures (add lines 38and 39) .. ... ...
41 Lobbying nontaxable amount. Enter the amount from the following table-

If the amount on line 40 is- The lobbying nontaxable amount is-
Notover 8500000 ., 20% of the amountonline4d
Over $500,000 but not over $1,000,000 ... .. $100.000 plus 15% of the excess over §500,000
Over 51,000,000 but not over $1,500,000 ..., .. $175.000 pius 10% of the excess over $1,000,000
Over $1,500,000 but nat over $17,000,000 . _. .. $225,000 plus 5% of the excess over $1,500,000
Over 517,000,000 $1.000.000

42 Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% of fine 41)
43 Sublract ine 42 from fine 36, Enter -0- if fine 42 is more than line 36

Caution: If there is an amount on either line 43 or line 44, you must file Form 4720.
4-Year Averaging Period Under Section 501(h)
{(Some organizations that made a section 501(h) election do not have to complete all of the five columns below.
See the instructions for lines 45 through 50 on page 13 of the instruciions.)

Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Perlod

Calendar year (or {a) (5) {c) (d} {e)
fiscal year beginning in) P 2006 2005 2004 2003 Total

45 | obbying nontaxable amount ... ... .
46 Lobbying ceiling amount {150% of
fined5(e)) ... ... ... ..

47 Total lobbying expenditures ... .. ..

48 Grassroots nontaxable amoun! ... . ..
49 Grassroots ceiling amount (150% of
line 48(e))

50 Grassroots lobbying expenditures _ .. .
Lobbying Activity by Nonelecting Public Charities
(For reporting only by organizations that did not complete Part VI-A) (See page 13 of the instructions ) N/A
During the year, did the organization attempt to influence national, state or local legistation, including any

‘ i . o Yes | No Amount
atlempt to influence public opinion on a legisiative matter or referendum, through the use of: medn

a Volunieers

- @ o O o o
iy
=
o
=3
3
n
=]
g
k=]
c
o
=
=
I}
Q.
=]
5
o
5
g
o
a
qa
w
«u
u
o
@
3
]
2
'3

Total iobbying expenditures (Add fines ¢ through h.)
I "Yes" 1o any of the above, also afiach s stalement giving a detailed description of the Jobbying aclivilies.

Schedule A (Form 890 or 890-EZ) 2006

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2006 FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 04-6001191 Page 7
Information Regarding Transfers To and Transactions and Relationships With Noncharitable
Exempt Organizations (See page 13 of the instructions.)
54  Did the reporting organization directly ar indirectly engage in any of the following with any other organization described in section

501(c) of the Code (other than seclion 501{c)}(3) organizations) or in seclion 527, relaling {o political organizations?

a Translers from the reporting organization to a noncharitable exempt organization of: Yes | No
) CBON s1a(i) X
() OMMerassels afii) X
b Other fransactions: - h
(i} Sales or exchanges of assets with a noncharitable exempt organization b{i} X
(i) Purchases of assets from a noncharitable exempl organization bii) X
(iii) Rental of faciliies, equipment, or otherassets bfiii) X
(iv) Reimbursementamangements . ... ... ... b{iv) X
(v) LoansorloanQuarantess ...l b(v) X
{vi) Perlormance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations b{vi) X
Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, other assets, or paid employees c X
If the answer to any of the above is "Yes," complete the foliowing schedule, Column (b) should always show the fair marke! value of the
goods, other assets, or services given by the reporting organization. If the organization received less than fair markel value in any
{ransaction or sharing arrangement, show in column {d) the value of the goods. other assets. or services received:
{a) {b) (c}) {d)
Ling no. Amaount involved Name of noncharitable exempt organization Description of transfers, transaclions, and sharing arrangements
N/A
52a s the organization directly or indirectly affiliated with, or related to, one or more lax-exempt organizations
described in section 501(c) of the Code (other than section 501(c)(3)) orin seclion 5277 . . . ... ... .. ......... 4 D Yes No
b If"Yes,” complete the following schedule:
(a) (b} (c}
Name of organization Type of organization Description of relalionship

N/A

DAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2006
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04-6001191 Federal Statements

FYE: 6/30/2007

Statement 1 - Form 990, Part ], Line 6b - Rental Expenses

Description Deduction
COTTAGES
Interest 521,842
REAI, ESTATE 530,300
Depreciation 237,374
BEACH SAMPLING 728
DOCK REMOVAL & STORAGE 2,040
ENGINEERING CONSULTING 19,249
INSPECTIONS - 5,040
INSURANCE 8,519
POLICE DETAIL 7,289
REPAIRS & UPKEEP 113,252
UTILITIES ) 17,781
Total 1,463,414
Statement 2 - Form 990, Line 20 - Other Changes in Net Assefs or Fund Balances
Description Amount
Book / Tax Deprec Difference s 237,374
DEPRECIATION INCLUDED IN EXPENSES -237,374

Total S 0

1-2




FEQ1191 FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL

04-6001191
FYE: 6/30/2007

Federal Statements

5/15/2008 1:14 PM

Form 990, Part ll, Line 22b - Other Grants and Allocations

Name Relationship Class of
Address to Org Activity
Date of Description of Cash NonCash Book BV FMV
Gift Property Contrib Contrib Value Explantn Expintn
TOWN OF IPSWICH NONE EDUCATIONAL
$ $ $
Total $ 0 $ 0 S 0
Statement 3 - Form 990, Part i, Line 25a - Compensation of Current Officers
Program Management &
Name Services General Fundraising
Expenses 5 $ $
Total $ 0 $ 0 $ 0




FEO1191 FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 5/15/2008 1:14 PM
04-6001191 Federal Statements

FYE: 6/30/2007

Staternent 4 - Form 980, Part ll, Line 43 - Other Functional Expenses

Total Program Mgt & Fund-
Description Expenses Service General Raising
S $ $ $
Expenses

COMM OF MASS FILING FEES ) 250 250
MANAGEMENT FEES 73,005 73,005
MEDIATION SERVICES 2,225 2,225
OFFICE EXPS 1,622 1,622

Total $ 77,102 § - 0 $ 77,102 §
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04-8001191 Federal Statements

FYE: 6/30/2007

Statemnent 5 - Form 990, Part [V, Line 57 - Land, Buildings. and Equipment

Description
Beginning Accum End of Accum
of Year Deprec Year Deprec
SEWER CONSTRUCTION COSTS
$ 5,608,268 5 S 6,238,709 s 237,374
SEWER SOFT COSTS
438,413 438,413
ELECTRIC BETTERMENTS
498,584 498,584
FURNITURE & FIXTURES
1,893
Total $ 6,545,265 % 0 $ 7,177,599 § 237,374

Statement 6 - Form 990, Part IV, Line 82 - Deferred Revenue

Beginning End of
Description of Year Year
DEFERRED RENT $ $ 57,210
Total $ 0 $ 57,210

Statement 7 - Form 990, Part IV, Line 65 - Other Liabilities

Beginning End of

Description of Year Year
NOTES PAYABLE 5 6,448,076 S 6,303,183
ACCRUED INTEREST 238,315
Total $ 6,448,076 $ 6,332,508

5-7
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04-6001191 Federal Statements
FYE: 6/30/2007

Statement 8 - Form 990, Part [V-A - Other Revenue Included on Financial Statements

Description Amount

RENTAL EXPENSES NETTED AGAINST RENTAL REVENUE $

Total $ 0

Statement 9 - Form 990, Part IV-B - Other Expenses included on Financial Statements

Deécription Amount

RENTAL EXPENSES NETTED AGAINST RENTAL REVENUE S

Total s 0

Statement 10 - Form 990, Part IV-B - Other Expenses included on Return

Description Amount
Book / Tax Deprec Difference s 237,374
Total $ 237,374
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DAN CLASBY & COMPANY
Certified Public Accountants

-1-
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Managers
Feoffees of the Grammar School
Ipswich, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of the Feoffees of the
Grammar School (a non-profit organization) as of June 30, 2007, and the related statements of
activities and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Trust's managers. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Feoffees of the Grammar School as of June 30, 2007, and the results of

its activities and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

e s

March 4, 2008

100 Cuminings Center, Suite 238C, Beverly, MA 01915 ¢ Telephone 978-922-9900 e Fax 978-922-3233
’ ernail: ClasbyCo@msn.com
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL
Statement of Financial Position

As of June 30, 2007

Assets

Current assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable
Total current assets

Property, betterments and equipment:
Sewer betterments
Electric betterments
Furniture and futures
Less accumulated amortization and depreciation
Net property and betterments
Land and buildings, Note 1
* Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Note payable - current portion
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Deferred rent collections

Total current liabilities

Long term debt, net of current portion
Total liabilities

Contingencies

Net assets:

Unrestricted - undesignated
Unrestricted - board designated

Total net assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

See Independent Auditors' Report and notes to the financial statements.

Exhibit A

§ 420,798
112,907
533,705

6,677,122
498,584
1.893
7,177,599
237374

6.940.225

$ 7.473.930 -

§ 160,500
366,579
29,315
57.210

613,604

6.142.693
6.756.297

667,633
50.000

717.633
$ 7.473.930



Exhibit B
-3-

FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Board
Undesignated Designated Total
Support and Revenue: '
Rents $ 1,001,600 $ - $1,001,600
Real estate tax collections 507,637 - 507,637
‘Wastewater overhead and maintenance fees 62,880 - 62,880
Interest income and late charges 11.817 - 11.817
Total support and revenue 1.583.934 - 1.583.934
Expenses:
Real estate taxes 530,300 - 530,300
Legal 251,714 - 251,714
Repairs and upkeep 113,252 - 113,252
Management fees 73,005 - 73,005
Engineering consulting 16,249 - 19,249
Utilities 17,781 - 17,781
Insurance 8,519 - 8,519
Accounting 8,000 ~ 8,000
Police details 7,289 - 7,289
Inspections 5,040 - 5,040
Mediation services 2,225 - 2,225
Dock removal and storage 2,040 - 2,040
Office expense 1,622 - 1,622
Beach sampling 728 - 728
State fees 250 - 250
Total expenses 1.041.014 -~ 1.041.014
Change in net assets before interest, amortization and depreciation
and gift to Town of Ipswich Public Schools 542920 - 542.920
Interest expense 521,842 - 521,842
Amortization and depreciation. 237374 - 237.374
759.216 - 759.216
Change in net assets before gift to Town of Ipswich Public Schools ( 216,296) - ( 216,296)
Gift to Town of Ipswich Public Schools - - -
Change in net assets ( 216,296) - ( 216,296)
Net assets, beginning of year 883.929 50.000 933.929
Net assets, end of year $_667.633 $.50000 §_717.633

See Independent Auditors' Report and notes to the financial statements.



Exhibit C
A

FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets S 216,296)
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Amortization and depreciation 237,374
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts receivable ( 40,473)
Increase in accounts payable ' 358,365
Increase in accrued expenses 29,315
Increase in deferred rent collections 57,210
Net cash provided by operating activities 425.495

Cash flows from investing activities:

Betterments made ( 630,441
Equipment purchased : ( 1.893)
Net cash used in investing activities (__632.334)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Debt repayment 144.883)
Net cash used in financing activities (__144.883)
Net change in cash ( 351,722)
Cash, beginning of year 772.520
Cash, end of year $_420.798

Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid $ __492.527

See Independent Auditors' Report and notes to the financial statements.
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Nature of organization

Feoffees of the Grammar School (the “Trust”) was established by the Town of Ipswich
(the “Town”) by a vote of Town Meeting on November 14, 1650. The vote established a
four-member committee to hold land granted by the Town for the support of a “grammar
school”. The Trust came into possession of the real property currently held in 1660
through the bequest of William Paine, an original member of the 1650 committee.

The real property consists of a parcel of land of approximately thirty five (35) acres
known as Little Neck in Ipswich, Massachusetts. On this land are situated one hundred
sixty seven (167) cottages, of which one hundred forty three (143) are seasonal and
twenty four (24) are year round. The seasonal cottages may only be occupied between
April 1 and November 30 each year. The Trust is assessed and pays to the Town the real
estate taxes on the land and on such structures owned by the Trust (a community center
and a wharf); in addition they collect for the Town and remit to the Town the real estate
taxes assessed on the cottages.

Because the Trust designates its net earnings to be for the benefit of the children of the
Ipswich Public Schools, with no benefits accruing to its trustees, it has considered itself'to
be a tax-exempt organization. However until 1997 no federal or state tax returns were
filed by the Trust, as it was the position of the Trust that it was a “qua51 public trust” and
therefore was not techmcally required to file the tax returns.

The Trust is supported primarily through rent collections.

(b) Financial statement presentation

The Trust has adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117,
"Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations". Under SFAS No. 117, the Trust
is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to
three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and

~ permanently restricted net assets.

(c) Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reportcd amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements

Continued
(d) Property, betterments and equipment

Sewer, electrical betterments and equipment are recorded at cost. Maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Betterments and equipment that extend the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Betterments are being amortized using the straight-
line method over estimated useful lives ranging from 25 to 50 years. Equipment is being
depreciated over estimated useful lives ranging from 5 to 10 years.

The land on which the Feoffees operates was acquired in 1650. The land has no
determinable value and has not been recorded by the Trust. The community house used
by the tenants of the Trust also has no determinable value and has not been recorded by
the Trust.

Related party receivables

The Trust formed a limited liability company to operate and maintain the common wastewater
collection system for the real property described in Note 1. Included in accounts receivable at
June 30, 2007 is a receivable of $83,382 from that entity.

Long-term debt
Long-term debt as of June 30, consists of the following:

On June 7, 2005 the Trust entered into a construction/permanent term loan with the Ipswich
Cooperative Bank (which has since merged with the Institution for Savings Bank) to provide
financing for the construction of sewer lines and a centralized holding tank, pump-out facility
and related infrastructure work. The maximum amount of the loan was set at $6,483,000.
$2,000,000 was advanced on June 7, 2005 for work performed prior to the loan closing.
During the construction period (nine months maximum) interest was charged at the Wall
Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1% on a floating basis. On March 7, 2006 the construction
loan converted into a permanent loan with a maturity date of March 7, 2026. The loan is a
five (5) year adjustable rate loan with fixed interest based on the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Boston Classic Advance Rate plus 2.75%, with a floor of 6.75%. The initial rate on this loan
is 7.61%. The note is collateralized by all leases and rents and betterment fees on the Trust
property. The current portion of this note at June 30, 2007 is $160,500.

Maturities of long-term debt at June 30, 2007 is as follows:

Year Amount
2008 3 160,500
2009 170,000
2010 183,000
2011 197,000
2012 212,000
Thereafter 5.380.693

Total $6.303.193
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

Notes to Financial Statements

Contingencies and litigation

There is pending litigation regarding alleged right of occupancy of certain tenants located at
Little Neck in Ipswich, Massachusetts.

There is a bank account owned jointly by the Trust and an association known as the Little
Neck Legal Action Committee. The account was established after June 30, 2007 under a
Stipulation Agreement entered into by the parties on March 6, 2007. Trustees of this account
are legal counsel for each of the parties. This account is not reflected on the financial
statements.
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Massachusetts Office of the Attorney General
Division of Public Charities

FORM PC

To be filed annually by all non-profit charitable organizations conducting business in the Commonwealth

Report for the Fiscal Period: Beginning _07 / 01 / 07 Ending _06 / 30 / 08

Check all iterns attached: Form PC _X Schedule A1 Schedule A2 Schedute RO AG Schedule B

Probate Account Copy of IRS Return _X__ Audited Financial Statements/Review X _ Filing Fee _X  Amended Ariicles/Bylaws

Attorney Genera!s Acc;t No . D Federal ID Number: 51-’052894.3

‘ 'When dld the organlzahon first engage in chantable -workiin Massachusens’7 14 / 14 / 1650

‘Has the organlzallon apphed for or been granted IRS tax exempt status? Yes : Nq-f '

- F yes Date o Appllcatlon s I:"_ _ OR Daie of Determlnatlon Letter I i
‘lfzexemp under 501.(;:-). are conterutl ns: to the orgenlzatlon tax deductxble as. chantable contnbutlons'? Yes : ' ‘.No .
) . ORGANIZATION DATA

Name: FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL IN THE TOWN OF IPSWICH
Mailing Address: P.O. BOX 166

City: IPSWICH . State:  MA zip: 01938
Phone: ( 978 )  356-5558 ' Fax: () N/A
E-Mai: N/A Web Site (ULR): http:/iwww. N/A
In the section below, piease enter the appropriate codes from the corresponding tables found on pages 12 and 13:

Category . .. . Code Enter.up to 2 codes from Table 3 for your or_ganiza’t}en‘s main purpose(s) Code
County (Tabie 1) ' : 5 Organization Purpose Code 1 8
Type of Organization (Table 2) 2 Organization Purpose Code 2
Please check box if final return Payment Received

Prior to dissolution Office Use Only
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Page 2

r51-0528943

All questions must be completed in their entirety whether or not similar questions are answered
in an attached federal form. See instructions and definition section for guidance.

1. On what date was the organizétion created?

2. Where was the organ!zation created?

NOVEMBER 14, 1650

IPSWICH, MASSACHUSETTS

3. What is the form of the organization?

Corporation

Testamentary trust

Unincorporated association

Inter Vivos trust

Other (please describe):

VOTE OF TOWN MEETING ON 11/14/1650

4, Was your organization related to any other organization(s) during the reporting year (see definition of "Related Organization”)?
Yes No X__ ifyes, please complete the Schedule RO on pages 10 and 11.

) 5 Summary o{:ﬁnancial.Data R Amo_un_ts -
A Contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received $ -
B | Gross Support and Revenue $ 154,138
c Program services and similar amounts paid out $ -
D Fundraising expenses $ -
E | Management and general expenses $ 376,359
F Payments to afflllates $ -
G | Total Expenses $ 376,359
H Net assets or fund balances at the end of the year 9 498,492
6. List the total compensation you provided to your five highest paid employees.
‘Name Tile . " Hours Per . salarya Otver .=i.Beneﬁt Plans Other 7
: : ‘Week Income L - _Compensation
1 JAMES FOLEY CHAIRMAN AS NEEDED 53,000 0 0
2 |PETER FOOTE TREASURER & CLERK | AS NEEDED 17,068 0 0
3 DONALD F. WHISTON MEMBER AS NEEDED 1,000 0 0
4
5
7. Was any compensation provided to any other individuals listed in 6 above which was not quantified in your response to 67

Yes No X

If yes, please provide explanation
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FORM PC

Page 3

B. List the name, amount of compensation paid, and the nature of services rendered by each of the organization's FIVE highest paid
consultants providing professional services (e.g., attorneys, architacts, accountants, management companies, investment
advisors professional solicitors, professional fundraising counsel.)

Name . Amount of Compensation Type of Service(s)

1 MACLEAN, HOLLOWAY DOHERTY ET AL 265,929 LEGAL SERVICES

2 VINE ASSOCIATES, INC. 25,987 |ENGINEERING

3 |WILLIAM SHEEHAN 10,281 {LEGAL SERVICES

4 |ALEXANDER & FEMINO 8,800 | LEGAL SERVICES

5 DAN CLASBY & COMPANY 8,000| TAX & AUDIT SERVICES
S. Bank(s) in which the organization's funds are deposited (include bank address and phone number):

. Bank - - . ) S i - . Address Lo R Phone Number

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF IPSWICH 31 MARKET ST, IPSWICH, MA (800) 834-0046
INSTITUTION FOR SAVINGS 2 DEPT SQ, IPSWICH, MA (978) 356-5400
10. What is the organization's accounting method: Cash Accrual _X Other (specify)
11. If organization's mailing address is a P.0. Box Number, list the organization's full street address: N/A

7 " Street Address - P T City, State- .~~~ > . . Zp-

37 BAY ROAD [iPswicH, Ma 01938
12, Name address and telephone number of Contact Person:

T MamesTh o SweetAddress. o . st oGl Stezip por L Telephone Rumoer
PETER FOOTE 401 COLONIAL DR IPSWICH, MA 01938 (978) 356-4411
13, During the fiscal year reported here, did your organization solicit contributions or have funds solicited on

its behalf? Yes No X
14. At any time during the fiscal year foliowing the year reported here, will your organization, or others acting on
Yes No X

its behalf, have solicited contributions?

IF YOU ANSWERED "YES" IN RESPONSE TO QUESTION 13 OR 14, YOU MUST COMPLETE SCHEDULES A-1
ANDJ/OR A-2 UNLESS YOU ARE EXEMPT FROM THE SOLICITATION CERTIFICATE REQUIREMENT.

15, If you are claiming an exemption from the solicitation certificate requirement, please indicate by placing an "X" in the box to the
right to identify which exemption applies to your organization.

a religious organization

an organization which (a) does not raise more than $5,000 during a calendar year OR does not receive coniributions from more than ten
persons during a calendar year: AND (b) carries out all of its activities, including fundraising, through unpaid volunteers. (The conditions at
both (a) and (b) must be met for your organization to qualify for this exemption
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Page 4

16. Names, addresses (street & P.O.) and telephone numbers of other officesichapters/branches/affiliates (attach fist). N/A
17. List the names, titles and addresses (street & P.0.) of officers, directors, trustees, and the principal salaried executives of

organization (attach separate sheet).  SEE ATTACHED
18. Attach separate sheet listing names and addresses (street & P.0.) for all below:  SEE ATTACHED

Individual(s) responsibie for custody of funds
individual(s) responsible for distribution of funds
Individual(s) responsible for fund raising

Individual(s) responsible for custody of financial records
Individual(s) authorized to sign checks

18. Has this organization or any of its officers, directors, employees or fund raisers solicited funds in any
other state? Yes No__ X

If yes, attach list of states where solicitation was conducted, including registering agency, dates of registration, registration numbers, any
other names under which the organization was/is registered, and the dates and type (mail, telephone, door to door, special events, eic) of the

solicitation conducted.

20. Has this organization or any of its officers, directors, employees:
If yes, please attach an explanation
(a) Been enjoined or otherwise prohibited by a government agency/court from operating or
soliciting contributions? Yes No 5(
() Ever been refused registration or had its registration or tax exemption denied, suspended,
modified or revoked by a governmental agency? Yes No X
(c) Been the subject of a proceeding regarding any soficitation or registration? Yes No X
(d) Entered into a voluntary agreement of compliance or consent judgment with any
govenment agency or in a case before a court or administrative agency? Yes No X
21, Have any restrictions been removed during the year from donor-restricted funds? Yes No X

If yes! please attach an explanation

22, Have donor-restricted funds been loaned to unrestricted funds? Yes No X
If yes, please attach an explanation

23. This question involves "Termination of Employment or Change of Control Compensatory Arrangements” with certain ‘Related
Parties” {see instructions and definition sections). Report only if payments made or promised to any individual are in excess of
four months salary or $100,000, whichever dollar amount is less.

a) Did you make actual payments or otherwise transfer value under such an arrangement
to any individual described in Related Party definition, sections (a) or (b) which payments
are not reported in Question 6 or 7 above? Yes No X
(b) Do you have an agreement with any individual described in Related Party definition,
section (a) or (b), containing such an arrangement? Yes No X -

If you answered "yes" for Question 23(a) or 23(b) above, please attach an explanation identifying the individual(s) involved, stating the amount
of any payments made or value transferred, and describing the terms of each agreemert
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FORM PC
Page 5

24, This question applies to reiated party transactions, which include transactions with officers, directors, trustees, certain employees,
relative, and organizations they own or control. Please consult the instructions and definition sections for the definition of a
“Related Party” and "Indebtedness” before answering. Note that transitions involving related parties must be reported even
when there is no accounting recognition (e.g., in-kind gifts, waiver of interest not otherwise reported).

If the answer 1o any part of Question 24 is "Yes”, attach a schedule stating the name and address of the related party, the nature of the
{ransaction, the vaiue or the amounts involved in the transaction, and the procedure followed in authorizing the transaction

During the year, has your organization: . Yes No

(a) Sold or transferred assets 1o or purchased assets from or exchanged assets with a related party? X

(b) Leased assets 1o or leased assets from a related party? X

(c) Been indebted to a related party? X

(d) Allowed a related party to be indebted to it? X

(e) Made or held an invastment in a related pany? X

) Furnished goods. services, or facilities to a related party? X

(g) Acquired goods, services, or facilities from a related party who received compensation or other value in X
return?

(h) Paid or became obligated to pay wages, salary or other compensation to a related party? X

0] Transferred income or assets to or for use by a related party? \ X

()] Was the organization a party te any transaction in which any of its officers, directors or trustees has a
material financial interest, or did any officer, director or trustee receive anything of value not reported as X
compensation?

(k) Has the organization invested in any corporate stock in which any officer, director, or trustee owns more X
than 10% of the outstanding shares? )

) Is any property of the organization held in the name of or commingled with the property of any other X
person or organization?

{m) Did the organization make a grant award or contribution to any organization in which any of its officers, X
directors or trustees has a relationship?
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Under penalty of perjury, | declare that the information furnished in this report, including all-attachments, is true and correct to the best of my
Knowledge.

Signature of president or other authorized officer or trustee - - ©o-. Title - Date

' -'.'DAN CLASBY & COMPANY

Name of Preparer

100 CUMMI GS CENTER #2380 BEVERL’Y _

_(978)922-9900

Phone quber




FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL IN THE TOWN OF IPSWICH
FORM PC ATTACHMENTS
FED ID# 51-0528943
FYE 6/30/08

Q17&18

James Foley Chairman

25 Meadowview Lane
Ipswich, Ma 01938

Alexander B C Mutholland Jr. Vice Chairman
PO Box 587
Ipswich, MA 01938

Donald F. Whiston Member
2 Jeffrey's Neck Road
Ipswich, MA 01938

Elizabeth Kilcoyne Member
48 East Street
Ipswich, MA 01938

Patrick McNally ' Member

74 Little Neck Road
Ipswich, MA 01938

Peter Foote Treasurer & Clerk

401 Colonial Drive signs checks
Ipswich, MA 01938 custody of funds & financial records
' distribution of funds

no fundraising



FEO1181 05/13/2009 10:35 AM

om 990

Departmenlt of the Treasury
Iniernal Revenue Service

Return of Organization

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code {except black jung
benefit trust or private foundation

» The organization may have {o use a copy

Exempt From Income Tax OMB No. 1525-0047

of this return to satis)fy state reporting requirements. | Open to Public Inspection

A Forthe 2007 c

B Check if applicable:
Address change

D Name change
D Initial retum
D Termination

D Amended return
D Applicafion pending

G

lendar year, or tax year beginning 7/ 01 / 07 , and ending 6/3 0 / 08
Please | C Name of organization D Employer identification number
;':;E'I'tf FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528943
print or IN THE TOWN OF IPSWICH E Telephone number
type. . Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite
s See P, O. BOX 166 F  Accounting method:l__' Cash
pecific i
Instruc- City or town, stale or country, and ZIP + 4 Accrual D Other (specify)
tions. IPSWICH MA 01938 >

+ Section 501(c)(3) organizations and 4847(a)(1) nonexempt charitaljieH and [ are not applicable to section 527 organizations.

Website:<  N/A

trusts must attach a completed Schedule A (Form 980 or 990-EZ).

D Yes No

H(a) s this a group return for affiliates?
H(b) If "Yes," enler number of affiiiatesP

J Organization type

(check only one) X s01(c) (

3 ) «(insertno) [ | 4947(a)1)or [ ] 527

H(c) Are all affiliales included? ‘
{If "No," attach a fist. See instructions.)

Check here P> D if the organization is not a 509(a)(3) supporting organization and its gross
receipts are normally not more than $25,000. A return is not required, but if the organization chooses

to file a return, be sure to file a complete return.

H(d) Is this a separate reiurn filed by an
organization covered by a group ruling? [—l Yes H No
| Group Exemption Numbe}»

L Gross receipts: Add lines 6b, 8b, 9b, and 10b to line °

1,489,075

M Check W if the organization is not required
to attach Sch. B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF).

Part | Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances {See the instructions.)
1  Contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received:
a Contributions to donor advised funds .. .. 1a
b Direct public support (notincluded onfine 1a) . ... .. . ... ..., 1b
¢ Indirect public support (not included online 1a) ... ... ... ic
d Government contributions (grants) (nat included enfine 1a) ... .. 1d
e Total (add lines 1a through 1d) (casth noncash $ ) 1e 0
2 Program service revenue including government fees and contracts (from Part Vi, line93) . 2
3 Membership dues and aSSESSMENS ... 3
4 Interest on savings and temporary cashinvestments L 4 3,080
5 Dividends and interest from securtties .. ... ... .. .. iiie i 5
B3 GFOSSTENIS | ... . .. e ... |.ba 1,485,995
b Less: rental expenses ... .. ... See Statement 1 8b 1,331,857
¢ Net rental income or (loss). Subtract line 6b fromline 62 ... 6c 154,138
o | 7 Otherinvestment income (descrite ) 7
E 8a Gross amount from sales of assets other (A) Securities (B) Other
3 than inventory | ... - 8 '
x Less: cost or other basis and sales expenses 8b
¢ Gain or (loss) (attach schedule) . ... 8c
d Net gain or (loss). Combine line 8¢, columns (A)and (B) ... ... ... ... ... ... e 8d
9  Special events and activities (attach schedule). If any amount is from gaming, checkhe@
a Gross revenue (not including of
contributions reported onine 1b) | ... ... °a
b Less: direcl expenses other then fundraising expenses . ., . ...... 9b
¢ Net income or (loss) from special events. Subtract line 9b fromine 88 . s 9c
10a Gross sales of inventory, less returns and allowances .. . ... ..., 10a
b Lessicostof goods Sold ... ... 10b
¢ Gross profit or (loss) from sales of inventory {attach schedule). Subtract line 10b fromline 10a . | 10c
11 Otherrevenue (from Part VI INe 103) e 11
12 Total revenue. Add lines 1e,2,3,4,5, 6¢,7,8d.9¢c,10c,and 11 .. . 0o 12 157,218
1743 Program services (from fine 44, COIMN (B)) || .........cvouriee s 13
§ 14  Management and general (from line 44, column (C)) | ... ... ... 14 376,359
5| 15 Fundraising (from line 44, 0O (D)) || ...\ttt 15
X1 16 Payments to affiliates (attach schedule) || ... .. e 16
17 Total expenses. Add lines 16 and 44, column (A) . ... ........ e 17 376,359
21748 Excess or (deficit) for the year. Subtract fine 17 fromline 12 ... 18 -219,141
:"é 19 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (from fine 73, column (A)) | . ... ... .. ... 19 717,633
= | 20 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (attach explanation) . See Statement 2 | 20 0
Z | 21  Net assets or fund balances ai end of vear. Combine lines 18,18, and20 .. . . . ... . . 21 498,492

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate
gx:}\ructlons.

Form 990 (2007)



FEO1191 05/13/2008 10:35 AM

Form 990 (2007) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528943 Page 2
Part li Statement of All organizations must complete column (A). Columns (B), (C), and (D) are required for section 501(c)(3) and (4)
Functional Expenses organizations and section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trusts but optional for others. (See the instructions.}
Do not include amounts reported on fine (B) Program (C) Management
6b, 8h, 9h, 10b, or 16 of Part 1. (A) Total services and general (D) Fundraising
22aGrants paid from donor advised funds (attach schedule)
(cashs$, gash § )
If this amount includes foreign grants, check herd- D 22a
22b0ther grants and allocations (attach schedule)
(cash§, thsh s )
If this amount includes foreign grants, check herd> D 22h
23 Specific assistance to individuats (attach
schedule) .. 23
24 Benefits paid to or for members (attach
schedule) ... 24
25aCompensation of current officers, direétors,
key employees, etc. listed in
PaiV-A ... See Statement 3 |25
b Compensation of former officers, directors,
key employees, etc. listed in
Part V—B .......................................... 25b
¢ Compensation and other distributions, not included above,
to disqualified persons (as defined under section
A958(M)(1)) and persans deacribed in section 4858(c)(3)(B25¢
26 Salaries and wages of employees not included
onlines 253, b,and e ... 26
27 Pension plan contributions not included on
lines 253‘ b' andc 27
28 Employee benefits not included on lines -
255 - 27 .......................................... 28
28 Payrolitaxes . . ... ... 29
30 Professional fundraisingfees . .. ... .. ...... 30
31 Accounting fees 31 8,000 8,000
32 Legalfees .. ..o 32 287,901 287,901
33 SUPPHIES | 33
34 Telephone e 34
35 Postage and shipping . ... .................... 35
38 OCCUPAMNCY || . .. . iveieiiiaeaneaenanians, 36
37 Equipmentrental and maintenance .., 37
38 Printing and publications L. 38
39 Travel ............................................ 39
40 Conferences, conventions, and meetings . 40
41 InteFESt ........................................... 41
42 Depreciation, depletion, etc. (attach schedule) | 42
43 Other expenses not covered above (itemize): ’
2 See Statement 4 . .. .. ... 432 80,458 80,458
b .................................................... 43b
e . 430
d ................................................... 43d
L= A A fieenene 43e
f ................................................... 43f
D 439
44 Total functional expenses. Add lines 22a
through 43g. (Organizations completing
columns {B)-(D), carry these totals to lines
AB15) e 44 376,359 0 376,359 0
Joint Costs. Checd |_| if you are following SOP 98-2.
Are any joint costs from a qombined educational campaign and fundraising solicitation reported in (B) Program services? > D Yes D No
if "Yes," enter (i) the aggregate amount of these joint cofits : (ii) the amount aliocated 1o Program service -
(iii) the amount allocated to Management and genefal : and {iv) the amount allocated to Fundraisirf

DAA ) Form 990 (2007)
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Form 990 (2007) FEOFFEES QF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528943

Page 3

Part Il Statement of Program Service Accomplishments (See the instructions.)

Form 990 is available for public inspection and, for some people, serves as the primary or sole source of information about a
particular organization. How the public percelves an organization in such cases may be dectermined by the information presented
on its return. Therefore, please make sure the return is complete and accurate and fully describes, in Part I, the organization's
programs and accomplishments.

All urganizations must describe their exempt purpose achievements in a clear and concise manner. State the number
of clients served, publications issued, etc. Discuss achievernents that are not measurable. (Section 501(c)(3) and (4)
organizations and 4947 (a)(1) nonexempt charitable trusts must also enter the amount of grants and aliocations to others.)

Program Service
Expenses
(Required for 501(c}(3) and
(4} orgs., and 4947(a)(1)
lrusis; bul optional for
others.}

(Grants and aliocations § y If this amount includes foreign grants. check herd | |
b .................................................................................................................. -

(Grants and aliosations § -y If this amount includes foreign grants, check herd | |
C PR TPPI

(Grants and sliocations & ) o i this amount includes foreign grants, check herd ||
d ..................................................................................................................

(Grants and aliocations & y i this amount incluces foreign grants, check herd> [ ]
e Other program services (attach schedule)

(Grants and allocations _$ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check herd> D
f Total of Program Service Expenses (should equal line 44, column (B), Program SEIVICES) »

DAA

Form 990 (2007)
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Form 990 (2007) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528943 Page 4
Part IV Balance Sheets (See the instructions.)
Note: Where required, attached schedules and amounts within the description (A) (B)
column should be for end-of-year amounts only. Beginning of year End of year
45 Cash—non-interest-bearing . 144,535 45 50,196
46 Savings and temporary cashinvestments ... ... 276,263| 48 3,185
47a Accounts receivable 47a 101,691
b Less: allowance for doubtful accounts | 47b 112,907 47¢c 101,691
48a Pledgesreceivable .. ... ... 48a
b Less: allowance for doubtful accounts | 48b 48¢
49 Grantsreceivable | ... 48
50a Receivables from current and former officers, directors, trustees, and
key employees (attach schedule) | . ... 50a
b Receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) apd
persons described in section 4858(c)(3)(B) (att. schedule) . . ... .. .. . 50b
51a Other notes and loans receivable (attach
@ schedule) .. .. ...l s1a
: § b Less: allowance for doubtful accounts | 51b 51¢c
& | 52 Inventories forsale oruse ... 52
53 Prepaid expenses and deferredcharges ... ... ... 53
S e e > H Cost H FMV 54a
D o e P L Cost| | PMV 54b
55a Investments—and, buildings, and
equipment:basis ... 55a
b Less: accumulated depreciation (attach
schedule) ... 555 55¢
56 Investments—other (attach schedule) . . ... ... .. .. ... ) 56
57a Land, buildings, and equipment: basis . 57a 7,197,818
b Less: accumulated depreciation (attach ‘
schedule) See Statement 5 [57 479,623 6,940,225 57¢c 6,718,196
58 Other assets, including program-related investments
(escrbe B ) 58
59 Total assets (must equal line 74). Add lines 45 through BB il 7,473,930 59 6,873,268
60 Accounts payable and accrued expenses ... ... 366,579| 6o 138,611
61 Grantspayable 61
62 Deferred reveriue ... ... See Statement 6 57,210 e2 66,596
@ | 63 Loansfrom officers, directors, trustees, and key employees (attach ,
= SENBAUIE) e 63
'_g 64a Tax-exempt bond liabilities (attach schedule) . . . ... ... ... ..., 64a
- b Mortgages and other notes payable (attach schedule) . . ... ... ... ... 64b
65 Other liabilities (describe» See Statement 7 ... ... ) 6,332,508 &5 6,169,569
66 Total liabilities. Add lines 60 through 65 ... ... oo oo iieieeee 6,756,297 66 6,374,776
Organizations that follow SFAS 117, check hel and complete lines
" 67 through 69 and lines 73 and 74.
8167 Umesticted 717,633 7 498,492
S| 68 Temporariyresticied I o8
S | 60 Permanenty resticied T 59
B | Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117, check he» and
r complete lines 70 through 74.
E 70 Capital stock, trust principal, or currentfunds L. 70
‘3‘ 71 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, and equipment fund 71
2 | 72 Retained eamings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . 72
< | 73 Total net assets or fund balances. Add lines 67 through 69 or lines
z 70 through 72. (Column (A) must equal line 19 and column (B) must
squal line 21) | ... ... JRTETTRRTR 717,633 73 498,492
74 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances. Add lines66and 73 . ... ... ... 7,473 , 930| 74 6,873,268

DAA

Form 990 (2007)
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Form 990 (2007) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528943

Page 5

Part IV-A Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return (See the

instructions.)
2 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements ... ... 157,218
Amounts included on line a but not on Part |, line 12:
1 Netunrealized gains oninvestments L b1
2 Donated services and use of facilities b2
3 Recpveries of prioryeargrants . b3
4 Other (SDEGYY. e
U TP UOPPRS See Statement 8 |b4
Addfines b through B4
subtractine bfrom line a ., 157,218
Arnounts included on Part 1, line 12, but not on fine a:
1 Investment expenses not included on Part I, line &b ... d1
2 OMer (SPBOIYY o e
O T T R R T R R d2
AGEINES G0 NG B2
e Total revenue (Part| line 12). Addlinescandd . ... ... .o ieiii e > 157,218
Part IV-B Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return
a  Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 134,110
b Amounts included on line a but not Part |, line 17
1 Donated services and use of facilities . .. b1
2 Prior year adjustments reported on Part L, line 20 .. ... b2
3 Losses reporied on Partl line20 ... 0. e b3
4 OMEr (SPEOIY): e,
_See Statement 8 . b4
Add lines bAthrotgh ba
subtractine b fromline a e, 134,110
Amounts included on Part |, line 17, but not on line a: N
1 Investment expenses notincludedon Part |, fine®b . . .. ... .. ... d1
2 Other (sPeCify): | .
U USROS PP See Statement 10 [ a2 242,249
AAEINES 1 @NG A2 . et 242,249
Total expenses (Part |, line 17). Addlinescandd ............o.oooveerinieneeee ez > 376,359

Part V-A Current Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Empioyees (List each person who was an officer, director, trustee,

or key employee at any time during the year even if they were not compensated.) (See the instructions.)

8) C) Compensatiorf(B) Contﬁbgﬁunglto (E)Expense
(A) Name and adoress ki I M R M
0 compensation plang ¢ CTETLES
ALEXANDER B C MULHOLLAND, JR .  IPSWICH ... .. ... VICE CHAIR
P.0. BOX 587 M 01938 1 0 0
| JAMES FOLEY ... ... ... L .TPSWICH. . ... CHATRMAN
25 MEADOWVIEW LANE Ma 01938 40 0 53,000
U BETER FOOTE ... ..................... . EESWICK ... .. TREAS., CLK
401 COLONIAL DR. Ma 01938 15 0 17,068
DONALD F. WHISTON .. ... . EESWICE .. . .. ... MEMBER
2 JEFFREY'S NECK R . MA 01838 2 0 1,000
ELIZABETE KILCOYNE ... ... IESWICH ... .. ... MEMBER
48 EAST STREET MA 019838 1 0 0
PATRICK MCNALLY ...  IRSWICH ... ... MEMBER
74 LITTLE NECK ROAD MA 01938 1 0 0

DAA

Form 990 (2007)
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DAA

Form 990 (2007) FEQOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER  SCHOOL 51-0528943 Page 6
Part V-A  Current Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees (continued) Yes | No
752 Enter the total number of officers, directors, and trustees permitted to vote on organization business at board
MBBUINGS e D
b Are any officers, directors, trustees, or key employees listed in Form 980, Part V-A, or highest compensated
employees listed in Schedule A, Part |, or highest compensated professional and other independent
contractors listed in Schedule A, Part lI-A or 1i-B, related to each other through family or business
relationships? If "Yes," attach a statement that identifies the individuals and explains the relationship(s) .. . ... 75b X
¢ Do any officers, directors, trustees, or key employees listed in Form 990, Part V-A, or highest
compensated employees fisted in Schedule A, Part |, or highest compensated professional and other
independent contractors listed in Schedule A, Part II-A or II-B, receive compensation from any other
organizations, whether tax exempt or taxable, that are related to the organization? See the instructions for
the definition of related organization.” ... 75¢| | X
If *Yes,” attach a statement that includes the information described in the instructions.
d Does the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? ... .. ... .oo..vieiiu e 75d X
Part V-B  Former Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees That Received Compensation or Other Benefits
(If any former officer, director, trustee, or key employee received compensation ar other benefits (described below) during the year, list that
person below and enter the amount of compensation or other benefits in the appropriate column. See the instructions.)
(C) Compensatior; (D) Contribulionsio | (E) Expense
(A} Name and address (B) Loans and Advances  (if not paid, eggéolege?gne ! laccount and other
enter -0-} cgmgensahon plans allowances
B
Part VI Other Information (See the instructions.) Yes | No
76  Did the organization make a change in its activities or methods of conducting activities? If “Yes," aftach a
detailed statement of each ChaNgE | 78 X
77  Were any changes made in the organizing or governing documents but not reported tothe IRS? . ... ... .. 7 X
If "Yes," attach a conformed copy of the changes. )
78a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year covered by
SO ) 782l | X
b If"Yes," hasit filed a tax return on Form 990-T for this year? 78b
79 Was there a liquidation, dissolution, termination, or substantial contraction during the year? If "Yes," attach
BSEOMENt SOOI 79 X
80a s the organization related (other than by association with a statewide or nationwide organization) through
common membership, governing bodies, trustees, officers, etc., to any other exempt or nonexempt
OTgaMIZAI 0N 80a X
b If "Yes," enter the name of the organizatiod .. ...
e, and check whether it is[_] ‘exempt or [_] nonexempt
81a Enter direct and indirect political expenditures. (See line 81 instructions.) . . . .. .. 81a 0
b Did the organization file Form 1120-POL forthis year? . . . . . . . . e 81b X

Form 990 (2007)
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Form 990 (2007) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528843 Page 7
Part VI Other Information {continued) Yes | No
82a Did the organization receive donated services or the use of materials, equipment, or facilities at no charge
or at substantially less than fair rental value? 82a X
b If "Yes," you may indicate the value of these items here. Do not include this
amount as revenue in Part | or as an expense in Part Il
(See instructions in Part 1) |_s2b]
83a Did the organization comply with the public inspection requirements for returns and exemption applications? g3a| X
b Did the organization comply with the disclosure requirements relating to quid pro quo contributions? . N/A 83b
84a Did the organization solicit any contributions or gifts that were not tax deductible? . L 84a X
b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not tax deductible? N/A | 84b
85a 501(c)(4), (5), or (6). Were substantially all dues nondeductible by members? L. N/A [85a
b Did the organization make only in-house lobbying expenditures of $2,0000rless? . ... ... .. ... N/A 85b
if "Yes" was answered to either B5a or 85b, do not complete 85¢ through 85h below uniess the organization
received a waiver for proxy tax owed for the prior year.
¢ Dues, assessments, and similar amounts from members . ... 85¢c
d Section 162(e) lobbying and political expenditures ... 85d
e Aggregate nondeductible amount of section 6033(e)(1)(A) dues notices . . .. .. .. 85e
f Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenditures (line 85d less 85e) . .. .. . .. .. 85f
g Does the organization elect to pay the section 6033(e) tax on the amount on line 857 . . .. ... ... ... ... N/A | 859
h If section 6033(e)(1){A) dues notices were sent, does the organization agree to add the amount on line 85f
10 its reasonable estimate of dues allocable to nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures for the
BoloWing BB YBRTY N/A, |s8sh
86 501(c)(7) orgs. Enter: a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on line 12 86a :
b Gross receipts, included on line 12, for public use of club faciliies ........................... 86b
87 501(c)(12) orgs. Enter: a Gross income from members or shareholders .. 87a
b Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other
sources against amounts due or recelved fromthemn.) . 87b
88a At any time during the year, did the organization own a 50% or greater interest in a taxable corporation or
partnership, or an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations sections
301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 If "Yes," complete Part IX ... ... 88a X
b At any time during the year, did the organization, directly or indirectly, own a controlled entity within the '
meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes,” complete Part Xl .. ... ... > |88
89a 501(c)(3) organizations. Enter: Amount of tax imposed on the organization during the year under:
section 4911 ™ . O :seciondo12 » ... .. O isectondgss » .0
b 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) orgs. Did the organization engage in any section 4358 excess benefit fransaction
during the year or did it become aware of an excess benefit transaction from a prior year? If "Yes," attach
a statoment explaining each transaction .. sl | X
¢ Enter Amount of tax imposed on the organization managers or disqualified
persons during the year under sections 4812, 4955,and 4958 . ... ... ... > 0
Enter: Amount of tax on line 89c, above, reimbursed by the organization .. . .. .. ... .., > 0
e All organizations. At any time during the tax year, was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter
HARSBHON? goe| | X
f Al organizations. Did the arganization acquire a direct or indirect interest in any applicable insurance contract? | 89f X
g For supporting organizations and sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did the
supporting organization, or a fund maintained by a sponsoring organization, have excess business holdings
atany time QUING e YD 89g X
90a List the states with which a copy of this return is filel )7
b Number of employees employed in the pay period that includes March 12, 2007 (See
SIUCHONS.) | . e Lovo | 0
91a The books are in care b PETER FOOTE Telgphone no. » 978-356-4411
401 COLONIAL DR.
Located at » IPSWICH, MA . ... zp+a» 01938 ...
b At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in or a signature or other authority
over a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial Yes | No
91b X

account)?

See the instructions for exceptions and filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22.1, Report of Foreign Bank
and Financial Accounts.

DAA

Form 290 (2007)
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Form 990 (2007) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51~-0528843 ' Page 8
_Part Vi Other Information (continued) Yes | No
¢ At any time during the calendar year, did the organization maintain an office outside of the Uniled Slates? . . l 91c X
It "Yes," enter the name of the foreign CoUNtty .. e
92 Section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trusts filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041—Check here . . ... » I___I
and enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the tax year
Part Vil Analysis of Income-Producing Activities (See the instructions.}
Note: Enter gross amounts unless otherwise . Unrefated business income Excluded by seclion 512, 513, or 514 E

(€)
indicated. (A . (B) ) (D) Related or
. Business codef Amount Exclution Amoint exempt function
93 Program service revenue: code income

0 a0 T ¥

94 Membership dues and assessments . .
95 Interest on savings and temporary cash investments 14 3,080
96 Dividends and interest from securiies .. ... '

97 Net rental income or (loss) from real estate:

16 154,138

98 Net rental income or (loss) from personal property
88 Other investment income

100 Gain or (loss) from sales of asséts other than iﬁ;/enton./ -
101 Net income or (loss) from special events . . . ..

102 Gross profit or (loss) from sales of inventory
103 Other revenue: a .

104 Subtotal (add columns (B), (D), and (E)) _ 0 ] 157,218 0

105 Total (add line 104, columns (B), (D), and (E)) » 157,218

Note: Line 105 plus line 1e, Part |, should equal the amount on line 12, Part I,
Part VIIi Relationship of Activities to the Accomplishment of Exempt Purposes {See the instructions.)

Line No. Explain how each activity for which income is reported in column (E) of Part VIl contributed importantly to the accomplishment
A 4 of the organization's exempt purposes (other than by providing funds for such purposes).
N/A
Part IX Information Regarding Taxable Subsidiaries and Disregarded Entities (See the instructions.)
A) B (C) - D E
Name, address, and EIN of corporation, Perce(nt)age of Nature of activities Total(in)come End-( R—year'
partnership, or disregarded entity ownership Interest assets
N/A %
%
%
%
Part X Information Regarding Transfers Associated with Personal Benefit Contracts (See the instructions.)
(a) Did the organization, during the year, receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contracty_| Yes No
{b) Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? Yes No

Note: If "Yes" to (b), file Form 8870 and Form 4720 (see instructions).
. Form 990 (2007)

DAA
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Form 990 (2007)

FEQFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL

51-0528943

Page 9

Part Xi Information Regarding Transfers To and From Controlled Entities. Complete only if the organization
is a controlling organization as defined in section 512(b)(13).
Yes | No
106 Did the reporting organization make any transfers to a controlied entity as defined in section 512(b)(13) of
the Code? If “Yes," complete the schedule below for each controlied entity. X
(A) (B) © D
Name, address, of each Employer ID Description of (D)
conftrolied entity Number transfer Amount of transfer
A
b e,
o,
Totals
Yes | No
107  Did the reporting organization receive any transfers from & controlied entity as defined in section
512(b)(13) of the Code? If "Yes,” complete the schedule below for each controlled entity. X
(A) . {B) (C) b
Name, address, of each Employer ID Description of (D)
controlied entity Number transfer Amount of transfer
o
B,
o
Totais
Yes | No
108  Did the organization have a binding written contract in effect on August 17, 2006, covering the interest,
rents, royalties, and annuities described in question 107 above?
Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge
and belief, it is true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.
Please
Sign } -
Here Signature of officer Date
PETER FOOTE TREASURER
Type or prinl name and title
; P r's S
Paid Preparer's } Date (s:g?_ck if (Sr:zaéeens. Inifrl. ‘;(")P TIN
Preparer's signature Daniel E. Clasby 5/13/09 employed » [X.| 029-36-4753
UsepOnI Firm's name (or yours| Dan Clasby & Company EIN » 04-3395132
Y| i setfcemployed), 100 Cummings Center Suite 238C Phone -
address, andZIP+4' Beverly, MA 01915 no. » 978-9822-9900

DAA

Form 990 (2007)
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SCHEDULE A Organization Exempt Under Section 501(c)(3) OMB No. 1545-0047
(Form 990 or 990-E (Except Private Foundation) and Section 501(e), 501(f), 501(k), 501(n),
or 4947(a)(1) Nonexempt Charitabie Trust 2 0 0 7
Supplementary Information-(See separate instructions.)
R?grangﬂic’g\l/eorflﬁges.gr%?ggw P MUST be completed by the above organizations and attached to their Form 990 or 980-EZ

Name of the organization Employor identiflcatlon number

FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL IN THE TOWN OF IPSWICH 51-0528943
Parti Compensation of the Five Highest Paid Employees Other Than Officers, Directors, and Trustees
(See page 1 of the instructions. Lisl each one. If there are none, enter "None.")
(a) Mame and address of each employse paid more (b) Title and average hours ) (d) Contributions tp (&) Expense
than $50,000 par week devoled to position | (€} Compensation egl}élé{l:r:;;%ﬁlcglr:;? a":ﬁgwai';gs"mer
BONE e
Total number of other employees paid over $50,000 >

Partll-A Compensation of the Five Highest Paid Independent Contractors for Professional Services
(See page 2 of the instructions. List each one (whether individuals or firms). If there are none, enter "None.")

(a) Name and address of each independent contractor paid more than $50,000 (b) Type of service (c) Compensation
MACLEAN HOLLOWAY . oo PEABODY ...l
8 ESSEX CENTER DRIVE MA 01970 LEGAL SERVICES 265,929

Total number of others receiving over $50,000 for

professional services . . .. ... ...l
Part I.-B° Compensation of the Five Highest Paid Independent Contractors for Other Services

(List each contractor who performed services other than professional services, whether individuals or

firms. If there are none, enter "None." See page 2 of the instructions.)
(a) Name and address of each independent contractor paid more than $50,000

(b) Type of service (c) Compensation

Total number of other contractors receiving over

$50,000 forotherservices ., .. ... .. ..o >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 290 and Form 990-EZ.

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2007

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 200 F EOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528943 Page 2

Partlll  Statements About Activities (See page 2 of the instructions.) _ Yes | No

1 During the year, has the organization attempted to influence national, state, or local legisiation, including any
attempt to influence public opinion on a legisiative matter or referendum? If "Yes," enter the total expenses paid
or incurred in connection with the lobbying activitids § (Must equal amounts on line 38,
Part VI-A, or line i of Part VI-B.) 14 X

Organizations that made an election under section 501(h) by tiling Form 5768 must complete Part Vi-A. Other
organizations checking "Yes" must complete Part Vi-B AND attach a statement giving a detailed description of

the lobbying activities.

2 During the year, has the organization, either directly or indirectly, engaged in any of the following acts with any
substantial contributors, trustees, directors, officers, creators, key employees, or members of their families, or
with any taxable organization with which any such person is affiliated as an officer, director, trustee, majority
owner, or principal beneficiary? (If the answer to any question is "Yes," attach a detailed statement explaining the

transactions.)

a Sale, exchange, orleasing of Property? 2a X
b Lending of money or other extension of credit? 2b X
¢ Fumishing of goods, services, or facilities? 2c X

e Transfer of any partof its income or assets? 2e X
3a Did the organization make grants for scholarships, fellowships, student loans, etc.? (If "Yes," attach an explanation
of how the organization determines that recipients qualify to receive payments.) 3a

b Did the organization have a section 403(b) annuity plan for its employees? 3b X

¢ Did the organization receive or hold an easement for conservation purposes, including easements to preserve open
space, the environment, historic land areas or historic structures? If "Yes,” attach a detailed statement 3c X

d Did the organization provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services? 3d X

4a Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds? If "Yes," complete lines 4b through 4g. If "No," complete

Hnes AFand 4G 4a X
b Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section4866? 4b
¢ Did the organization make a distribﬁtion to a donor, donor adviser, or related person? 4c
d Enter the total number of donor advised funds owned at the end of the tax year >
e Enter the aggregate value of assets held in all donor advised funds owned at the end of the tax year >

f Enter the total number of separate funds or accounts owned at the end of the tax year (excluding donor advised
funds included on line 4d) where donors have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of
amounts in such funds or accounts > 0

g Enter the aggregate value of assets held in all funds or accounts included on line 4f at the end of the tax year = P . 0

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2007
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2007 FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528943 Page 3

Part IV  Reason for Non-Private Foundation Status (See pages 4 through 8 of the instructions.)

| certify that the organization is not a private foundation because it is: (Please check only ONE applicable box.)
5 D A church, convention of churches, or association of churches. Section 170(b)(1)(A)i).

6 D A school. Section 170(b){(1)}{A)(ii). (Also complete Part V.)
7 D A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization. Section 170(b)(1 )(A)iii).
8 D A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit. Section 170(b)(1){(A)(v).

D A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital. Section 170(b)(1){(A)iil). Enter the hospital's name, city,

w

andStteP

10 D An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit. Section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv).
(Also complete the Support Schedule in Part IV-A.)

- 11a D An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public. Section
170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Also complete the Support Schedule in Part IV-A.)

11b D A community trust. Section 170(b){1)(A)(vi). (Also complete the Support Schedule in Part IV-A.)

12 D An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts
from activities related to its charitable, etc., functions-subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support
from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the
organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Also complete the Support Schedule in Part IV-A.)

D An organization that is not controlled by any disqualified persons (other than foundation managers) and otherwise meets the
requirements of section 509(a)(3). Check the box that describes the type of supporting organization:

D Type | D Type Il D Type HI-Functionally Integrated D Type llI-Other
Provide the following information about the supported organizations. (See page 8 of the instructions.)
(a) (b) {c) (d) (e)
Name(s) of supported organization(s) Employer Type of Is the supported Amount of
identification organization organization listed in support
number (EIN) (described in lines the supporting
5 through 12 organization's
above or IRC governing documents?
section)
Yes No
S D U >

14 l—\ An organization organized and operated to test for pubhc safety Section 509(a)(4). (See page 8 of the instructions.)
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990- EZ) 2007

DAA
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Part IV-A Support Schedule (Complete only if you checked a box on line 10, 11, or 12.) Use cash method of accounting.
Note: You may use the worksheet in the instructions for converting from the accrual to the cash method of accounting.

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » {a) 2006 {b) 2005 (c) 2004 (d) 2003 (e) Total

15

Gifts, grants, and contributions received. (Do
not include unusual grants. See line 28.) .

16

Membership fees received .. ... ........

17

Grass receipts from admissions, merchandis
sold or services performed, or furnishing of
faciliies in any aclivity that is related to the
organization's charitable, etc., purpose . . .

18

Gross income from interest, dividends, J
amounts received from payments on securiti
loans (section 512(a)(5)), rents, royalties,
income from simitar sources, and unrelated
business taxable income {less section 511
taxes) from businesses acquired by the
organization after June 30,1975 .. ......

18

Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 18 ... ......

20

Tax revenues levied for the organization's
benefit and either paid.to it or expended on
itsbehalf . . ... ... ... .. ..... .. ... ...

21

The value of services or facilities furnished to
the organization by a governmental unit
without charge. Do not include the value of
services or facilities generally furnished 1o the
public withoutcharge . . . ... ...........

Other income. Attach a schedule. Do not
include gain or (loss) from
sale of capitalassets . ...............

23

Total of lines 15 through22 ... ... ......

24

Line 23 minusline 17 . .. ..............

25

Enter1%ofline23 .. ... . .............

26

v

Organizations described on lines 10 or 11: a Enter 2% of amount in column (e), line 24 ... .. .. 26a
Prepare a list for your records to show the name of and amount contributed by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly supported organization) whose total gifts for 2003 through 2006 exceeded the
amount shown in line 26a. Do not file this list with your return. Enter the total of all these excess amounts

Total support for section 508(a)(1) test: Enter line 24, column (e)

26b
26¢

4
>
Add: Amounts from column (e} for lines: 18 19
22 26b b | 26d
>
»

Public support (line 26¢ minus line 264 total) ' ' 2%e |
Public support percentage (line 26e (numerator) divided by line 26¢ (denominator)) ...................... 26f %

27

JTGa ™ o a

Organizations described on line 12: a For amounts included in lines 15, 16, and 17 that were received from a "disqualified

person,” prepare a list for your records to show the name of, and total amounts received in each year from, each "disqualified person.”

Do not file this list with your return. Enter the sum of such amounts for each year: N/A

(2008) | ... (2008) ... (2004) ... (2003) ...

Far any amount included in fine 17 that was received from each person (other than "disqualified persons"), prepare a list for your records to

show the name of, and amount received for each year, that was more than the larger of (1) the amount on line 25 for the year or (2) $5,000.

{Include in the list organizations described in lines 5 through 11b, as well as individuals.) Do not file this list with your return. After computing

the difference between the amount received and the larger amount described in (1) or (2}, enter the sum of these differences (the excess

amounts) for each year: N/A

(2008) . .l (2008) ... (004) L o (2003) .l

Add: Amounts from column (e) for lines: 15 16
17 20 21 T 1 £

Add: Line 27a total and line 27b total ] » |27d

Public SUppOTt (line 270 1otal MINus M8 276 1Ot} ...+ +e e oeeeeeeee oo > | 27e
Total support for section 509(a)(2) test: Enter amount from line 23, column (e) > I 27t l
Public support percentage (line 27e (numerator) divided by line 27f (denominator)) . . ... ... ... > | 279 %

Investment income percentage (line 18, column (e) (numerator) divided by line 27f (denominator)) ........ » | 27h %

28

Unusual Grants: For an organizalion described in line 10, 11, or 12 that received any unusual grants during 2003 through 2006,
prepare 2 fist for your records to show, for each year, the name of the contributor, the date and amount of the grant, and a brief
descrlptlon of the nature of the grant. Do not file this list with your return. Do not include these grants in line 15.

DAA

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2007
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Schedule A (Form 980 or 990-E7) 200FEQFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528943 Page 5
PartV Private School Questionnaire (See page 9 of the instructions.)
(To be completed ONLY by schools that checked the box on line 6 in Part V)

29 Does the organization have a racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students by statement in its charter, bylaws, N/A Yes | No

other governing instrument, or in a resolution of its governing body? 29
30 Does the organization include a statement of its racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students in all its

brochures, catalogues, and other written communications with the public dealing with student admissions,

programs, and SChOIAIShIPS? 30
31 Has the organization publicized its racially nondiscriminatory policy through newspaper or broadcast media during

the period of solicitation for students, or during the registration period if it has no solicitation program, in a way

that makes the policy known to all parts of the general community it serves? 31

If "Yes," please describe; if "No," please explain. (If you need more space, attach a separate statement.)

32 Does the organization maintain the following:

a Records indicating the racial composition of the student body, faculty, and administrative staff? 32a
b Records documenting that scholarships and other financial assistance are awarded on a racially nondlscrlmmatory

bESIS? .............. 32b
¢ Copies of all catalogues, brochures, announcements, and other written communications to the public dealing

with student admissions, programs, and scholarships? 32¢
d Copies of all material used by the organization or on its behalf to solicit contributions? ... .. 32d

33 Does the organization discriminate by race in any way with respect to:

a Students' rights or privileges? .. ... .. .. U U SRS UO RSO PO ORI 33a
b Admissions policies? ... PO 33b
¢ Employment of faculty or administrative staff? | 33c
d Scholarships or other financial assistance? . . TP 33d
e Educational POCIES? e e 33e
f Use Of faCl“tlesl7 ...................................................................................................... 33f
g Athletic programs? . ., [OOSR PR ROUURRPNS 339
h Other extracurricular activities? . 33h

34a Does the organization receive any financial aid or assistance from a governmental agency? 34a

b Has the organization's right to such aid ever been revoked or suspended? 34b

If you answered "Yes" to either 34a or b, please explain using an attached statement.

35 Does the organization certify that it has complied with the applicable requirements of sections 4.01 through 4.05
of Rev. Proc. 75-50, 1975-2 C.B. 587, covering racial nondiscrimination? If "No," attach an explanation . ..... . ............._ 35
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2007
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 200FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL

51-0528943 Page 6.

Part VI-A Lobbying Expenditures by Electing Public Charities (See page 11 of the instructions.)

(To be completed ONLY by an eligible organization that filed Form 5768) N/2

Check » a H if the organization halongs to an affiliated group. Check P b ’—I if you checked "a" and "limited control* provisions apply.
Limits on Lobbying Expenditures Afﬂlial(ead) group To be(c:J)mpleted
totals for all eleciing
(The term "expenditures” means amounts paid of incurred.) organizations
46 Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinion (grassroots Iobbying) ... 36
37 Total lobbying expendiluies to influence & legislative body (direct lobbying) ... ... .. 37
38 Total lobhying expendltures (add lines 36 and 37) . ..o 38
39 Other exempt purpose expenditures e 39
40 Total exempt purpose expenditures (add lines 38and39) .. ... 40
41 Lobbying nontaxable amount. Enter the amount from the following table-
If the amount on line 40 is- The lobbying nontaxable amount is-
Notover $500,000 ... ... ....... 20% of the amounton fing 40 ... ..
Over $500,000 but not over $1,000,000 ... .. $100,000 plus 15% of the excess over $500,000
Over $1,000,000 but nat aver $1,500,000 ..., $175,000 plus 10% of the excess over $1,000,000 41
Over $1,500,000 bul ol over $17,000,000 ...  $225,000 plus 5% uf lhe excess over §1,500,000
Over 17000000 ... ... SLO00000 5
42 Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% of line 41) . . ... ... 42
43 Subtract line 42 from line 36. Enter -0- if line 42is more thanline 36 . . .. ... 43
44 Subtract line 41 from line 38. Enter -0- if line 41is more thanline 38 . . . .. .. ... 44
Caution: If there is an amount on either line 43 or line 44, you musl file Form 4720.

4.Year Averaging Period Under Section 501(h)

(Some organizations that made a section 501(h) election do not have to complete all of the five columns below.
See the instructions for lines 45 through 50 on page 13 of the instructions.)

Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period

Calendar year (or (a) {b) {c)
fiscal year beginning in)¥ 2007 2006 2005

()
2004

{e)

45 Lobbying nontaxable amount . .. ..

Total

46 Lobbying ceiling amount (150% of
lined5(e)) ... oo

47 Total lobbying expenditures . .....

48 Grassroots nontaxable amount _ ..

48 Grassroots ceiling amount (150% of
R ) F

50 Grassroots iobbying expenditures .

~Part VI-B Lobbying Activity by Nonelecting Public Charities
(For reporting only by organizations that did not complete Part VI-A) (

See page 14

of the instructidhsn)

During the year, did the organization attempt to influence national, state or local legislation, including any
attempt to influence public opinion on a legislative matter or referendum, through the use of:
Volunteers

Media adVEﬂlsementS ...........................................................................
Mailings to members, legislators, orthe public
Publications, or published or broadcast statements
Grants to other organizations for lobbying purposes
Direct contact with legisiators, their staffs, government officials, or a legislative body
Rallies, demonstrations, seminars, conventions, speeches, lectures, or any other means
Total lobbying expenditures (Add lines ¢ through h.) .

- @ o0 Q00

Yes

No

Amount

If "Yes" to any of the above, also attach a statement giving a detailed description of the lobbying activities.

DAA

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2007
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 200/FEQOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528943 Page 7
Part Vil information Regarding Transfers To and Transactions and Relationships With Noncharitable
Exempt Organizations (See page 14 of the instructions.)
51  Did the reporting organization directly or indirectly engage in any of the following with any other organization described in section
501(c) of the Code (other than section 501(c)(3) organizations) or in section 527, relating to political organizations?

a Transfers from the reporting organization to a noncharitable exempt organization of: Yes| No
) GBS 51a(i) X

() OB SSOIS al(i) X

b Other transactions:
(i) Sales or exchanges of assets with a noncharitable exempt organization b(i) X

(i) Purchases of assets from a noncharitable exempt organization bfii) X

(i) Rental of facilities, equipment, or OtMBr ASSBYS b(iii) X

(iv) ReimbUrSement aIangements ..., b(iv) X

(v) LOBNS OFI0BN QUAFAMEES | . ..o oot e bv) X

(vi) Performance of services or membership or fundraising soficitations . b(vi) X
¢ Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, other assets, or paid employses ... ... c X

If the answer to any of the above is "Yes," complete the following schedule. Column (b) should always show the fair market value of the

goods, other assets, or services given by the reporting organization. If the organization received less than fair market value in any

transaction or sharing arrangement, show in column (d) the value of the goods, other assets, or services received:

(a) (b) ' (c) (d)
Line no. Amount involved Name of noncharitable exempt organization Description of transfers, transactions, and sharing arrangements
N/A
52a Is the organization directly or indirectly affiliated with, or related to, one or'mare tax-exempt organizations

described in section 501(c) of the Code (other than section 501(c)(3)) or in section 8277 .. ... .. ... ......... > D Yes @ No

b 1f "Yes," complete the following schedule: :
(a) (b} (c)
Name of organization Type of organization Description of relationship
N/A

Schedule A (Form 990 or 890-EZ) 2007
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FEO1191 FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL
51-0528943 Federal Statements

FYE: 6/30/2008

5/13/2009 10:35 AM

Statement 1 - Form 990, Part I, Line 6b - Rental Expenses

Description

COTTAGES
Interest
REAL ESTATE
Depreciation
BEACH SAMPLING
DOCK REMOVAL & STORAGE
ENGINEERING CONSULTING
INSPECTIONS
INSURANCE
POLICE DETAIL
REPAIRS & UPKEEP
UTILITIES

Total

Deduction

479,663
432,291
242,249
800
2,325
37,432
7,456
6,348
9,254
85,829
18,170

1,331,857

Statement 2 - Form 990, Line 20 - Other Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances

Description

Book / Tax Deprec Difference
DEPRECIATION INCLUDED IN EXPENSES

Total

$

Amount

242,249

-242,249

0

1-2




FEO1191 FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL

51-0528943
‘FYE: 6/30/2008

Federal Statements

5/13/2009 10:35 AM

Form 990, Part I, Line 22b - Other Grants and Allocations

Name Relationship _ Class of
Address to Org Activity
Date of Description of Cash NonCash Book BV FMV
Gift Property Contrib Contrib Value Expl Expl
TOWN OF IPSWICH NONE EDUCATIONAL '
$ $ $
Total $ 0 S 0 s 0
Statement 3 - Form 990, Part ll, Line 25a - Compensation of Current Officers
Program Management &
Name Services General Fundraising
Expenses $ $ $
Total $ 0 $ 0 $ 0




FEO1191 FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 5/13/2009 10:35 AM
51-0528943 Federal Statements

FYE: 6/30/2008

Statement 4 - Form 990, Part 1l, Line 43 - Other Functional Expenses

Total Program Mgt & Fund-
Description Expenses Service General Raising
Expenses v $ $ 5 $
COMM OF MASS FILING FEES 70 70
MANAGEMENT FEES 71,068 71,068
MEDIATION SERVICES 1,600 1,600
OFFICE EXPS 6,132 ' 6,132
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 1,588 1,588
Total S 80,458 $ 0 $ 80,458 $
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51-0528943 Federal Statements

FYE: 6/30/2008

Statement 5 - Form 990, Part IV, Line 57 - Land, Buildings, and Equipment

Descri ption

Beginning Accum End of Accum
of Year Depr Year Depr

SEWER CONSTRUCTION COSTS
$ 6,238,709 $ 237,374 $ 6,258,929 §$ 479,623

SEWER SOFT COSTS

438,413 ' 438,413
ELECTRIC BETTERMENTS
498, 584 498,584
FURNITURE & FIXTURES
1,893 1,893
Total $ 7,177,599 s 237,374 § 7,197,819 § 479,623

Statement 6 - Form 990, Part IV, Line 62 - Deferred Revenue

Beginning End of

Description : of Year Year
DEFERRED RENT $ 57,210 $ 66,596
Total S 57,210 S 66,596

Statement 7 - Form 990, Part IV, Line 65 - Other Liabilities

Beginning End of

Description of Year Year
NOTES PAYABLE $ 6,303,183 S 6,142,674
ACCRUED INTEREST . ‘ 29,315 26,895
Total $ 6,332,508 $ 6,169,569

5-7




FEO1191 FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 5/13/2009 10:35 AM
51-0528943 Federal Statements

FYE: 6/30/2008

Statement 8 - Form 990, Part IV-A - Other Revenue Included on Financial Statements

Description Amount
RENTAL EXPENSES NETTED AGAINST RENTAL REVENUE $
Total 5.________9

Statement 9 - Form 990, Part IV-B - Other Expenses included on Financijal Statements

Description Amount
RENTAL EXPENSES NETTED AGAINST RENTAL REVENUE $
Total $ Y

Statement 10 - Form 990, Part 1V-B - Other Expenses included on Returh

Description Amount
Book / Tax Deprec Difference $ 242,248
Total $ 242,249

8-10
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DAN CLASBY & COMPANY

Certified Public Accountants
-1-

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Managers
Feoffees of the Grammar School
Ipswich, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of the Feoffees of the Grammar
School (a non-profit organization) as of June 30, 2008, and the related statements of activities and cash
flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Trust's managers. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An aundit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Feoffees of the Grammar School as of June 30, 2008, and the results of its activities
‘and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

b Gl lonpurg

March 6, 2009

100 Cummings Center, Suite 238C, Beverly, MA 01915 » Telephone 978-922-9900 « Fax 978-922-3233
email: ClasbyCo@msn.com
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL
Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2008

Assets
Current assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable
Total current assets

Property, betterments and equipment:
Sewer betterments
Electric betterments
Furniture and futures
Less accumulated amortization and depreciation
Net property betterments and equipment
Land and buildings, Note 1

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Note payable - current portion
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Deferred rent collections

Total current liabilities

Long term debt, net of current portion
Total liabilities

Contingencies

Net assets unrestricted:

Undesignated
Designated

Total net assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

§ 53,381
101.691
155.072

6,697,342
498,584

1,893

7,197,819
479,623

6,718,196

$6.873.268

$ 176,000
138,611
26,895
66.596

408,102

5.966.674
6,374,776

448,492
50,000

498,492
$ 6.873.268
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL
- Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Exhibit B

Support and Revenue:
Rents
Real estate tax collections
Wastewater overhcad and maintenance fees
Interest income and late charges

Total support and revenue

Expenses:
Real estate taxes
Legal
Repairs and upkcep
Management fees
Engineering consulting
Utilities
Police details
Accounting
Inspections
Insurance
Office expense
Dock removal and storage
Mediation services
Other professional fees
Beach sampling
State fees

Total expenses

Change in net assets before interest, amortization and depreciation
and gift to Town of Ipswich Public Schools

Interest expense
Amortization and depreciation

Change in net assets before gift to Town of Ipswich Public Schools
Gift to Town of Ipswich Public Schools

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Board

Undesignated  Designated Total
$ 1,006,660 3 - $1,006,660
414,535 - 414,535
64,800 - 64,800
3.080 - 3.080
1.489.075 - 1.489.075
432,291 - 432,291
287,901 - 287,901
95,829 - 95,829
71,068 - 71,068
37,432 - 37,432
18,170 - 18,170
0,294 - 9,294
8,000 - 8,000
7,456 - 7,456
6,348 - 6,348
6,132 - 6,132
2,325 - 2,325
1,600 - 1,600
1,588 - 1,588
800 - 800
70 - 70
986.304 - 986,304
502.771 - 502.771
479,663 - 479,663
242.249 - 242,249
121,912 - 721,912
( 219,141 - ( 219,141)
( 219,141) - ( 219,141)
667.633 50.000 717.633
$ 448492 $ 50000 $_498492




Exhibit C
A v
FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOLV

_ _Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets $( 219,141)
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Amortization and depreciation 242,249
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Decrease in accounts receivable 11,216
Decrease in accounts payable ( 227,968)
Decrease in accrued expenses ( 2,420)

Increase in deferred rent collections 9.386

Net cash used by operating activities (__186.678)

Cash flows from investing activities: -

Betterments made ' (__20.220)
Net cash used by investing activities (__20,220)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Debt repayment (__160.519)
Net cash used by financing activities (- 160.519) |
Net change in cash : ( 367,417)
Cash, beginning of year 420.798
Cash, end of year $ 53.381

Supplemental cash flow information: )
Interest paid §__482.083

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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F EOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Nature of orgarnization

Feoffees of the Grammar School (the “Trust”) was established by the Town of Ipswich (the
“Town™) by a vote of Town Meeting on November 14, 1650. The vote established a four-member
committee to hold land granted by the Town for the support of a “grammar school”. The Trust
came into possession of the real property currently held in 1660 through the bequest of William
Paine, an original member of the 1650 committee.

The real property consists of a parcel of land of approximately thirty five (35) acres known as
Little Neck in Ipswich, Massachusetts. On this land are situated one hundred sixty seven (167)
cottages, of which one hundred forty three (143) are seasonal and twenty four (24) are year round.
The seasonal cottages may only be occupied between April I and November 30 each year. The
Trust is assessed and pays to the Town the real estate taxes on the land and on such structures
owned by the Trust (a community center and a wharf); in addition they collect for the Town and
remit to the Town the real estate taxes assessed on the cottages.

Because the Trust designates its net earnings to be for the benefit of the children of the Ipswich
Public Schools, with no benefits accruing to its trustees, it has considered itself to be a tax-exempt
organization. However until 1997 no federal or state tax returns were filed by the Trust, as it was
the position of the Trust that it was a “quasi-public trust” and therefore was not technically
required to file the tax returns.

The Trust is supported primarily through rent collections.

(b) Financial statement presentation

The Trust has adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117, "Financial
Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations". Under SFAS No. 117, the Trust is required to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets:
unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.

(c) Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from
those estimates.

(d) Basis of presentation

The Organization prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, which involves the application of accrual accounting; consequently,
revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses are recognized when
incurred.
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2008

Continued
(e) Property, betterments and equipment

Sewer, electrical betterments and equipment are recorded at cost. Maintenance and repairs are
charged to expense as incurred. Betterments and equipment that extend the useful lives of assets
are capitalized. Betterments are being amortized using the straight-line method over estimated
useful lives ranging from 25 to 50 years. Equipment is being depreciated over estimated useful
lives ranging from 5 to 10 years.

The land on which the Feoffees operates was acquired in 1650. The land has no determinable
value and has not been recorded by the Trust. The community house used by the tenants of (he
Trust also has no determinable value and has not been recorded by the Trust.

Related party receivables

The Trust formed a limited liability company to operate and maintain the common wastewater
collection system for the real property described in Note 1. Included in accounts receivable at June
30, 2008 is a receivable of $64,872 from that entity.

Long-term debt
Long-term debt as of June 30, consists of the following:

On June 7, 2005 the Trust entered into a construction/permanent term loan with the Ipswich
Cooperative Bank (which has since merged with the Institution for Savings Bank) to provide
financing for the construction of sewer lines and a centralized holding tank, pump-out facility and
related infrastructure work. The maximum amount of the loan was set at $6,483,000. $2,000,000
was advanced on June 7, 2005 for work performed prior to the loan closing. During the construction
period (nine months maximum) interest was charged at the W all Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1%
on a floating basis. On March 7, 2006 the construction loan converted into a permanent loan with a
maturity date of March 7, 2026. The loan is a five (5) year adjustable rate loan with fixed interest
based on the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston Classic Advance Rate plus 2.75%, with a floor of
6.75%. The initial rate on this loan is 7.61%. The note is collateralized by all leases and rents and
betterment fees on the Trust property. The current portion of this note at June 30, 2008 is $160,500.

Maturities of long-term debt at June 30, 2008 is as follows:

Year Amount
2009 $ 176,000
2010 : 190,000
2011 v 204,000
2012 219,000
2013 235,000
Thereafter 5,118,674

Total $6.142.674
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Contingencies and litigation

There is pending litigation regarding alleged right of occupancy of certain tenants located at Little
Neck in Ipswich, Massachusetts.

There is a bank account owned jointly by the Trust and an association known as the Little Neck Legal
Action Committee. The account was established after June 30, 2008 under a Stipulation Agreement
entered into by the parties on March 6, 2008. Trustees of this account are legal counsel for each of
the parties. This account is not reflected on the financial statements.
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Massachusetts Office of the Attorney General
Division of Public Charities

FORM PC

To be filed annually by all non-profit charitable organizations conducting business in the Commonwealth

Report for the Fiscal Period: Beginning _07 / 01 / 08 Ending _06 / 30 / 0%

Check all items attached: Form PC _X Schedule A1 Schedule A2

Schedule RO AG Schedule B

Probate Account Copy of IRS Return _X__ Audited Financial Statements/Review _X _ Filing Fee _X Amended Articles/Bylaws

Name: FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL IN THE TOWN OF IPSWICH
Mailing Address: P.0. BOX 166

City: IPSWICH . State:  MA zip: 01938
Phone:( 978 )  356-5558 ' Fax () N/A
E-Mail: N/A Web Site (ULR): http:/iwww. N/A

in the section below, please enter the appropriate codes from the corresponding tables found on pages 12 and 13:

nteriup to Z.CQQfe_s;ffbm _abié 3.

ryour orgariization's main purpose(s

County (Table 1) 5 Organization Purpose Code 1

Type of Organization (Table 2) 2 Organization Purpose Code 2

Please check box if final return Payment Received
Prior to dissolution Office Use Only




51-0528943

FORM PC
- Page 2

All questions must be completed in their entirety whether or not similar questions are answered
in an attached federal form. See instructions and definition section for guidance.

ganization create

NOVEMBER 14, 1650 IPSWICH, MASSACHUSETTS

o U -What'ls'the formof the 0
Corporation Testamentary trust

Unincorporated association Inter Vivos trust

Other (please describe): VOTE OF TOWN MEETING ON 11/14/1650

4, Was your organization related to any other organization(s) during the reporting year (see definition of "Related Organization™)?
Yes No__ X _ Ifyes, please complete the Schiedule RO on pages 10 and 11.

A Contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received $ -
B | Gross Support and Revenue $ 1,167,403
C | Program services and similar amounts paid out $ 918,220
D | Fundraising expenses $ -
E | Management and general expenses $ 277,650
E Payments to affiliates $ -
G | Total Expenses $ 1,195,870
H | Netassets or fund balances at the end of the year $ 414,980
8. List the {otal compensation you provided to your five highest paid employees.

““Week:
1 JAMES FOLEY CHAIRMANv AS NEEDED 54,000 0 0
2 PETER FOOTE TREASURER & CLERK | AS NEEDED 18,450 0 0
3 DONALD F. WHISTON MEMBER AS NEEDED 2,125 0 0
4
5
7. Was any compensation provided to any other individuals listed in 6 above which was not quantified in your response to 67

Yes No X If yes, please provide explanation




r51-0528943

FORM PC
Page 3

B. List the name, amount of compensation paid, and the nature of services rendered by each of the organization's FIVE highest paid
consultants providing professional services (e.g., attorneys, architects, accountants, management companies, investment
advisors professional solicitors, professional fundraising counsel.)

Nar Amount of Compensatior
1 MACLEAN, HOLLOWAY DOHERTY P.C. 191,274 | LEGAL SERVICES
2 |VINE ASSOCIATES, INC. 6,490 | ENGINEERING
3 |LANDVEST INC. 10,669 | APPRAISAL SERVICES
4 |AMERICAN WATER 10,653 |BILLING SERVICES
5 |DAN CLASBY & COMPANY 10,0001 TAX & AUDIT SERVICES
8. Bank(s) in which the organization's funds are deposited (include bank address and phone number):

o -Phone’Number.
FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF IPSWICH 31 MARKET 8T, IPSWICH, MA (800) 834-0046
INSTITUTION FOR SAVINGS 2 DEPT 8Q, IPSWICH, MA (978) 356-5400

10. What is the organization's accounting method: Cash Accrual _X Other {specify)

11. If organization's malling address is a P.O, Box Number, list the organization's full street address: N/A

Salie o Streel Address. B (City;:State”
37 BAY ROAD IPSWICH, MA
12. Name address and telephone number of Contact Person:

Rarme” . Sirestad: . Ste, 7

PETER FOOTE 401 COLONIAL DR IPSWICH, MA 01938 (978) 356-4411

13. During the fiscal year reported here, did your organization solicit contributions or have funds solicited on

its behalf? Yes No X
14, At any time during the fiscal year following the year reported here, will your organization, or others acting on

its behalf, have solicited contributions? Yes No X

IF YOU ANSWERED "YES" IN RESPONSE TO QUESTION 13 OR 14, YOU MUST COMPLETE SCHEDULES A-1
AND/OR A-2 UNLESS YOU ARE EXEMPT FROM THE SOLICITATION CERTIFICATE REQUIREMENT.

15. If you are claiming an exemption from the solicitation certificate requirement, please indicate by placing an "X" in the box to the
right to identify which exemption applies to your organization.

a religious organization

an organization which () does not raise more than $5,000 during a calendar year OR does not receive contributions from more than ten
persons during a calendar year, AND () carries out all of its activities, including fundraising, through unpaid volunteere. (The conditions at
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16. Names, addresses (street & P.0.) and telephone numbers of other offices/chapters/branches/affiliates (attach list). N/A
17. List the names, titles and addresses (street & P.0.) of officers, directors, trustees, and the principal salaried executives of

organization {attach separate sheet).  SEE ATTACHED

18. Attach separate sheet listing names and addresses (street & P.0.) for all below: ~ SEE ATTACHED

individuai(s) responsibie for custody of funds
Individual(s) responsible for distribution of funds
Individual(s) responsible for fund raising

Individual(s) responsible for custody of financial records
Individuai(s) authorized to sign checks

18. Has this organization or any of its officers, directors, employees or fund raisers solicited funds in any
other state? Yes No__ X

If yes, attach list of states where solicitation was conducted, including registering agency, dates of registration, registration numbers, any
other names under which the organization wasfis registered, and the dates and type {mail, telephone, door to door, special events, etc) of the
solicitation conducted.

20. Has this organization or any of its officers, directors, employees:
If yes, please attach an explanation
(a) Been enjoined or otherwise prohibited by a government agency/court from operating or
soliciting contributions? Yes No _ X
(b) Ever been refused registration or had its registration or tax exemption denied, suspended,
modified or revoked by a governmental agency? Yes No
()] Been the subject of a proceeding regarding any solicitation or registration? Yes No X
(d) Entered into a voluntary agreement of compliance or consent judgment with any
government agency or in a case before a court or administrative agency? Yes No X
21.  Have any restrictions been removed during the year from donor-restricted funds? Yes No X

if yes! please attach an explanation

22. Have donor-restricted funds been ioaned to unrestricted funds? Yes No X
If yes, please attach an explanation

23. This question involves "Termination of Employment or Change of Control Compensatory Arrangements™ with certain ‘Related
Parties” {see instructions and definition sections). Report only if payments made or promised to any individual are in excess of
four months salary or $100,000, whichever doliar amount is Iess.

a) Did you make actual payments or otherwise transfer value under such an arrangement

to any individual described in Related Party definition, sections (a) or (b) which payments

are not reported in Question 6 or 7 above? Yes No X
(b) Do you have an agreement with any individual described in Related Party definition,

section (a) or (b), containing such an arrangement? Yes No X

If you answered "yes" for Question 23(a) or 23(b) above, please attach an explanation identifying the individual(s) involved, stating the amount
of any payments made or value transferred, and describing the terms of each agreement
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24, This question applies to related party transactions, which inciude transactions with officers, directors, trustees, certain employees,

|

relative, and organizations they own or control. Please consult the instructions and definition sections for the definition of a
"Related Party” and "Indebtedness” before answering. Note that transitions involving related parties must be reported even

when there is no accounting recognition (e.g., in-kind gifts, waiver of interest not otherwise reported).

If the answer to any part of Question 24 is "Yes", attach a schedule stating the name and address of the related party, the nature of the
transaction, the value or the amounts involved in the transaction, and the procedure foliowed in authorizing the transaction

f[»)unng the year, No:

(a) Sold or transferred assets to or purchased assets from or exchanged assets with a related party? X

(b) Leased assets to or leased assets from a related party? X

(© Been indebted to a related party? X

(d) Allowed a related party to be indebted fo it? X

(e) Made or held an investment in a related party? X

U} Fumished goods. services, or facilities fo a related party? X

(9} Acquired goods, services, or facilities from a related party who received compensation or other value in X
return?

() Paid or became obligated to pay wages, salary or other compensation o a related party? X

0] Transferred income or assets to or for use by a related party? X

)} Was the organization a party to any transaction in which any of its officers, directors or trustees has a
material financial interest, or did any officer, director or trustee receive anything of value not reported as X
compensation?

(k) Has the organization invested in any corporate stock in which any officer, director, or frustee owns more X
than 10% of the outstanding shares?

0] Is any property of the organization held in the name of or commingled with the property of any other X
person or organization?

(m) Did the organization make a grant award or contribution to any organization in which any of its officers, X
directors or trustees has a relationship?
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL IN THE TOWN OF IPSWICH
FORM PC ATTACHMENTS
© FED 1D# 51-0528943
FYE 6/30/09

Q17&18

Alexander B C Mulholland Jr. Chairman
PO Box 587
Ipswich, MA 01938

James Foley Member
25 Meadowview Lane
Ipswich, Ma 01938

Donald F. Whiston Member
2 Jeffrey's Neck Road
Ipswich, MA 01938

Elizabeth Kilcoyne Member
48 East Street
Ipswich, MA 01938

Patrick McNally o Member
74 Little Neck Road
Ipswich, MA 01938

Ingrid Miles Member
58 N. Main Street
Ipswich, MA 01938

Peter Foote Treasurer & Clerk
401 Colonial Drive signs checks
Ipswich, MA 01938 custody of funds & financial records

distribution of funds

no fundraising



FOR FORM PC PURPOSES

m 8868 Application for Extension of Time To File an

(Rev. April 2009) Exempt Organization Return : OMB No. 1545-1708
ﬁf&iﬁ?";?ﬁ?;ﬁfszi?;w b File a separate applicatio‘n for each return.

® |fyou are filing for an Automatic 3-Month Extension, complete only Partland check thisbox . b

@ |fyou are filing for an Additional (Not Automatic) 3-Month Extension, complete only Part Il (on page 2 of this form).
Do not complete Part Il unless you have already been granted an automatic 3-month extension on a previously filed Form 8868,
2 Automatic 3-Month Extension of Time. Only submit original (nc copies needed).

A corporation required to file Form 990-T and requesting an automatic 6-month extension—check this box and complete
PAIIONY | e » [

All other corporations {including 1120-C filers), partnerships, REMICs, and trusts must use Form 7004 to request an extension of
time to file income tax returns.

Electronic Filing {e-file). Generally, you can electronically file Form 8868 if you want a 3-month automatic extension of time to file
one of the returns noted below (6 months for a corporation required to file Form 980-T). However, you cannot file Form 8868
electronically if (1) you want the additional (not automatic) 3-month extension or (2) you file Forms 990-BL, 6069, or 8870, group
returns, or a composite or consolidated Form 990-T. Instead, you must submit the fully completed and signed page 2 (Part l) of Form
8868. For more details on the electronic filing of this form, visit www.irs.gov/efile and click on e-file for Charities & Nonprofits.

Type or Name of Exempt Organization Employer identification number
print FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL
File by the IN THE TOWN OF TPSWICH 51-0528943

duedatefor | Number, street, and room or suite no. If a P.O. box, see instructions.

filing your P. O. BOX 166

Teturn. oee
in;tn?ctisons‘ City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code, For a foreign address, see instructions.
IPSWICH MA 01938

Check type of return to be filed (file a separate application for each return):
Form 890 Form 990-T (corporation) Form 4720
Form 990-BL. Form 990-T (sec. 401(a) or 408(a) trust) Form 5227
Form 980-EZ . Form 990-T (trust other than above) Form 6069
Form 990-PF Form 1041-A Form 8870

Telephone No.» 978-356-4411 . . FAXNo. B ... TRTURURRRUR
© |f the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, check thisbox . .. .. ... .. .. .. ... .. ... .. b D
@ |fthis is for a Group Return, enter the organization's four digit Group Exemption Number (GEN . Ifthis is
for the whole group, check this box b D .If it is for part of the group, check thisbox -3 and attach

a list with the names and EINs of all members the extension will cover.
1  |request an automatic 3-month (6 months for a corporation required to fite Form 980-T) extension of time
untl 2/15/10 |, tofilethe exempt organization return for the organization named above. The extension is

2 lfthis tax year is for less than 12 months, check reason:D Initial return D Final return D Change in accounting period

3a If this application is for Form 890-BL, 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter the tentative tax,
less any nonrefundable credits. See instructions. 3a! $
b if this application is for Form 9380-PF or 990-T, enter any refundable credits and estimated tax

payments made. Include any prior year overpayment aliowed as a credit. $
¢ Balance Due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, or, if required,
deposit with FTD coupon or, if required, by using EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment
$

System). See instructions.
Caution, If you are going to make an electronic fund withdrawal with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-EO and Form 8879-E0
for payment instructions.

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see Instructions. Farm 8868 (Rev. 4-2009)

DAA



rom 990

Department of the Treasury
Internai Revenuc Service

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code {except black lung
benefit trust or private toundation)

P The organization may have to use a copy of this return to satisfy state reporting requirements.

|__OMB No. 1545-0047
0

A For the 2008 calendar

ear, or tax year beginning

7/01/08 6/30/09

. and ending

B Check f applicable: | Please | C Nameoforganizalon  FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL D Employer identificalion number
raress crange |58 R IN THE TOWN OF TPSWICH
D Name change print or Doing Business As 51-0528%843
D Inifial returm téze‘ Number and street {or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suile E  Telephone number
D o Spec‘;ﬁc P. O. BOX 166
Termination instruc-|  City or town, state or country, and ZIP + 4 G Gross receiptss 1,167,403
D Amended relurn tions. IPSWICH MA 01938
D Application pending F Name and address of principal officer: H(a) Is this a group retum for
PETER FOOTE affiiates? Yes No
401 COLONIAL DR Hib) Mealafizes [ ves | ] No
IPSWICH MA 01938 1f "No," attach a fist. {see Instructions)
| Taxexemptstatus: | ] 501) (0 ) < (inserino) | | 4847(a))or 527
J Website: » N/A H(c) Group exemption number B>

K Typeof ogganizalion:ﬂ Corporation &l Trust ﬂ Association ’_' Other B~

l L Yearofformation: 1 650

T

EPa

Summary

iM State of legal domiciie: MA

Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities:
8| . To hold certain real property in the Town of Ipswich and manage the . .. ... ... ...
§ _property through the collection of rents and payments of expenses with the
g _.net earnings to be distributed to the Town of Ipswich School Department. .. .. . . . .
8 2 Check this box B if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its assets.

o5 | 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) . . . . . . .. . . . ... 3 7
8| 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) .. ... .. .. ... 4
S| 5 Totalnumberof employees (Part V. line 2a) 51 0
E 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) 6 0
7a Total gross unrelated business revenue from Part VIll, line 12, column (C) .. ... .. ... 7a
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 34 ... ... ..... ... cooeieniueiiinieve... 7b 0
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIl line th)
| 9 Program service revenue (Part VIIL line 20) . ... 1,166,569
2| 10 Investment income (Part VIIl, column (A), lines 3, 4,and 7d) . 3,080 834
% | 41 Other revenue (Part VIll, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢, 10¢, and 11e) . ... .. ... 154,138
12 Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part Vill, column (A), line 12) ... ... 157,218 1,167,403
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) .. . ... ...
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) .. ...
o | 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), fines 5-10)
2 | 1eaProfessional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A}, line 11e} . ... ... ... .. ...
§ b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25 ... e
W 47 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11#-240 ... .. 376,359 1,195,870
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 376,359 1,195,870
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18fromiine 12 .. . . . ... o ... -219,141 -28,467
3 Beginning of Year End of Year
£5 20 Totalassets (Part X, Ne 16) . ... 6,873,268 6,660,244
=B 21 Totalliabilties (Part X, line 26) 6,374,776 6,245,264
25| 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 fromIne 20 .. .. ... 498,492 414,980

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying scheduies and statements, and to the best of my knowledge

and belief, it is true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.
Sign }
Here Signature of officer Date

} PETER FOOTE TREASURER

Type or print name and titie

N P chg e
Preparer's signature Daniel E. Clasby 2/01/10| employed b X 29—?;??47?;%
Use Only | Frmis name for yours Dan Clasby & Company ENn__» 04-3395132

if self-employed), 100 Cummings Center Suite 238C Phone

address, and ZIP + 4 Beverly, MA 01915 no. B 978-922-9900

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions)

‘_}_{_‘ Yes l_l No

DAA For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions,

Formn 990 (2008)



Form 990 (2008) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528943 Page 2
EPartillz  Statement of Program Service Accomplishments (see instructions)
1 Brlefly describe lhe vrganization's mission:

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on
the prior FOrm 990 0r 890-EZ7 . .. [ ves [x] No
if "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
semices? i [ Yes & No
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Describe the exempt purpose achievements for each of the organization's three largest program services by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations and section 4947(a)(1) trusts are required to report the amount of grants and
allocations to others, the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reporied.

4a (Code: . ) (Expenses§ 918,220 -including grants of$ ... ) Revenue s 1,166,569)
To hold certain real property in the Town of Ipswich and ...
manage the property through the collection of rents and ... ...
payments of expenses with the net earnings to be . . ...
distributed. to.the Town of Ipswich School Department... .. ...

4b (Code: | ) (Expenses§ L. including grants of$ .. L. ) (Revenue § ... )

4c (Code Y(Expenses$ ... including grants of$ ... ) (Revenue & )

4d Other program services. (Describe in Schedule O.)
(Expenses $ including grants of$ ) (Revenue $ )
4e Total program service expensesP $ 918,220 (Mustequal Part IX, Line 25, column (B).)

Form 990 (2008)

DAA



Form 990 (2008) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528943 Page 3
B i Checklist of Required Schedules
Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? if "Yes,”
complete Schedule A 11X
2 s the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? . 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to
candidates for public office? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Partl 3 X
4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities? If *Yes,” complete
Schedule C,PaMtIl 4 X
5  Section 501(c){4), 501(c)(5), and 501(c)(6) organizations. Is the organization subject to the section 6033(e)
notice and reporting requirement and proxy tax? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Partt .~ . 5
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any accounts where donors have the right to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Part | 6 X
7  Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Parttt 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of ar, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part Il 8 X
9  Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21; serve as a custodian for amounts not listed in Part
X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services? If “Yes,"
complete Schedule D, Part IV s X
10 Did the organization hold assets in term, permanent, or quasi-endowments? If “Yes," complete Schedule D, PatV =~ 10 X
11" Did the organization report an amount in Part X, lines 10, 12, 13, 15, or 257 If “Yes,” complete Schedule D,
Parts VI, VIL, VIIL IX, or X as applicable 11| X
12  Did the organization receive an audited financial statement for the year for which it is completing this return :
that was prepared in accordance with GAAP? If “Yes," complete Schedule D, Parts X1, Xil, and X80 .. . ... 12 | X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i)? If “Yes," complete Schedule E . . 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside ofthe US.? 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising,
business, and program service activities outside the U.S.? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Part! 14b X
15  Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or assistance to any
organization or entity located outside the United States? if "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Part i .. ... ... 15 X
16  Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or assistance
to individuals located outside the United States? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parttht 16 X
17  Did the organization report more than $15,000 on Part IX, column (A), line 11e? If “Yes,” complete Scheduie G, Partt 17 X
18  Did the organization report more than $15,000 total on Part Vill, lines 1c and 8a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Partil 18 X
19  Did the organization report more than $15,000 on Part VIIi, line 9a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Partilt . 18 X
20  Did the organization operate one or more hospitals? If “Yes,” complete Schedule H 20 X
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 on Part IX, column (A), fine 17 If "Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts | and Il 21 X
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 on Part IX, column (A), line 27 If “Yes,” complete Schedule |, Parts land Il | 22 X
23 Did the organization answer “Yes” fo Part VI, Section A, questions 3, 4, or 57 If "Yes,” complete
SOnCTUI J 23 X
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 If “Yes," answer questions
24b-24d and complete Schedule K. If “No," go to question25. 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? . . . . . . .. ... 24b
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt DONGS? 24c
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of” issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? . . . . ... 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit transaction
with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes," complete Schedule L, Part | 25a X
b Did the organization become aware that it had engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified
person from a prior year? if “Yes," complete Schedule L, Part! 25b X
26 Was a loan to or by a current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, highly compensated employee, or
disqualified person outstanding as of the end of the organization's tax year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Patlt 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, or
substantial contributor, or to a person related to such an individual? If “Yes," complete Schedule L. Part Nl ........... . ... ... 27 X

DAA

Form 990 (2008)



Form

990 (2008) FEQFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528943

artiVe

Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

29
30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

During the tax year, did any person who is a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee:
Have a direct business relationship with the organization (other than as an officer, director, frustee, or
employee), or an indirect business relationship through ownership of more than 35% in another entity
(individually or collectively with other person(s) listed in Part VI, Section A)? If “Yes,"” complete Schedule L,
Part [V
Have a family member who had a direct or indirect business relationship with the organization? If “Yes,’
complete Schedule L, Part IV
Serve as an officer, director, trustee, key employee, pariner, or member of an entity (or a shareholder of a

professional corporation) doing business with the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Parttiv.
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M
Did the organization receive contributions of an, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
conservation contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M.
Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If “Yes,” complete Schedule N,

Part |
Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes," complete

Schedule N, Part Il
Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part |
Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If “Yes,"” complete Schedule R, Parts 1,

m' ’V' and V' Iine 1 ...................................................................................................
Is any related organization a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes,” complete

SChEdUIe R' Part V' I8 2
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related

organization? if “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line2
Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization

and that is treated as a parnnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part

Vi

=
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Form 990 (2008) FEQFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOQL 51-0528943
EPAr Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

EPar

1a Enter the number reporied in Box 3 of Form 1096, Annuai Summary and Transmittal of
U.S. Information Returns. Enter -0- if not applicable ia | 3

Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable | ib| 0O
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable
gaming (gambling) winnings to prize WINNers? e
2a Enter the number of employees reporied on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return | 2a 0
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns?
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be reguired to e-file this return. (see
instructions)
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year covered by

ki

SHatat

ERE
122 PN

3

24

4a At any lime during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority
over, a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial

See the instructions for exceptions and filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22.1, Report of Foreign Bank Hint
and Financial Accounts. I};g;mg
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? .~~~ X
Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a parly to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? X
¢ If"Yes," to question 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T, Disclosure by Tax-Exempt Entity
Regarding Prohibited Tax Shelter Transaction? 5c
6a Did the organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible? . 6a X

b If“Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not tax deductible? L
7  Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization provide goods or services in exchange for any quid pro quo contribution of more than
$757 .

b If"Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . . . . . . .. ..
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was

e Did the organization, during the year, receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal
benefit CONract? | e
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract?
g For all contributions of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? . . . . .. . ..
h For contributions of cars, boats, airplanes, and other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C as
TRQUIN? e
8  Section 501(c){3) and other sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds and section
509(a){3) supporting organizations. Did the supporting organization, or a fund maintained by a sponsoring
organization, have excess business holdings at any time during the year?
9  Section 501(c)(3) and other sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section 48667?

TR

a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part Vil fine 12 . ... ... ... 10a '!Ez :
b Gross receipts, included on Form 880, Part VIII, fine 12, for public use of club facilities =~~~ 10b i gi %;za o
11 Section 501(c){12) organizations. Enter; %i;rséﬁﬁ ;l‘l‘z&:
a Gross income from members or shareholders 11a i ;é’ W
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against i i
amounts due or received from them.) 11b

12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 890 in fieu of Form 10417
b If“Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year l 12b]

DAA



Form 990 (2008) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528943 Page 6
E  Governance, Management, and Disclosure (Sections A, B, and C request information about policies not

required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Section A. Governing Body and Management

For each “Yes" response to lines 2-7b below, and for a “No” response to fines 8 or 9b below, describe the
circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O. See instructions.
1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body .. .. . . .. 1a | 7
b Enter the number of voting members that are independent .. ... 1b
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee?
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct
supervision of officers, directors or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its organizational documents since the prior Form 990 was filed?
Did the organization become aware during the year of a material diversion of the organization's assets?
6 Does the organization have members or stockholders?
7a Does the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who may elect one or more members

i
13717

7

i

,,..,uw.
BENAEN %
T i

Y]

R R
o,

ur

of the Qoverning body? | 7a
b Are any decisions of the governing body subject to approval by members, stockholders, or other persons? . b
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during i%gié{ '
the year by the following: I
a The governing DOdY? 8a | X
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the goveming body? 8b | X
9a Does the organization have local chapters, branches, or affliates? . 9a X
b If“Yes,” does the organization have written policies and procedures governing the actlvmes of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with those of the organization? 8b
10  Was a copy of the Form 990 provided to the organization’s governing body before it was filed? All organizations
. must describe in Schedule O the process, if any, the organization uses to review the Foomgso 10 X
11 Is there any officer; director or trustee, or key employee listed in Part VI, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the organization's mailing address? If "Yes,” provide the names and addresses in Schedule O ... .. ..............c..00oo... 11 X
Section B. Policies
Yes | No
12a Does the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No," gotoline 13 .. . . ... . .. ... ... .. ... | 12a X
b Are officers, directors or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give
rise to conflicts? 12b

¢ Does the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If “Yes,"
describe in Schedule O how this Is done .
13 Does the organization have a written whistieblower policy?
14 Does the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy?
15  Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision:
a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official?
b Other officers or key employees of the organization?
Describe the process in Schedule O. (see instructions)
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement
with a taxable enfity during the year?
b If “Yes,” has the organization adopted a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to.é\'/éiuét'e. ...............
its participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and taken steps to safeguard
the organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . . .. .. . . .ttt
Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be file® MA
18  Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Form 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (501(c)(3)s only)
available for public inspection, Indicate how you make these available. Check all that apply.
D Own website D Another's website Upon request
19 Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how), the organization makes its governing documents, conflict of interest
policy, and financial statements available to the public.
20  State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the
organization:  PETER FOOTE . . .. ... 401 COTONTAT, DR. ..
IPSWICH MA 018938 978-356-4411
Form 990 (2008)

DAA



Form 990 (2008) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL. 51-0528843 Page 7
VI Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Emplovees, and Independent Contractors
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, andHighest Compensated Employees
4a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Use Schedule J-2 if additional space is needed.

e List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount
of compensation, and current key employees. Enter -0- In columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

@ List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

o List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of
the organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest
compensated employees; and former such persons,

Check this box if the organization did not compensate any officer, director, trustee, or key employee.

(A) (8) © ) (E) F)
Name and Title Average Position (check alf that apply Reportable Reportable Estimated -
hours per SESTS T =leg @ compensation compensation amount of
week okl 2| 3|82 |35 8 from - from related other
FEIE|8 e Erd 3 the organizations compensation
aci 5| g 5| = organization (W-2/1088-MISC) from the
g2l 2 |78 (W-2/1098-MISC) organization
2| = 5 3 and related
FA ® 1B organizations
ol & »
. JAMES FOLEY
MEMBER 1 X 54,000 0 0
PETER FOOTE
TREAS., CLK 2 X 18,450 0 0
. .DONALD F. WHISTON
MEMBER 1 X 2,125 0 0
_ ALEXANDER B| C MULHOLLAND, | JR
CHEATIRMAN 1 X 0 0 0
. ELIZABETH KILCOYNE
"MEMBER 1 X 0 0 0
. PATRICK MCNALLY
MEMBER 1 X 0 0 0
. INGRID MILEP
MEMBER 1 X 0 0 0

Form 990 (2008)
DAA



rorm990(2008) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528943 Page 8

Section A, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued) o

(B) . (C) (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average Position (check all that apply Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per 851 39| 7 gg; iy compensation compensation amount of
week E%‘ 23 g‘ < |85 3 from from related other
g E1 8151288 & the organizat ti
88 2 3 |2al ® rganizations compensation
g8l 5 2|8 organization (W-2/1088-MISC) from the
gl = E E (W-2/1089-MISC) organization
T G g and related
3 & organizations
2
B TOMB Lo e > 74,575

Total number of individuals (including those in 1a) who received more than $100,000 in reportable compensation from the

organization 0

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated

employee on line 1a7? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual

4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from
the organization and related organizations greater than $150,0007 if “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such

VI UL e

5  Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization for

services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person

Section B. independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of

compensation from the organization.
Name and é@s)iness address Descripﬁg%)of services Comc(gr)asaﬁon
MACLEAN HOLLOWAY 8 ESSEX CENTER DRIVE
PEABODY MA 01870 LEGAL SERVICES 191,274

2 Total number of independent contractors (including those in 1) who received more than $100,000 in
compensation from the organization b

e

DAA

Form 990 (2008)
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(2008) FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528943 Page 10
¢ Statement of Functional Expenses »

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns.
All other organizations must complete column (A) but are not required to complete columns (B), (C), and (D).

i i (A) (B) (C) D)
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, Total expenses Program service Management and Fundraising
7b, 8b, 8b, and 10b of Part VIii, expenses general expenses expenses

1 Grants and other assistance fo governments and
organizations In the U.S. See Parf IV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in
the U.S. See Part iV, line22 =
3 Grants and other assistance to governments
organizations, and individuals outside the
US. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16
4 Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees
6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)
7 Ofther salaries and wages . . . ...
8 Pension plan contributions (include section 401(k)
and section 403(b) employer contributions)
9 Other employee benefits
10 Payrolitaxes
11 Fees for services (non-employees):

Management 74,575 74,575

Legal 191,505 191,505

Accounting 20,653 10,653 10,000

Labpying —
Professional fundraising services. See Part 1V, line 17 et

Investment management fees

Other 17,159 17,159

s

S R

-
Na w0 0o0ocuoe

13 Office expenses 4,303 4,303
14 Information technology
15 Royalties SURRRRRRUTR
16  Occupancy
17 Trave] .................................
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
18 Conferences, conventions, and meetings

20 Interest 468,562 468,562

21 Payments to affiliates
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization
23 Insurance

24 Other expenses. ltemize expenses not
covered above. (Expenses grouped togethe
and labeled miscellaneous may not exceed

5% of total expenses shown on line 25 belo Bt it g & fiit
a . WASTEWATER HAULAGE FEES 91,193 91,193
b REPAIRS & UPKEEP 21,310 21,310
¢ . REAL ESTATE TAXES 19,194 19,194
d  UTILITIES . . ... 18,658 18,658
e . INSPECTIONS . .. .. 6,787 6,787
f Allotherexpenses 10,060 8,490 1,570
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1through 28f 1, 195,870 918,220 277,650
26 Joint Costs, Check here P~ D if following
SOP 98-2. Complete this lin€only if the
organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation .. ... ... ...... ..

DAA Form 990 (2008)



Form 990 (2008) FEQOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528943 Page 11
EPa : __Balance Sheet —_
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—nondinterestbearing 50,196} 1 97,032
2 Savings and temporary cash Investments 3,185] 2 3,208
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 3 :
4 Accounts receivable, net 101,691 4 82,051
5 Receivables from current and former otticers, directors, trustees, key
employess, or other related parties. Complete Part Il of Schedule L. I 5
6 Receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section 5 ﬁ;ﬁ;ﬁ%ﬁf‘i ‘ i B
4958(f)(1)) and persons described in section 4958(¢)(3)(B). Complete PR R g
Partllof Schedule L
¥ 1 7 Notes and loans receivable,net
{% 8 Inventories forsale oruse
$ 9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost basis 10a 7,197,819 ;ﬁig’?‘gg‘
b Less: accumulated depreciation. Complete ﬂg&jﬁj
PartVlof Schedule D 10b 719,866
11 Investments—publicly traded securities
12 investments—other securities. See Part IV, line 11 .
13 Investments—program-related. See Part IV, linett
14 Intangible assets |
15 Other assets. See Part IV, line 11
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equalline 34) ... ... ................. 6,873,268] 18 6,660,244
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 138,611 17 185,086
18 Gramtspayable 18
19 Deferred revenue | . ... ... 66,596| 19 29,447
w 20 Tax-exemptbond liabilities
@ |21 Escrow account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D . . .. ..
E 22 Payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees, key
ﬁ employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified
3 persons. Complete Part Il of Schedule L. o
23  Secured morigages and notes payable to unrelated third parties
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable
25 Other liabilities. Complete Part X of Schedule D 6,169,569 25 6,000,721
. | 26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 6,374,776] 26 6,245,264
3 Organizations that follow SFAS 117, check hele and : ‘ét;?{%@%ﬁé%:ﬂ k?{}g% @?‘% %ﬁ%ﬁﬁ? it fﬁ&?@'ﬁ%
s complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34. ﬁﬁ%&?ﬂi@mﬁé&% fifheet ‘Efi{_géf,z s géﬁ;ﬁ: ,éi ,,ﬁ@gﬁﬁﬁ%
W |27 Unrestricted netassets 498,492 27 414,980
2 28 Temporarily restricted netassets 28
g 29 Permanently restricted netassets __ | 29 | ;
T Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117, check hebe | | B E‘E?‘ i?ﬁé S ij%‘gﬁr“;ﬁﬁ
§|  and complete lines 30 through 34. et
© 30
b 31
2 32
w 498,492] 33 414,980
= 6,873,268| 34 6,660,244
EPar
Yes | No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 890: D Cash Accrual D Other ﬁiggé %ﬁ% ;ﬁ&%
2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? . 2a X
b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 26} X
¢ If"Yes" fo lines 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of
the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? . 2¢ | X
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in
the Single Audit Act and OMB Clrcuiar A-1380 3a X
b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audii or audits? 3b

DAA

Form 990 (2008)



SCHEDULE D . . OMB No. 1545-0047

{Form 990) Supplemental Financial Statements

Department of the Treasury pattach to Form 990. To be completed by organizations that = =

Internal Revenue Service answered “Yes,” to Form 990, Part1V, line 6,7, §, 8, 10, 11, or 12 ! -lnspenctloﬁ*’" T

Name of the organization Employer identification number
FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL

IN THE TOWN OF IPSWICH 51-0528943
i  Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete if

the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part IV, line 6. .

(a) Donor advised funds {b) Funds and other accounts

Aggregate grants from (during year)
Aggregate value atend ofyear .
Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised
funds are the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control? . . .. . .
6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds may be
used only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor or other
impermissible private Denefil? | e e e D__Yes l No
PartilliE  Conservation Easements. Comp!ete if the organization answered “Yes’ to Form 990 Part IV, line 7.
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or pleasure) Preservation of an historically important land area
Protection of natural habitat Preservation of certified historic structure
Preservation of open space
2 Complete lines 2a—2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement
on the last day of the tax year.

L TR A

Held at the End of the Year

a Total number of conservation easements 2a
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2b
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in(@) . .. . . . .. . 2c
d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 8/17/06 . 2d
3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during
the taxable year p ]

§ Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, violations, and
enforcement of the conservation easements it holds’7 D Yes D No

8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section

170(h)(4)(B)() and section T70(M)(A)NBYNT ... . L] Yes [ no
8 InPart XIV, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and

balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes

the orgamzatlon s accounting tor conservation easements.
3 Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” to Form 990, Part [V, line 8.

1a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 118, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical freasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide, in Part XIV, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of ar,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items:

{i) Revenues included in Form 990, Part VI, fine 1 | )

(i) Assets included in Form 990, Part X L

2 |fthe organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 relating to these items:
Revenues included in Form 980, Part VIil, line 1 > 3

b Assets included in Form 990, Part X P 3

]

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2008
DAA



ScheduleD(Form 990) 2008 FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528%943 | - Page 2
PArtillE  Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the organization's accession and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection
items (check all that apply):

a Public exhibition d H Loan or exchange programs
b Scholarly research Other _ __ __ _ _ _ _ . _
c Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in
Part Xiv.
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? = = D Yes D No

IV Trust, Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if organization answered “Yes” to Form 990,
Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.
1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not
included on Form 980, Part X7
b If *Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part X1V and complete the following table:

Amount
¢ Beginning balance ic
d Additions during the year 1id
e Distributions during the year . 1o
FOERding balance | ghi
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 890, Part X, line 21?7 D Yes D No

b 1f"Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIV.
PartiVit  Endowment Funds. Complete if organization answered “Yes" to Form 980, Part IV, line 10.
back (e) Four years back

Beginning of year balance ) _~ .. i :(l » i i il vﬁéi‘ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁ@iﬁ%ﬁ@

f&%@%@“’ﬁ@@%@ -~
S %i@

Contributions

2 Provide the estimated percentage of the year end balance held as:

a Board designated or quasi-endowment®» %

b Permanentendowment® _ _ _ _ %

¢ Termendowment® _ _ _ _ %

3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the

organization by: Yes | No
() unrelated organizations ... 3a(i)
(i) related OrQaNZations | ... 3a(ii)
If "Yes” to 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? . . ... 3b

Investments—Land, Buildings, and Equipment. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of investment {a) Cost or other basis (b) Cost or other {c) Depreciation {d) Book value
(investment) basis {other)
ta land R
b Buildings
c Leasehold improvements = .
d Equipment L
e Other ... .o 7,197,819 719,866 6,477,953

........................... > 6,477,953
Scheduie D (Form 990) 2008

Total. Add lines 1a-1e. (Column (d) shouid equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10(c).)

DAA



Schedule D (Form 990) 2008 FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOQOOL 51-0528943 Page 3
investments—Other Securities. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category {b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:
(inctuding name of security) Cost or end-of-year market vaiue

Financial derivatives and other financial products
Closely-held equity interests
Other

Total. (Column (b) should equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 12.) P e
Parevill  Investments—Program Related. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

{a) Description of investment type (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:
Cost or end-of-year market value

Total. (Column (b) should equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.) P
Other Assets. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

{a) Description (b) Book vaiue
Total, (Column (b) should equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B)line 15,y .. . . . it b
EPAE Other Liabilities. See Form 990, Part X, line 25. o
(a) Description of liability (b) Amount
Federal income taxes =
NOTES PAYABLE 5,966,666
ACCRUED INTEREST 34,055

Total, (Column (b) should squal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 25) P 6£,000, 721 ,
in Part X1V, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the organization’s liability for
uncertain tax positions under FIN 48.

Schedule D (Form 950) 2008
DAA



Schedule D (Form 990) 2008  FEQFFEES OF THE GRAMMER SCHOOL 51-0528943 Page 4
i Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets from Form 980 to Financlal Statements

1 Total revenue (Form 890, Part VIll, column (A), line 12) 1 1,167,403
2 Total expenses (Form 990, Part IX, column (A), ine 25) . 2 1,195,870
3 Excess or (deficif) for the year. Subtract line 2 from line 1 - 3 -28,467
4 Netunrealized gains (losses) on investments 4
5 Donated services and use of facilities 5
6 Investmentexpenses §
7 Priorperiod adjustments 7
8 Other (Describe in Part XIV) 8
9 Totaladjustments (net). Add lines 4-8 9

10 Excess or (deficit) for the year per financial statements. Combinefines3and9 .. .....0oooiooiiinn,, ... 10 -28,467
1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 1,617,374
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part Vi, line 12:

a Netunrealized gains oninvestments

b Donated services and use of facilities

¢ Recoveries of prioryeargrants

d Other (Describe in Part XIV)

e Addlines 2athrough2d . . ... e 449,971
3 Subtractiine 2efromiine 1 .. . . 1,167,403
4 Amounts included on Form 890, Part VI, fine 12, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part Viil, line 7b

b Other (Describe in Part XIV)

¢ Add lines 4a and 4b

5 1,167,403
Gl Reconcmatlon of Expenses per Audited Fmancxal Statements Wlth Expenses per Return
1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1,645,841
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 980, Part IX, line 25

a Donated services and use of facilities 2a

b Prioryearadjustments 2b

¢ Losses reported on Form 990, Part IX, line 25 . ... 2c | E.‘l

d Other (Describe in Part XIV) ... 2d 449,971 %, i
© Add lines 2a through.2d . 2e 449,971
3 Subtractline 2e from line T 3 | 1,195,870
4 Amounts inciuded on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1: %’u 3

a Investment expenses not included on Form 980, Part Vill, line 7~ . 4a g{&#

b Other (Describe in Part XIV) 4b i

© Addlinesdaand Ab 4c

al expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This should equal Form 990, Partt line 18 ..o oo 5 1,195,870
fEE V2 Supplemental Information
Complete this part to provide the descriptions required for Part il, fines 3, 5, and 8, Part lli, lines 1a and 4; Part 1V, lines 1b
and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X; Part X|, line 8; Part Xli, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XIil, lines 2d and 4b.
_Part XI, Line 8 - Reconcilation of Changes - Other _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
_REAL ESTATE TAXES COLLECTED NETTED AGAINST EXPENSE _ _ _ _ $ _ _ 449,971
REAL ESTATE TAXES COLLECTED NETTED AGAINST EXPENSE S _ _—-449,971

Schedule D (Form 980) 2008

DAA
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EPArtXIV: Supplemental Information (continued)

Schedule D (Form 980) 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of

Feoffees of the Grammar School and Affiliate
P.O.Box 166

Ipswich, MA 01938

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of Feoffees of the Grammar
School (a nonprofit organization) and Affiliate as of June 30, 2009, and the related consolidated statements
of activities and cash flows for the year then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Organization’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,

the financial position of Feoffees of the Grammar School and Affiliate as of June 30, 2009, and the changes

in their net assets and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
_ generally accepted in the United States of America.

L a

January 22, 2010

100 Cummings Center, Suite 238C, Beverly, MA 01915 » Telephone 978-922-9900 - Féx 978-922-3233
email: ClasbyCo@msn.com
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2009

Assets
Current assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable
Total current assets

Property, betterments and equipment:
Sewer betterments
Electric betterments
Furniture and fixtures
‘Less accumulated amortization and depreciation
Net property, betterments and equipment
Land and buildings, Note 1
Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Payments received in advance

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Net assets:
Net assets - unrestricted

Total net assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

$ 100,240
82.051
182.291

6,697,342
498,584
_1.893
7,197,819
719.866

6.477.953

$ 6,660,244

$ 190,000
185,096
34,055
59.447

468,598

5.776.666
6.245.264

414.980

414.980
$6.660.244
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2009

Support and Revenue:
Tenant and leaseholder rents
Real estate tax collections - tenants
Wastewater revenues
Wastewater overhead and maintenance fees - tenants
Interest income and late charges
Total support and revenue

Expenses:
Real estate taxes
Legal
Wastewater haulage fees
Management fees
Repairs and upkeep
Utilities
Other professional fees
Billing services
Accounting
Inspections
Engineering - consulting
Police details
Insurance
Office expense
Dock removal and storage
State fees
Beach sampling

Total expenses

Change in net assets before interest, amortization and depreciation
and gift to Town of Ipswich Public Schools

Interest expense

Amortization and depreciation

Change in net assets before gift to Town of Ipswich Public Schools
Gift to Town of Ipswich Public Schools

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Lnrestricted

$ 1,006,660
449,971
95,109
64,800

834
1.617.374

469,165
191,505
91,193
74,575
27,310
18,658
10,669
10,653
10,000
6,787
6,490
5,983
5,668
4,303
2,057
1,570
450
937.036

680.338
468,562
240.243
_1708.805

( 28,467)

( 28467)
443.447

$ 414980
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Amortization and depreciation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts receivable
Increase in accounts payable
Increase in accrued expenses
Decrease in deferred rent collections

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments on long-term debt

Net cash used by financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivélents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

$( 28,467)

240,243 .
( 32,355)
38,575
7,160
(__7.149)

218.007

(_176.008)
(__176.,008)

41,999

58.241

$__100.240

§__461.402
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL AND AFFILIATE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2009

Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Nature of organization

Feoffees of the Grammar School (the “Trust”) was established by the Town of Ipswich (the
“Town”) by a vote of Town Meeting on November 14, 1650. The vote established a four-member
committee to hold land granted by the Town for the support of a “grammar school”. The Trust
came into possession of the real property currently held in 1660 through the bequest of William
Paine, an original member of the 1650 committee.

The real property consists of a parcel of land of approximately thirty five (35) acres known as

- Little Neck in Ipswich, Massachusetts. On this land are situated one hundred sixty seven (167)

cottages, of which one hundred forty three (143) are seasonal and twenty four (24) are year round.
The seasonal cottages may only be occupied between April 1 and November 30 each year. The
Trust is assessed and pays to the Town the real estate taxes on the land and on such structures
owned by the Trust (a community center and a wharf); in addition they collect for the Town and
remit to the Town the real estate taxes assessed on the cottages of the tenants who have not
executed a long-term lease. ’

Because the Trust designates its net earnings to be for the benefit of the children of the Ipswich
Public Schools, with no benefits accruing to its trustees, it has considered itselfto be a tax-exempt
organization. However until 1997 no federal or state tax returns were filed by the Trust, as it was
the position of the Trust that it was a “quasi-public trust” and therefore was not technically
required to file the tax returns.

The Trust is supported primarily through rent collections.

LNWS, LLC was established in 2006 to operate, maintain and improve a wastewater collection
system for the Feoffees of the Grammar School and Affiliate.

(b) Basis of consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Feoffees of the
Grammar School and it’s wholly owned affiliate LNWS, LLC. All material intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated.

(¢) Financial statement presentation

The Trust has adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117, "Financial
Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations". Under SFAS No. 117, the Trust is required to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets:
unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.

The Organization prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, which involves the application of accrual accounting; consequently,
revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses are recognized when
incurred.
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL AND AFFILIATE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2009

Continued

@

(¢
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Cash and equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and equivalents include checking and savings
accounts, time deposits, certificates of deposit, and all highly liquid debt instruments with original
maturities of three months or less.

Rents receivable from owners and allowance for doubtful accounts

Accounts receivable from owners are reported net of any allowance for doubtful accounts. The
Trust provides for doubtful accounts based on experience and analysis of individual accounts.
Since management considered all receivables to be collectible at June 30, 2009, no allowance was
established at that time. -

Property, betterments and equipment

Sewer betterments, electrical betterments and equipment are recorded at cost. Maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Betterments and equipment that extend the useful
lives of assets are capitalized. Betterments are being amortized using the straight-line method
over estimated useful lives ranging from 25 to 50 years. Equipment is being depreciated over
estimated useful lives ranging from 5 to 10 years.

The land on which the Feoffees operates was acquired in 1650. The land has no determinable
value and has not been recorded by the Trust. The community house used by the tenants of the
Trust also has no determinable value and has not been recorded by the Trust.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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FEOFFEES OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL AND AFFILIATE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2009

Long-term debt
Long-term debt as of June 30, 2009 consists of the following:

On June 7, 2005 the Trust entered into a construction/permanent term loan with the Ipswich
Cooperative Bank (which has since merged with the Institution for Savings Bank) to provide
financing for the construction of sewer lines and a centralized holding tank, pump-out facility and
related infrastructure work. The maximum amount of the loan was set at $6,483,000. $2,000,000
was advanced on June 7, 2005 for work performed prior to the loan closing. During the construction
period (nine months maximum) interest was charged at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1%
on a floating basis. On March 7, 2006 the construction loan converted into a permanent loan with a
maturity date of March 7, 2026. The loan is a five (5) year adjustable rate loan with fixed interest
based on the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston Classic Advance Rate plus 2.75%, with a floor of
6.75%. The initial rate on this loan is 7.61%. The note is collateralized by all leases and rents and
betterment fees on the Trust property. The current portion of this note at June 30, 2009 is $190,000.

Maturities of long-term debt at June 30, 2009 is as follows:

Year Amount
2010 $ - 190,000
2011 204,000
2012 219,000
2013 235,000
2014 250,000
Thereafter 4,868.666
Total $ 5,966.666

Contingencies and litigation

There is pending litigation regarding alleged right of occupancy of certain tenants located at Little
Neck in Ipswich, Massachusetts. :

There is a bank account owned jointly by the Trust and an association known as the Little Neck Legal
Action Committee. The account was established after June 30, 2007 under a Stipulation Agreement
entered into by the parties on March 6, 2007. Under this agreement certain amounts paid by the
tenants to the Trust for rent over and above their previously existing lease agreements are held in
escrow until such time a final agreement is reached between the Trust and the tenants. There was
$1,120,077 held in escrow at June 30, 2009. Trustees of this account are legal counsel for each of the
parties. This account is not reflected on the financial statements.



Feoffees of the Grammar School
Proforma income Statements
Years Ended October 31,

ALTERNATIVE 1A
NO SALE PERMITTED
NO REFINANCE OF IFS LOAN
ADDITIONAL LOAN OF $300,000 FOR EROSION REMEDY

2011 2012 2013 2014 015

Support and revenue:
Tenant and leaseholder rents $ 1,075536 $ 1075538 § 1,075536 $ 1,075536 $ 1,075,536
Wastewater revenues
Wastewater overhead and maintenance fees - ienants
investment income
interest income on purchase note .
Morigage interest income _ _ R . i

Total support and revenue 1,075,536 1,075,536 1,075,536 1,075,536 1,075,536
interest expense on bank notes:
Eastern Bank note 12,750 17,250 17,250 18,000 18,000
Insitution for Savings note 433,264 416,926 389,280 380,222 359,639
Erosion note 39,500 49,047 44,677 40,037 35,111
485,514 483,223 461,207 438,259 412,750
Net support and revenue before operafing expenses 590,022 592,313 614,329 637,277 662,786
Operating expenses;
Legal fees - general 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000
Legal fees - Superior Court litigation 300,000 300,000 150,000
Accounting fees 10,000 10,500 11,025 11,676 12,155

investment management expenses . . . . _
Loan servicing fees - - - . -

Management fees 44,000 46,200 48,510 50,936 53,482
Real estate taxes - common areas 20,000 20,500 21,000 21,500 22,000
Utilities 17,000 17,850 18,743 19,680 20,664
Other professional fees 5,000 5,250 5513 5,788 . 6,078
Billing services
Repairs and maintenance 36,000 37,800 39,690 41,675 43,758
Inspections
Insurance 6,000 6,300 6,615 6,946 7,293
Police details 6,000 6,300 6,615 6,946 7,293
Engineering consulting costs {included in other professional fees) - - - - -
Office expense 6,000 6,300 6,615 6,946 7,293
Beach sampling 720 756 794 833 875
Colleclion costs - - - - - -
Other expenses 6,000 6,300 6,615 6,946 7,293
Total expenses 576,720 584,056 441,734 299,770 308,184

Operating income before provision for loan losses and
depreciation and amortization 13,302 8,257 172,595 337,507 354,602

Provision for loan losses . - . - _

Income before depreciation and amortization 13,302 8,257 172,595 337,507 354,602

Depreciation and amortization - 315,243 330,243 330,243 330,243 330,243

Net income (loss) $  (301,941) $  (321,986) §  (157,648) § 7,264 $ 24,359




Support and revenue:
Tenant and leaseholder renls
Waslewater revenues
Waslewaler overhead and maintenance fees - lenants
Investment income
interest income on purchase nole
Morigage interest income

Total supporl and revenue

Inleres! expense on bank notes:
Eastern Bank nole
Cambridge Savings Bank morigage
Erosion note

Nel supporl and revenue before operaling expanses

Operating expenses:
Legal fees - general
Legal fees - Superior Court fitigation
Accounting fees
Investment management expenses
Loan servicing fees
Management fees
Real eslale taxes - common areas
Utilities
Other professional fees

Ying services
.epairs and maintenanoc

Inspections
insurance
Police details
Engineering consulting costs (inciuded in other professional fees)
Office expense
Beach sampling
Coliection costs

" Other expenses

Total expenses

Operafing income before provision for loan losses and
deprecialion and amortization

Provision for ioan losses
Income before depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortizalion

Net income (loss)

ALTERNATIVE 1B
NO SALE PERMITTED
REFINANCE OF IFS LOAN
ADDITIONAL LOAN OF $900,000 FOR EROSION REMEDY

Feoffees of the Grammar School
Proforma Income Statements
Years Ended October 31,

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
1,075,536 § 1,075536 % 1075536 § 1075536 $ 1,075,536
1,075,536 1,075,536 1,075,536 1,075,536 1,075,536
680 - - . -
330,000 325,769 316,208 363,148 353,605
38,500 49,047 44,677 40,037 - 35,111
370,180 374,816 360,885 403,185 388,716
705,356 700,720 714,651 672,351 686,820
120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000
300,000 300,000 150,000
10,000 10,500 11,025 11,576 12,155
44,000 46,200 48,510 50,936 53,482
20,000 20,500 21,000 21,500 22,000
17,000 17,850 18,743 18,680 20,664
5,000 5,250 5,513 5,788 6,078
36,000 37,800 39,690 41,675 43,758
6,000 6,300 6,615 6,946 7,293
6,000 6,300 6,615 6,946 7,293
6,000 6,300 6,615 6,046 7,283
720 756 794 833 875
6,000 6,300 6,615 6,946 7,293
576,720 584,056 441,734 299,770 308,184
128,836 116,664 272917 372,581 378,636
128,636 116,664 272,917 372,581 378,636
315,243 330,243 330,243 330,243 330,243
(186,607) $ (213,579) $ (57.326) § 42,338 § 48,393




Suppori and revenue:
Tenant and leaseholder rents
Wastewales 1evenues
Waslewaler overhead and maintenance fees - ienants
Investment income
Interest income on purchase note
Morlgage interest income

Total support and revenue

Inlerest expense on bank notes:
Eastern Bank note
Cambridge Savings Bank morigage

Net support and revenue before operating expenses

Operating expenses.
Legal fees - general
Legal fees - Superior Courl liligation
Accounting fees
Investment managemont expanses
Loan servicing fees
Management fees
Real estate taxes - common areas
Utilities
Other professional fees
Billing services
Repairs and maintenance
inspections
Insurance
Police details
Engineering consulting costs (included in other professional fees)
Office expense
Beach sampling
Collection costs
Other expenses

Total expenses

Operating income before provision for loan josses and
depreciation and amortization

Provision for loan losses
Income before depreciation and amoriizalion
Depreciation and amortization

Net income (loss)

Feoffees of the Grammar School
Proforma income Statements
Years Ended October 31,

ALTERNATIVE 1C

NO SALE PERMITTED
REFINANCE OF IFS LOAN

NO CROSION REMEDIATION

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
$ 1,075536 $ 1075536 § 1,075536 § 1,075,536 1,075,536
1,075,536 1,075,536 1,075,536 1,075,536 1,075,536
680 - - - -
330,000 325,769 316,208 363,148 353,605
330,680 325,769 316,208 363,148 353.605
744,856 749,767 759,320 712,388 721,031
120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000
300,000 300,000 150,000 - -
10,000 10,500 11,025 11,578 12,155
44,000 46,200 48,510 50,936 53,482
20,000 20,500 21,000 21,500 22,000
17,000 17,850 18,743 18,680 20,664
5,000 5,250 5,513 5,788 6,078
36,000 37,800 39,680 41,675 43,758
6,000 6,300 6,615 6,946 7,293
6,000 6,300 6,615 6,846 7,293
6,000 6,300 6,615 6,946 7,293
720 756 794 833 875
6,000 6,300 6,615 6,846 7,293
576,720 584,056 441,734 299,770 308,184
168,136 165,711 317,594 412,618 413,747
168,136 165,711 317,594 412,618 413,747
240,243 240,243 240,243 240,243 240,243
$ (72,107) & (74,532) $ 77,351 § 172,375 173,504




Support and revenue:
Tenant and leaseholder rents
Wastewater revenues
Wastewater overhead and maintenance fees - tenants
Investment income
Interest income on purchase note
Mortgage interest income

Tatal support and revenue

interest expense on bank notes:
Eastern Bank note
Cambridge Savings Bank mortgage

Net support and revenue before operating expenses

Operating eXpenses:
Legal fees - general
Legal fees - Superior Court litigation
Accounting fees
Investment management expenses
Loan servicing fees
“Management fees
. Collection costs
Real estate taxes - common areas
Utilities
Other professional fees
Billing services
Repairs and maintenance
Inspections
Insurance
Police details

Feoffees of the Grammar School
Proforma Income Statements
Years Ended October 31,

ALTERNATIVE 2A

SALE OF ALL UNITS AS OF 11/1/11
10% CASH AT CLOSING

Engineering consulting costs (included in other professional fees) -

Office expense
Beach sampling
Collection costs
Other expenses
Total expenses

Operating income before provision for loan losses and
depreciation and amortization

Provision for loan losses
Income before depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization

Net income

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
$ 1075536 S - 8 -5 -8 -
. 93,906 91,297 88,527 85,586
- 1488,550 1,488,550 1,488,550 1,488,550
1,075,536 1,582,456 1,579,847 1,577,077 1,574,136
680 - - - -
330,000 249,399 242,080 278,015 270,709
330,680 248,399 242,080 278,015 270,709
744,856 1,333,057 1,331,767 1,299,062 1,303,427
120,000 10,000 10,500 11,025 11,576
10,000 . - - -
10,000 10,000 10,500 11,025 11,576
. 529 1,090 1,686 2,319
. 137,274 93,034 93,034 132,534
44,000 - - - -
20,000 - - - .
17,000 - - - -
5,000 - - - -
36,000 - - - -
6,000 - - - -
6,000 - - - -
6,000 - - - -
720 - - - -
6,000 6.300 6,615 6,946 7,293
286,720 164,103 121,739 123,716 165,299
458,136 1,168,954 1,216,027 1175346 1,138,128
- 74,427 74,427 74,427 74,427
458,136 1,094,526 1,141,600 1,100,918 1,063,701
240,243 - - - -
§ 217893 $ 1094526 § 1.141,600 $ 1100918 § 1,063,701




Feoffees of the Grammar School
Proforma Income Statements
Years Ended October 31,

ALTERNATIVE 2B
SALE OF ALL UNITS AS OF 11/1/11
30% CASH AT CLOSING

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Support and revenue:
Tenant and leaseholder rents $ 1075536 % - $ - $ - $ -
Wastewater revenues
Wastewater overhead and maintenance fees - lenants
investment income 28,861 30,208 31,638 33,156
Interest income on purchase note - 93,096 81,297 88,527 85,586
Mortgage Inlerest income - 1,157,761 1,157,761 1,157,761 1,157,761
Total support and revenue 1,075,536 1,279,717 1,279,266 1,277,926 1,276,503
Interest expense on bank notes:
Eastern Bank note 680 - - - -
Cambridge Savings Bank mortgage 330,000 - - - -
330,680 - - - -
Net support and revenue before operating expenses 744,856 1,279,717 1,279,266 1,277,926 1,276,503
Operating expenses:
Legal fees - general 120,000 10,000 10,500 11,025 11,576
Legal fees - Superior Court fitigation 10,000 - - - -
Accounting fees 10,000 10,000 10,500 11,025 11,576
Investment management expenses - 10,870 11,319 11,796 12,302
“>an servicing fees - 116,600 72,360 72,360 111,860
Management fees 44,000 - - - -
Collection costs
Real estate taxes - common areas 20,000 - - - -
Utilities 17,000 - - - -
Other professional fees 5,000 - - - .
Billing services
Repairs and maintenance 36,000 - - . -
Inspections
Insurance 6,000 - - - -
Police details 6,000 - - - -
Engineering consulting costs (included in other professional fees) - - - - -
Office expense 6,000 - - - -
Beach sampling 720 - - - -
Collection costs - - - - .
Other expenses 6,000 6,300 6,615 6,946 7,293
Total expenses 286,720 153,770 111,294 113,152 154,608
Operating income before provision for loan losses and
depreciation and amortization 458,136 1,125,947 1,167,971 1,164,774 1,121,896
Provision for loan losses - 57,888 57,888 57,888 57,888
Income before depreciation and amortization 458,138 1,068,059 1,110,083 1,106,886 1,064,007
Depreciation and amortization 240,243 - - - -
Net income 3 217893 $ 1,088,059 $ 1,110,083 § 1,106,886 § 1,064,007




Feoffees of the Grammar School
Proforma Income Statements
Years Ended October 31,

ALTERNATIVE 2C

SALE OF ALL UNITS AS OF 11111

Support and revenue:
Tenant and leaseholder rents
Wastewater revenues
Waslewater overhead and maintenance fees - tenants
Investment income
Interest income on purchase note
Mortgage interest income

Total support and revenue

Interest expense on bank notes:
Eastern Bank note
Cambridge Savings Bank mortgage

Net support and revenue before operating expenses

Operating expenses:
Legal fees - general
Legal fees - Superior Court litigation
Accounting fees
Investment management expenses
Loan servicing fees
Management fees
Coliection costs
Real estate taxes - common areas
Utilities
Other professional fees
Billing services
Repairs and maintenance
Inspections
Insurance
Police details
Engineering consulting costs (included in other professional fees)
Office expense
Beach sampling
Collection costs
Other expenses

Total expenses

Operating income before provision for foan iosses and
depreciation and amortization

Provision for loan losses
income before depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization

Net income

50% CASH AT CLOSING

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
$ 1075536 § - 8 -8 -3 -
194,255 195,602 197,032 198,551
. 93,905 91,297 88,527 85,586
- 826,972 826,972 826,972 826,972
1,075,536 1,115,132 1,113,871 1,112,531 1,111,109
680 - - - -
330,000 - - - -
330,680 - - - -
744,856 1,115,132 1,113,871 1,112,531 1,111,109
120,000 10,000 10,500 11,025 11,578
10,000 - - - -
10,000 10,000 10,500 11,025 11,576
- 46,126 46,350 46,589 46,842
. 95.926 51,686 51,686 91,186
44,000 - . - -
20,000 - - - -
17,000 - - - -
5,000 - - - .
36,000 - - - -
6,000 - - - -
6,000 - - - -
6,000 - - . .
720 - - - -
6,000 6,300 6,615 6,946 7,293
286,720 168,352 125,651 127,270 168,473
458,136 946,780 988,220 985,261 942,636
. 41,349 41,349 41,349 41,349
458,136 905 432 946,871 943,913 901,287
240,243 - - - -
$ 217893 § 905432 § 946871 § 943913 §  901.287




Cash

Opening balance

Add:
Nel income before deprecialion and amortization
Erasion note pracesds
Changs in accounts payable
Principal payments on purchase note
Principal payments on morigages receivable

Ueduct:
Principal payments on Easlern Bank nole
Erosion remediation disbursements
Principal payments on instilulion tor Savings nole
Princlpal payments on erosion note
Transfers lo Investments
Distributions to {pswich Public School System

Ending Balance

Accounts Payable

Opening balance
Change in accounts payable per above

Ending balance

Feoffees of the Grammar School
Proforma Subschedules
Years Ended October 31,

ALTERNATIVE 1A
NO SALE PERMITTED
NO REFINANCE OF IFS LOAN

ADDITIONAL LOAN OF $300,000 FOR EROSION REMEDY

011 2012 2013 2014 2015
$ 25000 § 3729 § 547§ 887 341
13,302 8,257 172,595 337,507 354,602
900,000
220,000 280,000 141,000 (1,000) 7,900
1,133,302 288,257 313,595 336,507 362,502
900,000 )
204,146 220,484 238,130 257,188 277,714
50,427 70,855 75,225 79,865 84,791
1,154,573 291,339 313.355 337,053 362.562
$ 3,728 647§ 887§ 341 281
20,000 240,000 520,000 661,000 660,000
220,000 280,000 141,000 (1.000) 7,900
240,000 520,000 661,000 660,000 667,800




Cash

Opening balance

Add:
Nel income before depreciation and amoriizalion
Erosion nole proceeds
Change in accounts payable
Principal payments on purchase nole
Principal paymenis on morigages receivable

Deduct:
_Principal payments on Easlem Bank nole
Erosion remedialion disbursements
Principal payments an Cambridge Savings Bank morigage
Provision for sinking fund reserve
Principal payments on erosion nole
Transfers lo invesiments
Distributions e Ipswich Public School System

Ending Batance

Accounts Payable

Opening balance
Change in accounts payable per above

ng balance

Feoffees of the Grammar School
Proforma Subschedules
Years Ended October 31,

ALTERNATIVE 1B
NO SALE PERMITTED
REFINANCE OF IFS NOTE

ADDITIONAL LOAN OF $500,000 FOR EROSION REMEDY

011 2012 2013 2014 2015
$ 25,000 1,208 § 1.508 § 128 & 117
128,636 116,664 272,817 372,581 378,636
900,000
. 124,000 {20,000) (104,000) -
1.028,636 240.664 252,917 268,581 378,636
32,000 - - - -
900,000
- 169,510 179,071 142,478 152,021
70,000 - - 45,?50 . 141,900
50,427 70,855 75,225 79,885 84,791
1,052,427 240,365 254,296 268,593 378,712
$ 1,208 1,508 § 120§ 147 8 41
20,000 20,000 144,000 124,000 20,000
- 124,000 (20.000) (104,000) -
20,000 144,000 124,000 20,000 20.000




Cash

Qpening balance

Add:
Nel income before deprecialion and amortization

Principal payments on purchase nole
Principal payments on morlgages receivable

Deduct:
Principal payments on Eastern Bank nole
Principal payments on Cambridge Savings Bank morigage
Provision for sinking (und reserve
Transfers to investments
Dislributions lo Ipswich Public School Syslem

Ending Balance

Feoffees of the Grammar School
Proforma Subschedules
Years Ended October 31,

ALTERNATIVE 1C

NO SALE PERMITTED
REFINANCE OF IFS LOAN
NO EROSION REMEDIATION

2011 012 2013 2014 2015

$ 25._000 $ 25,000 $ 21201 § 21,201 21,201
168,136 165,711 317,584 412,618 413,747
168,136 165,711 317,594 412,618 413,7-47

32,000 - - - -
- 169,510 179,071 142,478 152,021
120,000 - 120,000 180,000 180,000
16,136 - 18,523 90,140 81,726
168,136 169,510 317,504 412,618 413,747
3 25,000 § 21,201 § 21,201 § 21,201 21,204




Cash

Opening baiance

Add:
Nl inuuine before doprociafion and amariizallon
Principal paymenis on purchase nole
Principal payments on mnryuyas racaivable

Deducl:
Principal payments on Eastern Bank nole
i s an C ld ings Bank

4 Ipal pay
Transfers fo invesiments
Distributions to Ipswich Public Schoot Syslem

Ending Balancé

Cash From Sale of Unlte

Gross sales price
Less purchse price note

Cash al closing {10%)
Expenses paid al closing
Cash avallable al closing
Deb! reduction:
Cambridge Savings Bank
Eastem Bank

Cash avaliable for Investments

investments

Openlng balance
Teansfers {from invesiments

_lal avaliable for esmings
Investmeni retum raie

Invesiment eamings

Interest income from Notes Receivable

Purchase price notes:
Per amosization schedule

Unitholder noles:
Principal
interesl fale on notes

Net Assets
Galn on sale of lois:
Gross sales price:
Unlls under purchase and sale (158)
Purchase price nole

Cash pald al "closing"
Engineering and legal
Conlingencles
Monies lo lessees

Nel book value of ir d lo Hi 1ers Assoc,
Nel increase in nel assets from sale

Loan Servicing Fees
Inltial sel-up [ses

Exll leas
Monthly servicing [ees:

Average principal oulslanding
Rale

Investment Management Fees
Principal under management

Fee

Feofiees of the Grammar School
Proforma Subschedules
Years Ended October 31,

ALTERNATIVE 2A

SALE OF ALL UNITS AS OF 11/1/11

10% CASH AT CLOSING

011 2012 2013 2014 2015
$ 25.000 25000 § 25,000 $ 25,000 256.000
458,136 1,004,526 1,141,600 1,100,218 1,063,701
- 42,247 44,808 47,675 50,016
450,136 1.136.023 1.10C.506 1,148,603 1.114.381/
32,000 - - . .
. 128,772 137.091 100,077 116,363
. 42,297 44,906 47,675 50,616
426,136 864,754 1,004,508 991,841 947,318
454,138 1,136.823 1,186,506 1,148,593 1,114,317
5 25,000 25,000 S 25,000 § 25.000 25,000
29,150,000
1,584,266
27,565,734
2,756,573
1,350,000
1,406,573
1,408,573
1,406,573
e
. - 42,297 87,203 134,878
- 42,297 44,906 47,675 50,616
- 42,297 87,203 134,878 185,494
3.00% 3.00% 4.00% 4.00% 5.00%
- 1.269 3.488 5,395 8,275
- 93,906 91.297 88,527 85.586
- 24,808,164 24,809,161 24,809,161 24,809,161
6.00% £.00% 6.00% 6.00%
- 1,488,550 1,488,550 1,488,550 1,488,550
27,565,734
400,000
220,000
730,000
1,350,000
27,800,000
5,937,406
YT
44,240
39.500
. 24,808,161 24,809,161 24,808,161 24,809,161
0.3750% 0.3750% 0.3750% 0.3750% 0.3750%
- 93.034 83,034 93,034 93.034
- 137.274 } 93.034 83.034 132,534
. 42,297 87,203 134,878 185,494
- 529 1.090 1,686 2,318



Cash
Opening balance

Add:
Nel income belore deprecialion and amodizalion

Principaf peyments on purchase nole
Ivabl

Principal pay (s on B
Deduct:

Principal payments on Easlern Bank nole

Princlpal paymenis on Cambridp ings Bank 0

Transfers lo invesiments
Distributions 1o [pswich Public School Sysiem
Ending Balance

Cash From Sale of Unlts

Gross sales price
Less purchse price nole

Cash al closing (30%)

Expanses psld &t closing

Cash avallable al closing

Dabi reduction;
Cambridge Savings Bank
Eastern Bank

Cash avaliable for investments

Investments

Opening balance
-ansters from investments

. avallable for earmings
invasiment retum rale
Investment samings

Interest income from Notes Receivable

Purchase price noles:
Per amortization schedule

Unlthoider noles:
Principal
Interest rate on noles

Net Assets
Gain on sale of Iols:
Gross sales price:
Units under purchase and sale {158)
Purchase price note

Cash pald al "closing”
Engineering &nd legal
Conlingenciss
Monies to lessees

ed lo Hol Assoc,

Nel book value of
Nel increase in nel assets from sale

Loan Servicing Fees
Inilial sel-up foes

Exil [aes
Monlhly servicing fees:

Average principal oulslanding
Rule

Investrnent Management Fees
Principal under management

Foc

Feoffees of the Grammar School
Proforma Subschedules
Years Ended Octlober 31,

ALTERNATIVE 2B
SALE OF ALL UNITS AS OF 11/1111
30% CASH AT CLOSING

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
s _ 25000 S 25000 § 25,000 5 25,000 § 25,000
458,136 1,068,059 1,110,083 1,106,886 1,084,007
. 42,297 44,905 47,675 50,616
458,136 1.110.356 1,154,988 1,154,561 1,114,623
32,000 . . . .
- 42,297 44,805 47,676 50,516
426,136 1.068.058 1,110.083 1,106,886 1,064,007
458,136 1,110,356 1,154,988 1,154,581 1,114,623
s 25000 S 25.000 § 25,000 § 25000 § 25,000
29,150,000
1,584,266
27,565,734
" 8,269,720
1,350,000
6,819,720
6,000,000
6,000,000
919.720
- 918,720 962,017 1,005,522 1,054,597
- 42297 44,905 47,675 50.616
- 962,017 1,006,822 1,054,587 1,105,213
3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
. 28.851 30,208 31,638 33.156
. 93,905 91,297 88,527 85,586
. 19,295,014 19,286,014 19,296,014 19,296,014
6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
. 1,157,761 1,157,764 1,157,761 1,157,761
27,565,734
1584266
28,150,000
400,000
220,000
730,000
1,350.000
27,600,000
5,937,406
.. 21862594
44,240
39,500
. 18,296,014 18,286,014 19,296,014 19,296,014
0.3750% 0.3750% 0.3750% 0.3750% 0.3750%
. 72,360 72,360 72,360 72,350
. 116,500 72,360 72,360 111,860
. 962,017 1,006,822 1,054,597 1,105,213
. 10,870 11,310 11,796 12,302



Cash

Opening balence
Add:
Net income before depsecialion snd amorilzation

Principal peymenls on purchase nole
Principal paymenls on morigages receivable

Deduct:
Principal payments on Eastain Bank nole
Principal paymenls on Cambridge Savings Bank morigage
Trensfers lo investmenis
Distribulions 1o [pswich Public Schoo Syslem

Ending Bslance

Cash From Sale of Units

Giass sales prics
Less puschse price nole

Cash at closing {50%)

Expenses paid al ciosing

Cash avallable 2l closing

Dabl reduclion:
Cambridge Savings Bank
Easlern Bank

Cash availabls foi investments

investments

Opening balance
Transfers lrom inveslmenls

Total avallable for esmings
‘slment return rale
_svesiment earnings

Interest income from Notes Receivable

Purchase price noles:
Per amortizalion stheduie

Unltholder notes:
Principal
Interest rale on holes

Reserve for Legal and Engineering Fees
Opening balance
Charges 1o resesve
Ending bafance

Net Assets
Galn on sale of lols;
Grass sales price:
Unlts under purchase and sale (158)
Purchass price nole

Cash pait al "closing”
Enginseering and legal
Contingenciss
Monies to lessees

Nel book value of 1 ot Assac.
Nel incraase in nel assels from saie

Loan Servicing Fees
initial sel-up fees

Exil fess
Wonthly servicing fees:

' Yyverage principal ouistanding
Rele

investmont Manapement Fees
Principal under menagement

Fee

Feoffeas of the Grammar School
Proforma Subschedules
Years Ended October 31,

ALTERNATIVE 2C
SALE OF ALL UNITS AS OF 1111111
50% CASH AT CLOSING
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
5 25,000 25,000 25000 § 25,000 25,000
458,136 805432 846,81 943,913 901,287
- 42,297 44,905 47,675 50,616
458,136 847,729 981,776 991,588 851,803
32,000 - - . .
- 42207 44,805 47,675 50,616
426,136 805.432 046,871 543,813 901,267
458,136 947,728 881,776 £91,588 951.503
$ 25,000 25,000 25,000 S 25,000 25,000
28,150,000
1,584,266
27,565,734
13,782,867
1350000
12,432,867
6,000,000
6000000
£,432,867
- 6,432,887 6,475,164 6,520,069 6,967,744
- 42,287 4_4.905 47,675 50616
- 6,475,184 6,520,060 6,567,744 6,618,360
3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
- 194.255 195,602 197,032 198,551
- £3.905 91,207 88.527 85,586
- 13,782,867 13,782,867 13,782,867 13,782,867
£.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
- 826,972 826,872 826,972 826.972
268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000 268,000
26B8.000 268.000 268.000 268,000 268,000
27,565,734
1,584,266
29,150,000
400,000
220,000
730.000
1,350,000
27,800,000
$.937.406
21,862.594
44,240
38.500
- 13,782,867 13,782,867 13,782,867 13,782,867
0.3750% 0.3750% 0.3750% 0.3750% 0.3750%
- 51,685 51,666 51,686 51,686
- a5 R2R 51 6RF 51 686 91.186
. 6,475,164 6,520,088 6,567,744 6,618,360
- 46,126 46,350 46,582 48,842



Feoffees of the Grammar School
Cash Available for Distribution to Schools
Years Ended October 31,

ALTERNATIVE 1A
NO SALE PERMITTED
NO REFINANCE OF IFS LOAN
ADDITIONAL LOAN OF $900,000 FOR ERCSION REMEDY

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Net income (loss) (301,941) (321,988) (157,648) 7,264 24,359
Deduct principal payments on Eastern Bank nole {32,000) - . - .
Deduct principal payments on Institution for Savings note (204,146) (220,484) (238,130) (257,188) (277,771)
Deduct reduction in accounts payable (1,000) R
Deduct principal payments on erosion note (50,427) (70,855) (75,225) (79,865) (84,791)
Add depreciation and amortization 316,243 330,243 330,243 330,243 330,243
Balance available for distribution to Ipswich Public Schoo! System $ (273,271) § (283,082) § {140,760) $ (546) $ (7,960)

2
,gd
%10/95 I LNm

EXHIBIT




Feoffees of the Grammar School

Cash Available for Distribution to Schools

Years Ended October 31,

ALTERNATIVE 1B
NO SALE PERMITTED
REFINANCE OF IFS LOAN

ADDITIONAL LOAN OF $300,000 FOR EROSION REMEDY

Net income (loss)

Deduct principal payments on Eastern Bank nole

Deduct principal payments on Cambridge Savings Bank mortgage
Deduct provison for sinking fund reserve

Deduct reduction in accounts payable

Deduct principal payments on efosion note

Add depreciation and amortization

Balance available for distribution to ipswich Public School System

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
(186,607) (213,579) (57,326) 42,338 48,393
(32.,000) . . . .

. (168,510) (179,071) (142,478) (152,021)
{70,000) - . (46,250) {141,900)
. - {20,000) (104,000) -
(50,427) (70,855) (75.225) (79,865) (84,791)
315,243 330,243 330,243 330,243 330,243
$ (23791) §  (123,701) 5 {1,379 (12) § (76)




Feoffees of the Grammar School
Cash Available for Distribution to Schools
Years Ended October 31,

ALTERNATIVE 1C
NO SALE PERMITTED
REFINANCE OF IFS LOAN
NO EROSION REMEDIATION

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Net income (loss) (72,107) (74,532) 77,351 172,375 173,504
Deduct principal payments on Eastern Bank nole (32,000) - ) - . .
Deduct principal payments on Cambridge Savings Bank morigage - - (169,510) (179,071) (142,478) (152,021)
Deduct provision for sinking fund reserve (120,000) - (120,000) (180,000) (180,000)
Add depreciation and amortization 240,243 240,243 240,243 240,243 240,243

Balance available for distribution to Ipswich Public Schoaol System $ 16,136 § (3,799) $ 18,523 § 90,140 § 81,726




Feoffees of the Grammar School

Cash Available for Distribution to Schools

Years Ended October 31,

ALTERNATIVE 2A
SALE OF ALL UNITS AS OF 11/11/11
10% CASH AT CLOSING

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Net income 217,893 1,094,526 1,141,600 1,100,918 1,063,701
Deduct principa! payments on Eastern Bank note (32,000) - _ } )
Deduct principal payments on Cambridge Savings Bank morigage - (129,772) (137,091) (109,077) (116,383)
Add depreciation and amoriization 240,243 - - . .
Balance available for distribution fo Ipswich Public School System 3 426,136 § 964,754 $ 1,004,509 % 991,841 § 947,318




Feoffees of the Grammar School
Cash Available for Distribution to Schools
Years Ended October 31,

ALTERNATIVE 2B
SALE OF ALL UNITS AS OF 11/1/11
30% CASH AT CLOSING

2011 012 2013 2014 2015
Net income 217.893 1,068,059 1,410,083 1,106,886 1,064,007
Deduct principal payments on Eastern Bank note {32,000) - - - .
Deduct principal payments on Cambridge Savings Bank morigage ' - - - N B
Add depreciation and amortization 240,243 - - . R

Baiance available for distribution to Ipswich Public School System - 3 426,136 § 1,068,058 § 1,110,083 § 1,106,886 $ 1,064,007




Feoffees of the Grammar School
Cash Available for Distribution to Schools
Years Ended October 31,

ALTERNATIVE 2C

SALE OF ALL UNITS AS QF 11/1/11
50% CASH AT CLOSING

iel income

ieduct principal payments on Eastern Bank note

reduct principal payments on Cambridge Savings Bank mortgage
dd depreciation and amortization

Jalance available for distribution to Ipswich Public School System

2011 012 201 2014 2015
217,893 905,432 946,871 943,913 901,287
(32,000) - - . .
240,243 - - . -
$ 426136 § 905432 $ 946,871 $ 943913 § 901287
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\,\ COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
ESSEX, SS. PROBATE & FAMILY COURT
NO. ES09E0094QC
)
ALEXANDER B.C. MULHOLLAND, JR, )
et als., as they are THE FEOFFEES )
OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL IN THE )
TOWN OF TPSWICH )
) Wi A x
Plaintiffs, ) At © Aoy
) s Ss, p;" Ar
\'A ) 5’958 7‘2068 &s r
) O ye) Ss
ATTORNEY GENERAL of the ) 5980’4”}’5/;,
Commonwealth of Massachusetts; )
IPSWICH SCHOOL COMMITTEE; )
and RICHARD KORB, as he ig )
Superintendent of Schools in the )
Town of Ipswich )
)
Defendants )
)
SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM

To:  Daniel Clasby

Dan Clasby & Company

181 Elliot Street

100 Curnmings Center, Suite 238C

Beverly, MA 01915

You are hereby commanded in the name of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
in accordance with the provisious of Rules 30 and 45 of the Massachusetts Rules of Civil
Procedure to appear and testify before a Notary Public of the Commonwealth, at the
offices of Casner & Edwards, LLP, 303 Congress Street, Boston, Massachuseits, at 10:00
AM on October 11, 2011 as to your knowledge, at the taking of the deposition. in the

above-entitled action. You are further required to bring with you the materials listed in

the attached schedule A.
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HEREOF FAIL NOT, as failure by any person without adequate cause to obey a

subpoena served upon him may be deemed to be in conternpt of the court in which the

action is pending.

Dated: September (o , 2011

Respectfully submitted,

Ipswich School Committee
By its attorneys,

/iy

Richard C. Allen, BBO #015720
Stephen M. Perry, BBO # 395955
Donna M. Brewer, BBO #545254
CASNER & EDWARDS, LLP
303 Congress Street

Boston, MA 02210

Phone: 617-426-5900
allen@casneredwards,.com
perry@casneredwards,com

brewer@casneredwards.com

y commission ¢
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SCHEDULE A

Dcfinitions:
“Documents” - means all writings of any kind, including the originals and all
non-identical copies, whether different from the originals by reason of any notation made
on such copies or otherwise (including, without limjtation, correspondence, memoranda,
notes, diarigs, statistics, letters, emails, telegrams, minutes, contracts, reports, studies,
checks, statements, receipts, returns, summaries, pamphlets, books, prospectuses,
interoffice and intraoffice communications, offers, notations of any sort of conversations,
telephone calls, meetings or other communications, bulletins, printed matter, computer
printouts, teletypes, telefax, invoices, worksheets, and all drafis, alterations,
modifications, changes and amendments of any of the foregoing), graphic or aura)
records or representations of any kind (including, without limitation, photographs, charts,
graphs, microfiche, microfilm, videotape, recordings, motion pictures), electronic,
mechanical, or electric records and representations of any kind (including, without
limitation, tapes, cassettes, discs, recordings).

Documents Requested:
1. All documents you reviewed, relied on or took into account in preparing
the Pro Forma financial statements of the Feoffees of the Ipswich Grammar School and

your affidavit which were included as exhibits to the Plaintiffs’ Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment in the above captioned case.

7428./514719.1



SEPTEMBER 19, 2011

RETURN OF SERVICE

1 this day summoned the within named DANIEL CLASBY
DAN CLASBY & COMPANY

to appear as within directed by delivering to  MARGARET HENSLEY, RECEPTIONIST, 9:35
AM

X inhand
leaving at last and usual place of abode, to wit:

No. 181 ELLIOT STREET, 100 CUMMINGS CTR SUITE 238C
inthe BEVERLY District of said ESSEX County an attested
copy of the subpoena together with  $ 11 fees for attendance and travel

it being necessary I actually used a

Service and travel 28 motor vehicle in the distance of
25 miles in the service of
Paid Witness 11 this process

Process Sgrver
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TRANSMISSION OK

TX/RX NO ' 3150
CONNECTION TEL 6177701700
CONNECTION ID
ST. TIME 09/16 11:06
USAGE T 00°'33
PGS. SENT 4
RESULT OK
~N 303 Congpress Steet
(E CASNER & EDWARDS, wr Boston, Massachusetes 02210
ATTORNEYS AT LAW Telephone (617) 426-5900
Facsimile (617) 426-8810
www.casneredwards.com
FACSIMILE COVER SHEET
PLEASE DELIVER: 4 PAGES (INCLUDING COVER)
TO: Quickserv FAX NO.: 617.770.1700
FROM: Stephen M. Perry, Esq, FAX NO.: 617.426,8810
DATE: September 16,2011 CLIENT NO.: 7428.0

MESSAGE/INSTRUCTIONS:
Please see that the attached subpoena is served upon the following:

Daniel Clasby

Dan Clasby & Company

181 Elliot Street

100 Cummings Center, Suite 238C
Beverly, MA 01915

Thank you. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.
Best,

Lisa Mogan
Secretary to Stephen M. Perry, Esq.

7428.0/515385.1



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

ESSEX, SS. PROBATE & FAMILY COURT
NO. ES09E0094QC

ALEXANDER B.C. MULHOLLAND, JR,
et als., as they are THE FEOFFEES

OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL IN THE
TOWN OF IPSWICH

Plaintiffs,
A

ATTORNEY GENERAL of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts;
IPSWICH SCHOOL COMMITTEE;
and RICHARD KORB, as he is
Superintendent of Schools in the
Town of Ipswich

Defendants

N N N N N N S N N N N Nt s S e N N g e

SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM

To:  Daniel Clasby

Dan Clasby & Company

181 Elliot Street

100 Cummings Center, Suite 238C

Beverly, MA 01915

You are hereby commanded in the name of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
in accordance with the provisions of Rules 30 and 45 of the Massachusetts Rules of Civil
Procedure to appear and testify before a Notary Public of the Commonwealth, at the
offices of Casner & Edwards, LLP, 303 Congress Street, Boston, Massachusetts, at 10:00
AM on October 11, 2011 as to your knowledge, at the taking of the deposition in the

above-entitled action. You are further required to bring with you the materials listed in

the attached schedule A.



HEREOF FAIL NOT, as failure by any person without adequate cause to obey a
subpoena served upon him may be deemed to be in contempt of the court in which the

action is pending.

Respectfully submitted,

Ipswich School Committee
By its attorneys,

/)

Richard C. Allen, BBO #015720
Stephen M. Perry, BBO # 395955
Donna M. Brewer, BBO #545254
CASNER & EDWARDS, LLP
303 Congress Street

Boston, MA 02210

Phone: 617-426-5900
allen@casneredwards.com
perry(@casneredwards.com
brewer@casneredwards.com

Dated: September |(o , 2011

e g Iy,
y commission eL)plres. oot ey,




SCHEDULE A

Definitions:
“Documents” - means all writings of any kind, including the originals and all
non-identical copies, whether different from the originals by reason of any notation made
on such copies or otherwise (including, without limitation, correspondence, memoranda,
notes, diaries, statistics, letters, emails, telegrams, minutes, contracts, reports, studies,
checks, statements, receipts, returns, summaries, pamphlets, books, prospectuses,
interoffice and intraoffice communications, offers, notations of any sort of conversations,
telephone calls, meetings or other communications, bulletins, printed matter, computer
printouts, teletypes, telefax, invoices, worksheets, and all drafts, alterations,
modifications, changes and amendments of any of the foregoing), graphic or aural
records or representations of any kind (including, without limitation, photographs, charts,
graphs, microfiche, microfilm, videotape, recordings, motion pictures), electronic,
mechanical, or electric records and representations of any kind (including, without
limitation, tapes, cassettes, discs, recordings).

Documents Requested:
1. All documents you reviewed, relied on or took into account in preparing
the Pro Forma financial statements of the Feoffees of the Ipswich Grammar School and

your affidavit which were included as exhibits to the Plaintiffs’ Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment in the above captioned case.

7428./514719.1



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

ESSEX, SS. PROBATE & FAMILY COURT
NO. ES09E0094QC

T T T TOWN OF IPSWICH

ALEXANDER B.C. MULHOLLAND, JR,
et als., as they are THE FEOFFEES
OF THE GRAMMAR SCHOOL IN THE

Plaintiffs,
v.

ATTORNEY GENERAL of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts;
IPSWICH SCHOOL COMMITTEE;
and RICHARD KORB, as he 1s
Superintendent of Schools in the
Town of Tpswich

Defendants

A i L N N N N N N N N 2 N N N N

NOTICE OF TAKING DEPOSITION

TO: William H. Sheehan, Esq.
MacLean, Holloway, Doherty, Ardiff & Morse, P.C.
8 Essex Center Drive
Peabody, MA 01960

Johanna Soris, Esq.
Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Office of the Attorney General
Public Charities Division

One Ashburion Place

Boston, MA 02108

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on October 11, 2011 at 10:30 a.m., Counsel for
Defendant, Ipswich School Committee will take the deposition of Daniel Clasby before a
Notary Public in and for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, or before some other
officer authorized by law to administer oaths. The deposition will take place at the offices
of Casner & Edwards, LLP, 303 Congress St., Boston, MA 02210. The witness is
requested to provide the documents set forth in Schedule “A.”



You are invited to attend and cross-examine. The deposition will continue from

day to day until completed.

Respectfully submitted,

Ipswich School Committee
By its attorneys,

Dated: September 2, 2011

Richard C. Allen, BBO # 015720~
Stephen M. Perry, BBO # 395955
Donna M. Brewer, BBO #545254
Andrew T. Imbriglio, BBO #676049
CASNER & EDWARDS, LLP
303 Congress Street

Boston, MA 02210

Phone: 617-426-5900
allen@casneredwards.com
perry@casneredwards.com
brewer@casneredwards.com
imbriglio@casneredwards.com

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a true copy of the above document was served upon counsel
for all parties by first class mail, postage pre-paid on September 2, 2011.

7428.0/508112.1

Andrew T. Imbriglio

YA LA



SCHEDULE A

Definitions:
“Documents” - means all writings of any kind, including the originals and all
non-identical copies, whether different from the originals by reason of any notation made
on such copies or otherwise (including, without limitation, correspondence, memoranda,
notes, diaries, statistics, letters, emails, telegrams, minutes, contracts, reports, studies,
checks, statements, receipts, returns, summaries, pamphlets, books, prospectuses,
interoffice and intraoffice communications, offers, notations of any sort of conversations,
telephone calls, meetings or other communications, bulletins, printed matter, computer
printouts, teletypes, telefax, invoices, worksheets, and all drafts, alterations,
modifications, changes and amendments of any of the foregoing), graphic or aural
records or representations of any kind (including, without limitation, photographs, charts,
graphs, microfiche, microfilm, videotape, recordings, motion pictures), electronic,
mechanical, or electric records and representations of any kind (including, without
limitation, tapes, cassettes, discs, recordings).

Documents Requested:
1. All documents you reviewed, relied on or took into account in preparing
the Pro Forma financial statements of the Feoffees of the Ipswich Grammar School and

your affidavit which were included as exhibits to the Plaintiffs’ Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment in the above captioned case.

7428./514719.1
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